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ANNUAL REPORT 2006

= LETTER FROM THE CEQ

To Qur Shareholders,

In fiscal 2008, Photon Dynamics -navigated through
challenging market conditions as display manufacturers
found themselves in an oversupply condition, and in the
second half of the year began to curtail capital equipment
spending. Against this backdrop, the Company's
achievements were notable:

* We delivered strong revenue growth of 37 percent over
the prior year.

»  We returned a profit of $0.24 per share versus a loss of
($1.14) per share in fiscal 2005.

* We maintained a strong financial position with ending
cash and investments totaling $103.6 million.

+ We managed operating expenses below our target for the
fiscal year without sacrificing research and development.

* We maintained our cornpetitive market share in both the
test and repair system markets.

* We commenced a plan to begin transferring our
manufacturing operations to Asia to reduce our
break-even point.

Market Trends

Demand for our products is directly influenced by our

customers’ manutacturing capacity and expansion plans.

These plans in turn fluctuate based on projected consumer
spending for notebook computers, desktop fat-panel
monitors, and increasingly by the conversion of televisions to
flat-panel Liquid Crystal Display (LCD) TVs.

After three consecutive years of heavy investment in LCD
manufacturing equipment, the flat pane!l market is now
oversupplied with manufacturing capacity. As a result, in the
second half of 2006 cur customers began scaling back their
capital expenditure plans. Given this unsettled environment,
we believe the 2007 outlook for capital expenditures to be
lower than 2006 by 20 percent to 30 percent, Wa therefore
are facing a cyclical downturn in the demand for our
products. ’

But importantly, we-believe this downturn in investment is
temporary. The LCD television market is in the early adoption
phase and has met growth forecasts for the past two years.
Increasing growth will require expansion of LCD
manufacturing capacity, perhaps by mid-to-late 2007.

Fiscal 2006 Highlights
Despite the fluctuation in market conditions, Photon

Dynamics demonstrated continued market leadership and a
determination to be prepared for future profitable growth.

During 2006, we installed Generation 7 and 7.5 test systems,
supplied equipment for the industry's first Generation 8
factory, and commenced a major Generation 10 product
development program. In order to reduce costs and improve
competitiveness, we began the migration of our
manufacturing operations to Asia. We expect delivery of our
first Korean-manufactured repair systems to customers
during the second half of 2007.

Looking Forward

During 2007, we will prepare for the anticipated recovery of
our customers’ equipment spending. We will continue to
invest in research and development, with a focus on
Generation 10 test system development and on expansion of
our repair product offerings. While we cannot control end
market conditions, we can and will control our operating
expenses and focus our product offerings on areas that
influence future market share and market growth
opportunities.

The flat-panel display market is an industry that is here to
stay - and grow - and we believe that we are well positioned
to capitalize on its growth. Qur confidence in the operational
strength of Photon Dynamics remains unabated. We are
committed to building an organization that we believe will not
only succeed in the global marketplace, but is positioned for
significant long-term growth, '

We would like to thank our customers, investors, employees
and suppliers for their continued trust, confidence, and
support during the past year and we look forward to working
with you in 2007.

Sincerely,
Jeffrey Hawthorne .

~
President and Chief Executive Officer

This Annual Report, including the Shareholders' Letter above,
contains torward-looking statements. The words “should,” “will]”
“anticipate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “intend” and “believe” and other
comparable terminclogy identify these statements as jorward-looking
statements. Our actual results could ditfer materially from those
projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of
factors, risks and uncertainties, including the risk factors set forth
under the caption “Factors Affecting Operating Results” in Part I, ltem
7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K included in this Annual Report.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K conmains certain forward-loaking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21 E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements
included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K other than statements of historical fact
may, be, forward -looking statements. You can identify these and other forward-looking statements by the use of words
such as may ” “w:[l ¥ Sicould,” “would " Yshould,” "pians " “anticipates,” “relies,’ “expects.,” “intends,”

“believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue” or the negative of such terms, or other comparable
terminology. Forward-looking statements aiso include the assumptions underlying or relating to any such state-
ments. These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations as of the filing date of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and involve a number of uncertainties and risks. These uncertainties and risks include, but are
not limited to: the adoption of new technology by our existing and potential customers, the current economic
uncertainty, which may cause consumers to purchase products containing flat panel displays at a rate lower than we
and our customers expect, and therefore that could lead our customers 1o reduce investments in our products below
that which we project unnl rhe markets become more certain, the current economic conditions, which may cause an
increase in compermve pncmg pge;sgires and the risk:of the introduction of competing products having techno-
logmalland/or pricmgigdvamages, which would reduce the. demand Sorour products. As a resull, our actual results

W-«mﬂm “andvend user demand may differ substantially from expectations. :

L2 T LEIY)

) Our actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward—looking statements included
herein as a result of a number of factors, risks and uncertainties, including the risk factors set forth in Part I lrem IA.
“Risk Factors™ in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and elsewhere.in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K is as of the filing date with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and futire evenis or circumstances could differ stgmﬁcamly from the forward .’ookmg statements
included herein. Accordingly, we caution readers not to place undué reliance on such smtemems and we express[y
assume no obligation to updare the forward-looking statements included in this report after the date hereof except
as required by law.
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Photon Dynamics, Inc. (“Photon Dynamics”) is a California-corporation 1ncorporated on May 12, 1986. We

are a leading global prov1der of y1eld management soluttons to the flat. panel display, 1ndustry Our portfolto of
products, services.and expertise , is designed. to deltver the yteld-management solunons our Icustomers need, ©
effecttvely address, thetr most pressmg thin- ﬁlm transmtor quuld-crystal dtsplay mdnufactunng challenges. Our
unique portfolio of test, repair and mspectlon systems drive process control improvements throughout the

manufacturing process — from early identification and characterization’ of: defects, to back-end: cell inspection.

Manufacturers in the flat panel display-industry use our solutions:to: collect data; analyze product quality and
identify and repair product defects at critical'steps in their manufacturing processes. Our customers use our systems
to increase manufacturing yields of high-performance flat panel displays used in a number of products, including.
notebook and desktop computers, televrsrons and advanced mobtle electromc devices such as cellular phones

personal dtgrtal assnstants and portable v1deo games FES BT M s T St

U B T R T AR VL R TR PR S LTI S
= 3 On November 16, 2006, we announced that we are realigiing our resources, resulting jn the discontinuation of,
our!PanelMaster™ inspection products. While we will: continuéito support the currént ‘installed base, we are
discontinuing the: product line -and will no longer pursiie' new business for. PanelMaster Ut systems, upgrades or
enhancements. The discontinuation of the PanelMaster™ products represents a strategic realignment of. our
technical and financial resources, thus enabltng us to focus on what we believe are more proﬁtable business
opponumttes for the Company Introduced at the end of ﬁscal 2004 revenue from olir' PanelMaster™ products
represented approx1mately 6% 6% and 0% of total revenue in ﬁsca] 2006; 2005 and 2004 Jréspectively.

HI L U RAR R A O T TIL AP 1

Pnor 10 ﬁscal 2003 we also were engaged in the prmted crrcurt board assembly 1nspectton busmess and the'
cathidde ray tiibe dtsplay anid high gliality glass mspectlon ‘businiess. During fiscal 2003; we tmplemented plans to
exitthese businesses-and consequently, wé now operate 1n one reportable business segment 1= the flat panéi dlsplay
industry.’ Accordingly, the operatmg ‘résults of both theé prmted circuit board assembly’ 1nspect:on business and thé
cathdde ray'tube dlsplay and high qualtty glass 1nspectton busmess segments havé been presented as- dlscontmued_
operatlons in our ‘statements' of operatlons We’ contmue to ‘icur charges relatmg to"discontinued* operattons
primarily due to costs associated with'the ‘Amitower v POt Dynarics, 'Inc; 1hwsbit: For further defails'of ‘our
discontinued operations, see Note 3, of our “Notes to, Consolidated Financial Statemems" included under Part Il
Item 8 “Flnancral Statements and Supplementary Data

.y PR 1
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~ £ Additional 1nformat10n about Photon’ Dynamlcs lnc is avallable on-our website” at Wi, phorondynamtcs com’
We make availablé free’of chargeJ on:or through Our: websne, ‘our’ Avinual-Report on Forit 10-K, our Quarterly
Reports on Form10-Q; out Current Reports on Form-8- K and any “dmendments to: :those féports’ filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchangé’ "Act, as soon'as’ reasonably practicableafter electronically ﬁhng
such reports with, or fumtshmg such reports (o, the Securtttes and Exchange Commtssuon (‘SEC”) ]nformatton
contained on our website 1s not mcorporated by reference i in, or ‘made part “of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or
our; other- filings.with or,reports furnished to the SEC:. T T L SRR S 1 e B T
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F!a: Panel Dtspz'ay Industry Background b st e
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- - Continuous*i innovations 'in ‘Microelégironics ‘and matenals sciefice: have enabled flat’ panel displays: with
sharper resolution, brighter pixels and faster imaging’ tb be produced’in’ varymg sizes for differing applications.
Similar innovations have led to, thle‘mtroducuon of a broad array of electronic devices wrth increasing performance
and decreasmg size characteristics. Manufactunng these htghly engmeered products requtres complex mult1 -stage
production processes, increasing the potential for defects and errors associated with equipment failures, contam-
ination of matefials, drift in process- parameters, ‘human error-and- other related factors. These-complexities are
further complicated by the flat panel display industry’s migration toward large-area glass substrates for economical,
high-volume production of larger display panels. These manufacturing complexities -increase -investment in
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work-in-progress inventories and lengthen production cyclés. Because of the high cost of materials used in the
manufacture of liquid crystal display (“LCD"), defective LCDs can be quite costly for LCD manufacturers, and
ultimately drive up both panel and end product costs. Reliable, repeatable methods of analyzing production-line
data and repairing process-related defects are therefore essential to enabling the production of larger, htgher-quahty
LCDs at affordable price points.

~ To better manage and enhance their yields and’ reduce product costs, manufacturers are"increasing ‘their
¢mphasis on automated testing, ihspection and repair at various points in the manufacturing process. As production
processes become more complex and reducing material and labor costs becomes increasingly important, we beliéve
that yield management solutions provrde manufacturers w1th an tmportant Compeutlve advantage

Growth in the mobtle electronic devices market the notebook and desktop computer rnarket artd the televrsmn
market have driven the demand for flat panel displays, which offer reduced footprint, weight, power consumption
and heat emission and better picture qualrty -as, compared to cathode ray tube displays, the current standard
technology for televisions. -. . N R . S n

Active matrix ltqu1d crystal dlsplay (“AMLCD”) the most prevalent and one of the htghest performance flat
panel displays available today, produces full color images and operates at much faster refresh rates than earlier
passive monochrome liquid crystal displays. The color capability, résolution, speed and picture quality of active
matrix liquid crystal displays currently make: these displays the preferred choice for high-performance mobile
applications, such as portable computers multtmedra televrsrons and other apphcatrons requtrmg the drsplay of
video and graphics. . . .

e opt - Y

Manufacture of Acnve Matrix Ltqutd Crystal Drsplays The manufacture of actrve matnx ltqutd crystat
displays is an extremely complex process, which has been developed and refined for dlfferent glass substrate sizes
and resolutions through research and development pre-productton prototyping and commercral producttort

An AMLCD uses liquid crystal to control the passage of lrght The bastc structure of an AMLCD panel may be
thought of as two glass pancls sandwiching a layer of liquid crystal. The front glass panel is fitted with a color filter,
while the back glass panel has transistors fabricated on it. When voltage is applied to a transistor, the liquid crystal is
bent, allowing light to pass through to form a pixel. A light source is located at the back of the panel and is called a
backlight unit. The front glass panel is fitted with a color filter, which gives each ptxel its own color. The
combination of these pixels in different colors forms the image,on the panel. .

Glass panels are initially manufactured on large glass substrates which are subsequently cut down to thé pariel
size needed for the application. Each progressive increase'in substraté size is referred to by its “generation.”
Generation 5 substrate glass, is approximately 1,200 X 1,300 mm in size, Generation 6 substrate glass is approx-
imately 1,500 X {,800 mm in size, Generation 7. substrate glass is approxrmately 1,870 X 2,200 mm in size, and
Generation 7.5 and 8 substrate glass is approximately. 2, 160 X 2,460 mm in size. Next generation substrates glass
(Generation 10) is currently estimated to be 2,850 X 3, 050 mm in size., v+ 0 ., - e

Manufacturing an acttve matnx ltqutd crystal dtsplay mvolves three prmcrpal phases

Array Phase. The first phase of the process mvolves the -production of. both the array plate and color
filter plate. This phase of the process is the fabrication of an array of thin-film transistors (“TFT"), each of
which is connected to a transparent sub-pixel, the smallest addressable unit in the display. Three or more
sub-pixels are combined to produce a pixel, millions of which are fabricated, using semiconductor processes,
on a large glass substrate. A similar process is used to fabricate an array of color filtér sub-pikels on & large
glass substrate. The array fabrication process, is the most capital-intensive process and is housed in cleanrooms
in order to minimize particles that can cause ptxel defects.

Cell Assembly Phase.” The secortd phase, cell assembly, is the Jommg of the TFT array plate and the
* color filter plate wnh‘!tqutd crystal material. 'f '

- Module Assembly Phase. The third phase, module assembly, mvolves packagmg the dtsplay and
attaching the electronics and illumination —or backltght-—— which will allow the device to dtsplay text,
graphics and video images. .. : oo : ‘
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The AMLCD market is both price sensitive and cost competitive, making it critical for manufacturers to
constantly strive for the highest possible yields to decrease costs. Unlike semiconductor fabrication facilities, where

productivity can be inreased by stirinking features and die size, AMLCD fabrication productivity is driven by yield
and substrate size, the latter being because an increase in the plate area with each niew generation results in a
disproportionatély lower inpreése in processing equipment costs, generating new production efficiencies.

At various points in thé manufacturing process, the flat panel display manufacturef uses test and inspection
equipment to identify defects to permit repair and to avoid wasting costly materials on continued manufacturing of a
defective product. In addition, test and inspection systems can provide qualitative feedback to the flat panel display
manufacturer and enable the manufacturer to address yield problems where they originate and to optimize the

manufacturing process.

' ETY it

The maih:(;'facn:lrilgg_ process folf'each.ne\i} generation of glass subsirate typically requires new fabrication
facilities (“fabs’}), modifications of the manufacturing process, development and installation 'of new manufacturing
equipment, and, as a result, new test and repair éguipment. New fabrication facilities and upgrades to existing

facilities represent significant investments by flaf panel display manufacturers and take time ‘to properly plan,

imp_lem'gn't.,_' and bring to full c'apaci'ty. . .
dellelhges‘F&ced by Flat Panel Display Manufacturérs. The abilify_ pf flat 'par'u;l display manufacturers to
improve yields of active matrix liquid crystal displays and other flat panel displays'depends, in large part, on their
ability to test, repair and inspect displays during the manufacturing process and to use the resulting data collection to
refine the manufacturing.process. The ability to test, repair and inspect helps manufacturers address a.number of
challenges, including:. : : Do
« Demand for Higher Quality.. Increased, competition among flat panel display'manufactﬁrets,jmprc_)ve-
« » ments in the, manufacturing process and. higher consumer expectations are moving the flat panel display
industry towards a zero defect standard. The manufacturing challenges presented by the goal of zero defect
products have been compounded by the increasing demand for higher resolution and larger displays.
A A ‘\i P . ) . . e - ) . o
© .« Increasing Display Resolutions. ~Resolutions of advanced flat panel displays now involve several million
pixels, presenting a challénge when test and inspection equipment must exercise each pixel. Traditional
methods of physically contacting each row arid coluimn of pixels with probe cards have difficulty handling

. .= .. I .
mechanisms, to more effectively handle these displays.

. High Cost of M&té?f&z‘_&: Materials costs éo’nﬁbrise approximately 50% to 70% of flat'panel display costs, in
gh'ﬁcqr;tifats; to only ap'gro‘;(:imat’ely 10% for semiconductors, according to induslr)'( sources. Higher material
“™"costs expose the flat panel display manufacturer to higher costs due to yield loss throughout the manu-

facturing process. High performance LCDs for television applications further increase the complexities

4 1 g associated with LCD manufacturing: Because of the high cost of materials used in the manufacture of LCDs,

e

i ¥ defeét_iygf{L@D_s,-_esgeciglly’rlarger displays, represent a substantial cost to LCD manufacturers, and can

ultimately-drive*up:both panel and end. product costs. Therefore, it.is-important to test, repair and inspect
early in the manufacturing process before expensive materials are added to the display.in the latter assembly
< -phases. - 0 o 0w a : e v
., -+ Need for Increased Yield and Greater Throughput. Greater yields are realized in part through more
effective test, repair ,and. inspection. In order to maintain or improve profitability,. flat panei display.
manufacturers need test, repair and inspection equipment that will allow them to increase process speed
while using larger panels. " : .“
Need for Flexibility. 'The flat panel display industry is producing a larger number of different panel sizes as
the variety of applications incorporating flat panel displays has increased. Manufacturers are seeking test,
* repair and.inspection equipment that ‘can be reconfigured quickly and accurately for different panel sizes,
with minimal production downtime. ' . : : : S

current advanced displays. Manufacturers require new techniques, such as non-contact pixel-addressing
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Today s market dynamics demand that flat panel dtsplay manufacturers leverage the latest y1eld management
and process tools We focus Spemﬁcally on de]wenug yteld management solutlons that enable manufacturers to
cotlect data from the producuon lme analyze the data and qutckly dtagnose and repalr process-related defects. We

focus spec1ﬁcally on delivering solutions that help manifacturers decréase material costs and i improve throughput'

to gain that incremental yield edge so critical to success. Our offenngs can be broadly, classified.into two categories:
Vield M Management Products and Customer. Servrce

[ T T B LT Y S S R P A 4 s A}
- I Z RS BRI B AT
 Yield Management Products. ‘ R RN ™Y
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Our flat panel display yield management products include test and repair equipment that are'used primarily in
the Array phase of production, and inspegtion equlpment that i is used pnmanly in the Cell Assembly phase of

producuon Our test eqmpment can' identify and charactenze defects at early stages of the manufacturmg process 50
that the pauels may be' repatred before the néxt stage or if necessary, dlscarded rrummlzmg the loss of time and

materials. Our tést and repair systems use smular software-based controls, processmg  aiid graphlcal usér mterfaces
Our products can be networked togethér with one another as well as with complementary vendor products 50 Lhat
defect data can be stored, analyzed and used throughout the manufacturing process. “our” systems dre also
compatible, with a variety of material handling automation systems In addmon, our, mspectlon equtpment can

identify vtsual defects after cell asscmbly

e L P T N N L T O

‘Flat Panel Display Array Test Systems Our ArrayChecker "\test systems detect, locate;. quantify: and
characterize electrical, contamination and other. defects in active’ matrix liquid.crystal displays after array

fabrication. These systems use our proprietary non-contact voltage imaging technology-to provideé a high-resolution’

voltage map of the entire display and our proprietary image analysis software converts this voltage map into
complete pixel defect data. The AriayChecker™ test systeins ‘determiirie whether individual pixels or lines of pixels
afe functional and also find more subtle defécts such as vanattons in'individual plxel voltagé. These defect data files
are then used for repalr and stattstrcal process control.” ' v et ot

o gVt ann L e, M

Flat Panel DrsplayArray Repatr Sysrems Our ArraySaver repair systems uttllze multiple wavelength laser
technology to repair defects in flat panel displays during and after array fabrication; Cur systems can use defect data
files downloaded from our ArrayChecker™ test systems or other test and inspection-systems.to automatically
position the panel for repair, thereby eliminating the time spent by operators locating. ¢ defects

1

s oall

The ArraySaver™ system includes a high-precision miatérials handhng platform and a user—fnendly graphtcal
interface allowing for high throughput. Our high-precision material$ handling plarform Tully automates the precise
positioning of the plate for each successive repair, thereby substanttally increasing throughput. Our graphical user
interface and software supports semi- automated setup of repatr programs for common types of defects so that
repairs can be executed raptdly and accurately These programs prowde a senes of, actlons that the system
automahcally executes to repa1r the pamcular defect type o SRR '

Y e ! [ B A ‘..!0." ' --!L dels T
' Flar Panel Dlspl'ay ‘Inspection Systems. . Qur PanelMaster."-‘ inispection -systems{ bsel our proprietary image
analysis and moiré interferérice cancelinig algorithms and technology to inspect flat panel displdys'for visual defects
after cell assembly. Our systems use multiple high-resolution cameras and computer workstations to quantitatively

measure visual characteristics and to'precisely locate and characterizé line;. cluster;.piXel:and blemish.defects, .

Inspection data generated by the system is displayed on a video monitor for immediate interpretation and can be
stored or sent to a repair system to effect repairs. The system was available either as a stand-alone unit or as a
modular unit that-could be integrated with a manufacturers® material handling equipimént:-As discusséd above on
November 16, 2006, we announced“that while we will continue -to- support’the current:installed‘base}' we are
discontinuing the' PanelMaster™ product line and will no'longer pursue new.business:for PanelMaster™:systems,
upgrades or enhancements for this product line, R V0L LR R :

.y i L ) . el et fag il A LA T s .
*Customer Service and Suppart et el i nento v
S Vi E T A MR e b -~

.We enhance the value of our products through our customer'support: programs,,whlch prov1de comprehensive
worldwide service and support across all of our product lines. With years of experience helping: our customers

.
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increase yields across a myriad of production environments, our global yield management support organization is
equipped to provide customers with a range of preventative and corrective services. These include design,
development, and integration services associated with yield management, as well as comprehensive training,
project management, process and applications consulting, product maintenance, and life cycle optimization.

Customers - o .

.

- We sell our products to manufacturers in the flat panel display industry. All of our flat panel display customers |
are located in South Korea, Taiwan and Japan, where flat panel display production is concentrated, and in China. We
derive most of our revenue from a small number of customers, and we expect this to continue for the foreseeable
future. Sales to our top three customers accounted for 76%, 46% and 62% of revenue-in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.. During fiscal 2006, sales to LG Phillips LCD, Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. and AU- Optronics
_ Corporation each accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues. See Note 13 of our “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” in Part1l, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Annual Report on
Form ]0-K for further information, which is incorporated here by reference, regarding sales to our major customers. ,

Our business depends upon the capital expenditures of flat panel display manufacturers, which in-tom depend
on the current and anticipated market demand for products utilizing flat panel displays. We do not consider our’
business to be seasonal in nature, but it is cyclical with respect to the capital equipment procurement practices of flat
panel display manufacturers.and is impacted by the investment patterns of these manufacturers in different global
‘markets. We do consider consumer.demand for flat panel display products to be seasonal, with peak demand
occurring in the latter half of each calendar year. This end-user seasonality has an influence on capacity decisions by
flat panel display manufacturers and has a limited influence on the flat panel display manufacturers’ overall
investment patterns. However, because new fabrication facilities and upgrades to existing facilities represent
significant investments and take time to implement, we consider flat panel display manufacturers to have cyclical
investment patterns. Downturns in the flat panel industry or slowdowns in the worldwide economy have in the past
had and could in the future have a material adverse effect on our future business and financial results.
Sales, Service and Marketing -

Our sales, service and marketing strategy is to provide our customers with increased manufacturing yields and
throughput, improved quality and greater overall efficiency in their manufacturing process. Our sales, service and
marketing efforts are focused on building long-term relationships with our customers. We sell our products for the
flat panel display indusiry directly to our customers in South Korea, Taiwan, China and Japan. We also sold in Japan
throﬁgh a value-added distributor, until February 2004 when we terminated our reseller agreement. We service our
products worldwide directly.

"
_ Revenue from our flat panel display products represented 100% of our revenue in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
and all of this revenue was derived from sales to companies located outside of the United States. We believe that
sales outside the United States will continue to comprise all of our revenues for the foreseeable future. Our future
performance will depend, in part, on our ability to compéte successfuily in Asia. Our ability to compete in this area
of the world is’dependent upon the continuation of favorable trade laws between countries in the region and the
United States, and our continuing ability to maintain satisfactory relationships with flai panel display manufacturers
in the region. '

. "Our sales terms are typically 80% to 90% of the sales price due upon shipment with the remaining amount due
after installation and upon final customer acceptance. We typically provide a limited warranty on our products fora
period of 12 months from final acceptance. Our field service personnel provide customers with repair and
maintenance services,:primarily warranty related. As of September 30, 2006, we employed 129 sales and service
personnel, 36 of whom .were located in North America and 93 of whom were located in the Asia-Pacific region.

International sales expose us to risks that are not experienced with domestic sales, such as export license
restrictions, political instability, trade restrictions and currency fluctuations. These and other risks relating to our
business are detailed Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Annua} Report on Form 10-K. See Note 13 of our “Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements” included under Part 11, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data” in this Annual Report on Form. 10-K for additional geographic information, which is incorporated here by
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reference, including long-lived assets by geographic area as well as revenue from external customers attributable to
geographic areas during the last three years. . . . ‘

Research and Development

The market for integrated yield management systems is characterized by rapid and continuous technological
development and product innovation. We believe that it is necessary to maintain our competitive position through
continued and timely development of new products and enhancements to existing products. Accordingly, we devote
a significant portion of our human and financial resources to research and development and seek to maintain close
relationships with customers to remain responsive to their needs. For information regarding our research and
development expenses during the last three years, see Part II, Item 7: “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated here by
reference. As of September 30, 2006, we employed 166 research and development personnel, 81 of whom were
located in North America and 85 of whom were located in the Asia-Pacific region.

We are focusing our current research and development on increasing the performance of our current array test
and array repair systems, the design of our next generation systems, and the development-of new technologies
including the funding of an early-stage development company. We are,committing significant engineering efforts
toward product improvement and next generation product development, We will continue 10 invest in research and
development to maintain technology leadership in our products. There can be no assurance that we will be
successful in the introduction, marketing and cost-effective manufacture of any of our new products, that we will be
able to develop and introduce new products on a timely basis, or that we will be able to enhance our existing
products and processes to satisfy customer needs. e
Manufacturmg . - ;

Our flat panel display products are pnmanly manufactured in San Jose, California. We perform design,
assembly and testing in-house and utilize an outsourcmg strategy for the manufacture of a majority of our
components and subassemblies. Qur in-house manufacturing activities consist primarily of ﬁnal assembly and test
of components and subassemblies that are acquired through third-party vendors and mtegranng those subassemblies
into our finished products. As of September 30, 2006, we employed 83 manufacturing personnel, 80 of whom were
located in North America and 3 of whom were located in the Asia-Pacific region. ‘

In our fourth fiscal quarter, we entered into ag'reements to begin leasing approximately 8,200 square feet of
manufacturing space in South Korea beginning in fiscal 2007. We plan to begin limited assembly and in-house
testing of certain of our ArraySaver™ products at our South Korean manufacturing fac111ty as early as our second
quarter of fiscal 2007,

We schedule production based upon customer purchase orders and anticipated orders during the planning
cycle. We generally expect 1o be able to accept a customer order, build the required systems and ship 10 the customer
within approximately 20 to 36 weeks. We maintain quality control through inspection of components, in-process
inspection during equipment assembly and final inspection and operation of all manufactured equipment prior to
shipment. Although we assemble some components and final test our systems under limited clean room condmons
most of our manufacturing occurs in standard manufacturing space.

Because of the long lead time required to acquire the materials and manufacture a customer order and the
cyclical nature of the business, a significant increase in orders could necessuate a burld— up m mventory and

therefore initially have a negative impact on cash .
T B . B

The Company believes that its operations and facilities are in substantial compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local laws and regulations covering the discharge of materials into, and protection of, the
environment,

o o e F v

Suppliers Cy '

Many of the paﬂs components and subassemblies (collectlvely “parts”) that we purchase from our suppliers
are standard commercial products, although certain parts are made to our.specifications., We use numerous vendors
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to supply parts for the manufacture and support of our products; however, we obtain several parts, components and
subassemblies for our systems from a sole source or a limited group of suppliers. For example, we currently obtain
material handling platforms, certain laser assemblies and certain pellicle products from various single source
suppliers. Although we seek to reduce dependence on sole source and limited group suppliers, alternative sources of
supply for certain pieces of equipment remain unavailable or may only be available on unfavorable terms. The
partial or complete loss of a single source or limited group of suppliers or any delay in shipment from a single source
or limited group of suppliers could negatively impact our results of operations and damage customer relationships.
Further, a significant increase in the price of one or more of these pieces of equipment could harm our resulis of
operations. To date, we have not experienced any damages or loss as a result of sourcing from a sole source or
limited group of suppliers or any related delays in shipment. '

Intellectual Property

We protect our proprictary technology through various methods such as patents and patent applications,
trademiflrks. non-disclosure agreements and trade secrets statute. We have filed and obtained a number of
United States and foreign patents and have ‘also jointly filed patent applications in Japan. As of October 28,
2006, we have been issued 74 patents in the United States that are effective. The normal expiration dates of these
patents range from 2007 to 2023. As of October 28, 2006, there are 25 pending patent applications in the United
States. As of October 28, 2006, we have been issued 52 non-U.S. patents that are in force, with expiration dates
beginning in 2010, and there are 75 non-U.S. pending patent applications. From time to time, we license our patents
to third parties for use in fields of use other than the flat panel industry. '

Our patents relate to various aspects of our yield management solutions and other technology as set forth in the
following table (as of October 28, 2000): :

Patents in Force

Yield Management Products . . . .. e e - 45 - 27
(0171 T I 29 23
jTolal ......................................................... 74 52

We intend to continue to pursue the legal protection of our technology through intellectual property laws,
However, we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property rights will be
adequate or that third parties will not infringe, challenge or misappropriate our proprietary rights. ‘

Backlog

Our backlog consists of unshipped system orders, unearned revenue and systems in deferred gross margin. As
of September 30, 2006, our backlog was approximately $71.0 million, compared to approximately $100.9 million
as of September 30, 2005. We expect to ship or to recognize revenue on the majority of the September 2006 backlog
within the next six to twelve months. All orders are subject to delay or cancellation with limited or no penalty to the
customer. Because of possible changes in product delivery schedules and cancellation of product orders, among
other factors, our backlog may vary significantly and, at any particular date, is not necessarily indicative of actual
sales for any succeeding period. We are currently expecting lower levels of bookings for the next several quarters
due to recently announced factory .investment delays by our customers, as discussed in Part II, ltem 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. : . ‘ . .

Competition

The worldwide market for integrated yield management systems is highly competitive. We face substantial
competition from established companies, many of which have greater financial, engineering and manufacturing
resources, larger service organizations and long-standing customer relationships with key existing and potential
customers. We may also face future competition from new market entrants from other overseas and domestic
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Our competitors in the -array test market primarily include Micronics Japan Co. Ltd., Applied
Komatsu Technology, Inc. and Shimadzu Corporation. Qur competitors in the array repair market primarily
include LaserFront Technologies, Inc., NTN Corporation, Contrel Limited, LG Tech Center, Charm Engineering
Co., Ltd and Hoya Continoum Corporation. Our competitors in the cell mspectlon market include Mechatronics, a
subsidiary of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. .

 We expect our compet1tors to contmue {0.. 1mpr0ve the de51gn and performance of their. products and to
introduce new products w1th ‘jé:'ompetltlve prlce and performance characteristics. In addition, our customers may
choose to develop propnetary technology that may obviate or lessen their need to purchase our products. Moreover,
increased competitive pressure may necessitate price-based competition, which could harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations. '

We believe that we can compete effectively with our competitors by building on our substantial installed
customer base, providing technologically superior, competitively priced products and emphasizing our easy-to-use
user interfaces and customer support. However, realizing and maintaining such advantages will require a continued
high level of investment by us in engineering, research and development, marketing and customer service and

support. We may not have sufficient resources to continue to make such investments. Even if sufficient funds are

available,-we may | not be able to make the technological advances in a timely manner necessary to maintain such
competitive advantages. .

Significant competitive factors in the market for our yield management systems include system performance,’
ease of use, reliability, installed base and technical service and support. We believe that, while price and delivery are
important competitive factors, our customers’ overriding requirement is for systems that easily and effectively
incorporate automated and highly accurate inspection and repair capabilities into their existing manufacturing
processes, thereby enhancing productivity.

Our yield management systems for the flat panel display industry are intended to compete based upon
performance and technical capabilities. These systems may compete with tess expensive and more labor-intensive
manual inspection devices.

Employees

- Asof September 30, 2006, we employed 423 persons. No employees are repreéented by a labor union or
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relationships with our employees to be good.

Competition is intense in the recruiting of personnel in the flat panel display industry. Qur future success may
depend in part on our continued ability to hire and retain qualified management and technical employees.

Business Combinations

In addmon to our efforts to develop new technologtes from internal sousces, we may also seek to acqmre new
technologies from external sources. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including management issues and costs in
connection with integration of the operations, technologies and products of the acquired companies, p0551ble write-
downs of impaired assets, and the potentlal loss of key employees of the acqu1red companies.

In fiscal 2006, we entered into agreements which'commit us to provide funding and limited use licenses to
certain of otr intellectual property to an early-stage development company. This venture seeks to leverage our
technology in new potential markets.

In the recent past, we acquired the following businesses and product lines with complementary products and/or
technologies:

In August 2004, we acquired from Tucson Optical Research Corporation {“TORC”) all of the assets
related to the design and manufacture of pellicle products which are components of the modulators used in our
array test systems. This acquisition has enabled us to reduce our product costs while improving the
performance of our array test systems.
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In June 2004, we acquired from Quantum Composers, Inc. all of the assets related to the design and
manufacture of laser assembly products used in our array repair systems. This acquisition has enabled us to
reduce our product costs while improving performance of our array test systems. ‘

In May 2003 we acquired substantially all of the assets of Summit Imaging, Inc a pnvately held designer
-and manufacturer of cooled cameras for the capital equipment industry. This acquisition has enabled us to

- reduce our product costs while improving performance of our array test systems.

In October 2002, we, purchased certain assets from Intevac, Inc. related to Intevac’s Rapid Thermal

" Processing (“RTP”) Division. The RTP systems use a patented technology deésigned to activate low temper-
ature poly-silicon films utilizing a precise heating process critical 'to the manufacture of advanced active
‘matrix, thin film transistor liquid crystal displays and organic light emitting diodes. This acquisition expanded
our flat panel display product offering. Due to deterioration of business conditions and lower than expected
.  demand for low temperature poly-silicon film technology, as of December 31, 2003, we determined that all the
. goodwill and intangible assets associated with this RTP reporting unit had been impaired and, as a result, their
carrying value was reduced to zero. Due to deteriorating business conditions and the emergence of alternative
and competing technologies, we continued only to support RTP systems in the field until March 31, 2005. We

no longer support this business line or generate revenues from it.

For further details regarding our business combinations and dispositions, please see Note 4 of “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” included under Part 11, Item 8. “Financial Statements and Suppiementary Data”
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Executwe Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers, their ages and their positions as of November 30, 2006, are as foll()ws

Name ‘ : © Age . ' Position *

Malcolm J: Thompson. ............. 61 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Director
Jeffrey A. Hawthorne. . ............. 49 Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
Michael Schradle. ................. 61 Chief Financial Officer

Steve SONE ...................... 51 Vice President, Worldwide Sales

"Mark Merill. ;........ e . 43 Vice President Marketing. *

Malcolm J Thompson has been a member of our Board of Dlrectors since 1992 and served as the Executwe
Chzurman of our Board of Directors from October 2003 until September 2005; and as Chairman of the Board since
September 2005. He is the President of MIT Associates and Consultmg C‘ompany, which spec1allzes in high
technology and business consulting. From Aprit 2003 to December 2005, Dr ‘Thompson served as the interim Chief
Executive Officer of Vitex Systems, Inc., a developer of technology for use in the manufacture of next-generation
flat ‘panel displays. From 1998 through November 2001, he was President and Chief Executive Officer of
Novalux, Inc., a provider of laser modules fof optical networks, From 1996:to 1998, he was President and Chief
Executive Officer of dpiX, Inc., a digital image capture and display products company, and from 1981 to 1996, he
was the Chief Technologist for.Xerox PARC. Since December 2005, he has been on the board of Cambridge Display
Technology. He also-has served as Chairman of the Board of the United States Display Consortium, an industry-
government consortium of over 135 member companies. Dr. Thompson received a B.S. and'a Ph.D. in Apphed
Physu:s from the University of Brighton, Sussex in the United Kingdom: + ... :

" Jeffrey A. Hawthorne has been our President and Chief Executive Officer since October 2003, and has been a
member of our Board of Directors since December 2003. From September 5, 2006 to December 14, 2006,
Mr. Hawthorne performed the functions of Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accoummg Officer. From July
2003 to October 2003, Mr. Hawthorne was our Chief Operating Officer. From November 2001 to July 2003,
Mr. Hawthorne was our Vice President and President, Image Processing Systems Division. Mr. Hawthorne joined us
in 1991 and has held a series of other management positions including Vice- President, Development from
September 1994 to November 2001. Mr. Hawthorne received a B.S. degree in Engineering Physics from the
University of Colorado and an-M.S. degree in Optical Engincering from the University of Rochester. '
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Michael Schradle has been our Chief Financtal Officer since November 6, 2006. Mr. Schradle will become our
Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer for purposes of our SEC reporting obligations as of
December 15, 2006. Pricr to joining Photon Dynamics, Mr. Schradle served as the Vice President, Operations and
CFO of a fabless semiconductor company, Micro Linear Corporation. Mr. Schradle joined Micro Linear in July
2000 as Vice President, Finance and CFO: and in October 2002, he was also named Vice President, Operations.
Prior to joining Micro Linear, Mr. Schradle was a consultant from January 2000 to July 2000 for David Powell,
Inc.’s Financial Services Division, which provides interim CFQ support to emerging companies. From Janvary 1998
to January 2000, Mr. Schradle was CFO of Arithmos, Inc., a semiconductor company. Prior to joining Arithmos,
Mr. Schradle held various financial executive and management positions in high-technology companies including
Intel Corporation, Daisy Systems, and Raychem Corporation. Mr. Schradle holds the degrees of Bachelor of
Science in Physics from Stanford University; Master of Science, Engineering from University of California, Los
-Angeles (“UCLA”); and a Master’s of Business Administration from the UCLA Anderson School of Management.

Steve Song has been our Vice President, Worldwide Sales since November 2003. From August 1998 to
November 2003, Mr. Song was our Vice President of Sales. Mr. Song joined us in April 1994 as our South Korean
sales and support manager. He was promoted to director of South Korean operations in August 1995 and established
our Korean subsidiary. Mr. Song received a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering from Korea University in Seoul,
South Korea.

Mark Merrill has been our Vice President, Marketing since July 2004. Mr. Merrill joined Photon Dynamics
from KLA-Tencor, Corporation, a semiconductor capital equipment company, where he was employed from 1990
to 2004 and assumed increasing levels of responsibility culminating in his appointment as the company’s Chief
Marketing Officer. In addition to his affiliation with KLA-Tencor Corporation, from 2001 to 2002 Mr. Merrill was
vice president of Product and Market Development, Inc., a consulting firm, where he consulted with venture capital
firms and their start-up companies in multiple industries. Previously, Mr. Merrill also was an applications and
software engineer at Ultratech Stepper, Inc., a semiconductor capital equipment company. He holds a B.S. degree in
Electronic Engineering, from Maharishi International University and attended the Stanford/AEA Executive
Institute at Stanford University.

Ttem 1A. Risk Factors
We have sustained losses and we may sustain losses in the future,

Although we reported net income for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2004, we have reported a
net loss for each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2005, 2003 and 2002. In the future our revenue may
decline, remain flat or grow at a rate slower than expected. We are currently expecting lower levels of bookings and
revénues in our first quarter of fiscal 2007 due to recently announced factory investment delays by our customers, as
discussed in Part 11, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condmon and Results of
Operauons in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

N

Our ability o achieve and maintain proﬁtabllny is dependent in part on the success of our efforts to increase
revenues and to reduce operating expenses as a percentage of revenue through our ongoing cost-cutting measures
and our gross margin improvement programs. Although we expect the current oversupply in the flat panel display
market to correct itself and our customers to resume increasing manufacturing capacity, if demand for our products
is not sustained and we do not react quickly to reduce discretionary and variable spending, this would impair our
ability to achieve profitability on a going-forward basis. For all of these reasons, there is no assurance that we will be
successful in achieving or maintaining increased revenue, reduced operating expenses, positive cash flows or
proﬁlabi]ity.

Our operating results are difficult to predict and may vary from investors’ expectatwns which could
cause our stock price to fall.

. We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, significant fluctuations in our quarterly results,
Consequently, past financial results may not be indicative of future financial results. A substantial percentage of our
revenue is derived from the sale of a small number of yield management systems that ranged in price from
approximately $350,000 to $2.8 million in fiscal 2006. Therefore, the timing of, and recognition of revenue from,
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the sale of a single system could have a significant impact on our quarterly results. After we ship our products,

customers may reject or delay acceptance, which would adversely impact our revenues and our stock price. -
Moreover, customers may cancel or rescheclule shrpmenls and productron drfﬁculues could delay shipments.

e i P

" Other factors which may mﬂuence our operating results in a pamcular quaner include: -
i
. the timing of the recerpt of orders from major customers

. -the delay or extension of firm orders;".~ . "+
[ ! PO PR T T [
. the receipt of final acceptance on new products; o

* our product mix; A ' 2"

N - [l
] . . R

. competmve prrcmg pressures e
* our ability to obtain components from our single or limited source suppliers in a timely manner;

* our ability to effectively implement our strategy of domestic and ofishore manufacturing;
) - R ST R P s S
» global economic uncertainty; AL

+ changing international economic conditions;

: .
» the outcome of the appeal of litigation with a former executive officer;
. worldwrde polmcal mslabllrty, )

« our ability to desrgn manufacture and introduce new roducts on a cost-effective and umel basis;
Y |y y

s the delay between expenses to further develop marketing and service capabllmes and the realrzauon of
benefits from those improved capabilities; and,

« the introduction of new products by our competitors. .

- Our operating results also could be affected by sudden changes in custoier requirements, currency exchange:
rate fluctuations and other'economic conditions affecting customer demand and the cost of operations in the global
markets in which we do business.’As a result of these or other factors, our operating results could be Significantly
and adversely affected and our stock price could decline.-In addition, it is possible that in some future quarter our
operating' results may be below the expectatrons of publrc market analysts and investors, which could cause our
stock pricé to- fall ' - e ’

ol ° o L
., [ "

If our products experience performance, reliability or quality problems, our customers may reduce their
orders.

‘We believe that future orders of our products w1ll depend in part on our ablhty 1o sausfy the performance,
reliability and quality standards required by our customers. Particularly as customers seek increased yields, greater
throughput and higher quality end products, we must continually redesign our products to meet the needs of our
customers. As with the introduction of any new product, our products may experience design and reliability issues.
For example, our original Generation 7 ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver™ systems required longer than anticipated
timé periods to bring them to full production due to-design and reliability issues experienced by some of our
customers If our products have performance reliability or quality problems then we may expenence

°

. delays in recervmg final acceptance Wthh in lum delays recognmon of the assoc1ated revenue;

" » delays in collecting accounts receivable;

* reduced orders;

oo o e v

. addmonal warranty and servrce expenses; and
- P

< « higher manufacturmg COsts.
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If we are unable to.meet the technological, performance and reliability requirements of our customers, our
revenue may decrease and our business could be harmed. ‘

In addition, we typically providé a limited warranty on our products for a period of one year from final
acceptance by customers. Warranty claim experience may, at times, exceed the estimated cost of warranty coverage
we record in our warranty provision. For example, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we agreed to replace two of
the four original Generation 7 ArrayChecker™ test systems purchased by one customer with a newer version of our
Generation 7 test systems under our warranty coverage of the purchased systems. Even though all four original
Generation 7 systems have been in’ full production, reliability and uptime issues have impacted the production
capability of the fabrication lines in which they operate. The expected replacement of these systems resulted in
additional warranty charges of approximately $3.0 million in the quarter ended September 30, 2006. Although we
believe the problems associated with the two array test systems scheduled to be replaced were fixed in subsequent
versions of our Generation 7 test systems, we may experience additional warranty costs on other products that are in
excess of our estimated warranty costs. In the future, we may incur substantial warranty claim expenses on our
products and actual warranty claims may exceed recorded provisions, resulting in harm to our business.

]

Capital investment by manufacturers of flat panel dasplay products can be highly cyclical and may decline
in the future.

Our business depends in large part on capital expenditures by manufacturers of flat panel display products,
which in turn depends on the current and anticipated market demand for the end-products in that industry. The
market for flat panel display products is highly cyclical and has experienced periods of oversupply resulting in
significantly reduced demand for capital equipment. In the last half of calendar year 2005, market indicators
showed that AMLCD consumer demand rose and continued rising into calendar year 2006 as a result of
significantly reduced panel prices. However, at the end of the first half of calendar year 2006, we once again
saw an oversupply, causing manufacturers to respond by scaling back factory uullzatlon rates and droppmg panel
average selling prices, which have eroded the manufacturers’ profits.

If the flat panel display markets in which we sell our products experience further stowdowns in the future, as
we are currently experiencing in the first half of our fiscal 2007, it could cause our revenue to decrease significantly.
We do not control the timing or volume of orders placed by our customers. Whether and to what extent our
customers place orders for any specific products, as well as the mix and quantities of products included in those
orders, are factors beyond our control. Insufficient orders will result in under-utilization of our manufacturing
facilities and infrastructure and will negatively affect our operating results and financial condition. In addition, the
need to invest in the engineering, research and development, and marketing required to penetrate targeted foreign
markets and maintain extensive service and support capabilities limits our ability to reduce expenses during these
downturns.

We depend on sales to a few large customers in the flat panel display industry, and if we lose any of our
large customers our revenue could decrease significantly.

The flat panel display industry is extremely concentrated with a small number of manufacturers producing the
majority of the world’s flat panel displays. If one or more of our major customers ceased or significantly curtailed
their purchases, our revenue could drop significantly, We may be unable to replace sales to these customers. Sales to
our greater than 10% customers in the last three fiscal years is as follows: our top three customers accounted for 76%
of our revenue in fiscal 2006; our top five customers accounted for 67% of our revenue in fiscal 2005; and our {op
four customers accounted for 72% of our revenue in fiscal 2004, None of our customers have entered into long-term
purchase agreements that would require them to purchase our products

We rely upon sales of a limited range of products, and if demand for one product decreases for any
reason it could cause our revenue to decline significantly.

Ali of our revenue is expected to come from a limited range of products for the flat panel display industry. Asa
result, we are solely reliant on the flat panel display industry. Any decline in demand for, or. failure to achieve
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continued market acceptance of, our primary products: or any 'new version: of these products could.harm our
business. Continued market acceptance of our array test and array repair products is critical to our success.

We generate revenue from the sales of our ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver test and repalr equrpment our
PanelMaster™ inspection equipment, and customer support, which includes' thé sales of spare parts.'On’ Novem-
ber 16, 2006, we announced that while we will continue to support the citrrent installed base of our PanelMaster™
product line, we are discontinuing the product line and will no longer pursue new busmess for PanetMaster™
systems, upgrades or enhancements. Introduced at the end of fiscal 2004, adoption of our inspéction équipment was
slower than we expected. Revenue from our PanelMaster™ products represented approximately 6%,6% and 0% of

total revenue in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respecuvely and was not con51dered one of our pnmary products.

However ‘the d1scont1nuat10n of ¢ our PanelMaster product Tine mcreases our dependence on’ sales of our
‘ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver ‘product’ lines and’ further limits'out range;of products In' addmon, whrle we
will continue to support installed PanelMaster™ systems, our relationship with PanelMaster™ customers' may be
harmed by our decision 1o discontinue upgrades and enhancements to the product.line, which may affect future
orders of our ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver™ systems.

N 'Jn v S bproe T g of 0 at e VT T

‘We may.not be able to develop and introduce, new products that _respond to_evolving industry requirements
ina timely manner, which could reduce our abduy to compete e[fecnvely

3

Thi "iHarkets for ‘our products aré* characierizéd by’ rapldly'changmg technologies and’ frequent T few iproduct
introductions. The failure to develop new products and introduce them ‘successfully and’in a-timély manner could
harm our compenuve position and results of operations. We believe that our future success will depend in part upon
our abrllty o contmue,to enhance our exrstmg products g and to develop ancl manufacture new products, For example,
the 51ze of glass plates for flat panel drsplays and the resolutlon of ﬂat panel dlsplays have changed frequemly and .
may contmue 1o change Jrequiring us to rede51gn or reconﬁgure our flat panel dlsplay products . W et

e We expect to contmue to'ificur srgmﬁcant Tesearchanid developrnent costs: There can be fio assurance that Wé
willibe successful iii theé introduction, marketlng and’ 'COst- efféctive hanufatture of any of dur new products, that we
Will be' able o' timiely ‘develop énd- ‘iftroducé fiew products and-enhance-our'existing’ products and’ processcs o
satisfy customer needs or achieve market acceptance, of’ “that the new markéts for which we aré déveloping new
products, or expect to sell current products will develop sufficiently. . . .. - o e

In addition, we depend on close relationships with our customers and, the willingness of those customers to
share information with us, and the failure to maintain ‘these relanonshlps could harm our product development
efforts. : et .o .

N L
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If we are not able to obtain critical components from oiir single or limited source suppliers, we may
experience significant delays in producing our 'products, which'could decrease our revenue for an
extended period of time. R oo

We obtain some equipment for our systems from a single source ora Ilmlted group of suppllers For example,
we currently obtain material handling platforms, certain laser assemblies and Certain pellicle products from single
source suppliers. Although-we seek-to reduce dependence on sole and limited source suppliers; alternative sources
of supply for this equipment remain.unavailable or may only be available on unfavorable terms. The partial or
complete loss of our sole and limited source supphers could srgmficantly delay our sh1pments or otherwrse harm our .
results of operations and damage customer relauonshlps Furthier, a Significant increase in the price of oneé or more
of. these pieces of équipment by-a:single-or:limited source supplier-could harm our results of-operations. i

AII of our revenuelis-derived from sales to.companiesilocated outside the United States, which: exposes us
. torisks.that we would not experience withhdomestic sales: . a7 R .\‘

We expect sales to customers in foreign countries to continue to represent 100% of our revenué in the
foreseeable future A number of factors. mayradversely'affect* our international sales and opérations, including:
i

iy N i : e e A3 St d
Y - polmcal mstablllty and the p0551b111ty of hostrlmes lerronst altacks or war, '

# 0 r ERRST TELFRYY L T |

1 e .imposition oflgovemmental controls; . . ridel i "mr ot 3 D R [ P L (XU I &
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* fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates; . r
« export license requirements; '
* restrictions on the export of technology; ‘
» limited foreign protection of intellectual property rights; . -
. trade restrictions;

. penodlc or local international downturns;

* decreases in productlvny temporary plant shutdowns or infrastructure service dlSl’l.lpllOl‘lS resulting from
widespread health alerts m(_:ludmg Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”) and warnings of an Avian
Flu pandemic;

changes in tariffs; and " ~3*.

« difficulties in staffing and managing international operations.

If any of these factors occur, our bperating results and revenue could be materially and adversely affected.
Our ability to efficiently and effectively implement our strategy af usmg both damesnc and offshore.
.manufacturing may impact our profitability.

s

Our ability to successfully compete in our current markets may be determined‘ in‘part by our ability to
efﬁ(:lently and effectively implement our strategy of using both domestic and offshore manufactunng 'Our offshore
‘manufacturing facilities may at timés create excess capacity in our domestic manufactunng facilities which may in
turn cause an increase in costs due to the under-utilization of our San Jose facilities. If our offshore manufacturing
strategy is successful, we may increase our offshore capacity and move additional manufacturing offshore. An
expansion of capacity overseas may cause.us to reduce or realign our domestic manufacturing capacity. If we are
successful in executing our offshore manufacturing strategy, it may result in asset impairment charges by creating

‘excess capacity in our domestic manufacturing facilities.

In addition, a number of factors may adversely affect our international manufactufing operations, including:

K polmcal mstablhty and the possibility of hostilities, terrons[ attacks, or war; - .

[ A St r oy

* imposition of govemmemal controls,

» fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates;
* limited foreign protection of intellectual property rights; EE -
= trade restrictions,

« periodic of local internatiohal downturns;
- . ! fon 1 .
* decrecases in productivity, temporary plant shutdowns or infrastructure service disruptions resulting from
-wndespread heaith alerts including SARS and .warnings of an Avian. Flu pandemic; and
o . dlfﬁCUl[lBS in'staffing and managing mlemanonal manufacturmg o e

“t

If any of these factors occur, our operating results and revenue could be materially and adversely affected.

Any failure of, or other problems at or with, our third party manufacturers could delay shipments of our
flat panel display products, harm our relationships with our customers or otherwise negatively impact our
business.

We use a wide range of materials in the production of our products, including custom electronic and
mechanical components, and we use numerous suppliers to supply these materials. If any third party that we use to
manufacture our products is unable to sathfy our quality requirements of prov1de us with the products'and services
in a timely manner, our shipments of these products may be delayed, our customer relationships may be harmed and
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our results of operations may be adversely impacted. There can be no assurance that our Telationship with any third
party that we use to manufacture our products will result in a reduction of our expenses or enable us to satisfy our
customers’ qualuy requirements or, to deliver our products to our customers 1n a timely manner.

If we do not compete effectwely in our target markets, we wrll lose market share .
The markets for yield management systems in the flat panel dlsplay industry are highly competitive. We face
substantial competition from established competitors that have greater financial, engineering and manufacturing
resources than s and have larger service organizations and long-standing customer relationships. Our competitors
can be expected to continue to improve the design and performance of their products and to introduce new products
with competitive price and performance characteristics. Competitive pressures may force price reductions that

could harm our results of operations. Our customers may also develop technology and equipment that may reduce or
eliminate their'need to purchase our products.. Although we believe we have certain technological and other
advantages over our competitors, maintaining and capitalizing on these advantages will require us to continue a
high level of investment in‘engineéring, research and development, marketing and customer service support. There
can be no assurance that we will have sufficient resources, to continue to make these mvestments or that we wrll be
able to make the technologlcal advances necessary to maintain our competrtrve advantages

Our success depends in large part on the strength of the actwe matm: hqmd crystal drsplay in the flat
panel display industry. -

While our technology is applicablé to other flat panel display technologies, our experience has beén focused on
applications for active matrix liquid crystal displays, the most-prevalent and one of the highest performance flat
panel displays‘available today We derive 100% of our revenue from flat panel display products, substantially all of
which were based on the active matrix liquid crystal display technology. An industry shift away from active matrix
liquid crystal d1splay technology to existing or'new ‘competing technologies could teduce the demand for our
existing products and require significant expenditures' to develop new products, each of which'could harm our
business. For example if the émerging AMLCD Television market has a significant shift- to 'plasma technology,
LCD manufacturers fab plannrng and Photon Dynarmcs busmess would be negatrvely |mpacted
. ' ' it . ot

We may have difficulty mtegmtmg the busmesses or assets we ‘have acquired and may acquire in the
future, and we may not reahze the benefits that we expeet from these acqmsmons _

Irt addition to our effons to develop new technologles from internal sources, we also may seek o acquire new
technologies from external sources. As a part of this effort, we may make additional acquisitions of, or significant
investments in, businésses with complementary products, services and/or technologres Integrating a business can
bea complex time- consummg and expensive process. If we are not able to do so effectively, we will not be able to
reallze the benefits that we expect to receive from enther our past or future acqursmons For edch acquisition, we
must mtegrate separate technologres product lines, business cultures and practices, employees and systems.
Acqursmons are sub}ect to numerous nsks mcludmg

I

" » difficulty in the assimilation of the technologies and products of the acquired company; - K
* entering markets in which we have no or limited direct prior experience;
* loss of key customers of the acquired company;

= diversion of management resources from the busmess of the combmed company;

s
.. .

e mcompatrl:uhty of busmess cultures or practrces
» loss'of key employees of the acqu1red company, T o

.+ costs and delays in 1mplement1ng common systems and procedures

‘s potentral rnefﬁcrencres in déliveririg serv1ces to the customers of the combined company; and

*

pe assumptron of unknown or undisclosed lrabrlltres.
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Any of these d1fﬁcult1es could-increase our operating costs or-result in 1mpa1rment of purchased assets, which
could harm our ﬁnancral PerfOrmMance. ! vt wi 5 e fiie, T DSt Lo ade Lt i D o
I Lagr 0 A S I T Ay o e S LI e Y R

In addition, we may ‘also elect to change our stfateglc direction and rﬁay no longer have need for the acquired

businesses or technologies. For example, :n 2004 we detennmed not to pursue new, busmess for RTP Systems

acquired in November 2002 "To' the third quarter 'of fiscal 2004, wé sold all Yof ¢ our assets Yelated t0 our TFT-LCD
backlight;invertersbusiness; acquired in Séptember 2002. 1n. 2003, we exited the printed  circuit. board assembly
inspection-and the,cathode,ray tube display and high,quality glass mspectron businesses. As a result, some or all of
the technologies acquired in connection with certain .of our,. prior..acquisitions have been abandoned. Future
acquisitions may also result in potentially dilutive issuances of £quity securities, incurrence of debt and contingent
liabilities and amortization expenses related-to.agquired intangible assets, which.could harm our profitability.

v
[
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Comphance with:new reporting requtremems may strain our resources and we may be unable to o

¢ -implement in a timely' manner additional finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls in the
. future to satisfy new reporting requirements, which could cause our stock price to fall..... . = . !

C ,
Puisuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 we afe requrred to perform an evaluanon‘gf gl?r
internal control over ﬁnancml reportmg and hdve our mdependent regtstered publ1c accounting firm publicly attest
to such evaluation, as drscussed in Part 11, Item 9A. “Controls and Procedures in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
During each of thé fiscal § Years 2005, 2004 and 2003 we'had oné or tore matéridl Weaknéssesin our internal contro)
over financial reporting. We have successfully remediated each of these control weaknesses: However, there is no
guarantee: that. our internal control over financial reporting will continue to be Jadequate, to.provide reasonab]e
assurance, regardmg the rehabrlrty of .our ﬁnancral reportrng and the preparatron of .our. financial- statements in
accordance with generally accepted accountrng standards .or.that our. mdependent reglstered pl.lbllC accountmg ﬁrm
wrll concur with our assessments in the future; Preparatlon for and compliance with these requirements 'has been,
and we expect it will continue to be, expensive,and trme-consummg Due to the pumerous material weaknesses in
the past that we have remedrated our compliance costs have been partrcularly expensrve and time consuming. In the
future, if we are unable to complete the required assessment as to the adequacy of our mtemal control over ﬁnanc1al
reporting or if our.mdependent regtstered publlc accountmg firm is unable to provrde us with an unqualrﬁed report
as to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, we could be Sl.lb_]CC[ to further regulatory
5crutmy and a further loss of public confidence i in our mtemal control over. ﬁnancral reporung In addition, any
failure to 1mp|ement requtred new or 1mproved controls or d1fﬁcu|tres encountered in thetr lmplementatmn could
harm our operatlng results’ or cause us (o fa1] to meet our repomng oblrgatron  and p potenttally result in a decline of
our stock price. v, o Lo b b srmale i Lt o, e e

oy Pr '

We have prewously drsclosed matenal weaknesses ln our 1ntemaJ controls and addltlonally have restated both
our. fi scal. 2004 annual results of operauons and ﬁnanctal condmon and our quarterly results of operauons and

WL

_ﬁnancral condmon for both the ﬁrst and the thlrd quarters of ﬁscal 2005 Although we commrtted srgmﬁcant
resources to remedtate these weaknesses there can be no assurances that matenal weaknesses will not. occur in the
future. Accordmgly, to the extent these material weaknesses may reoccur m the future or new matenal weaknesses
may be found to exist, these material weaknesses may have'a srgmﬁcant negauve effect oni ‘ouit company and' our
results of operations, or result in.a failute to meet our reporting obligations...:: .. - iy ;1 o0
Our business could be harmed"if'w'é"fail t'b]}r:o"pié;-‘lyf'ﬁrb't'éct‘ our inteliectudl pr‘oj;ert)3 Pt
Our success depends largely on our ability to protect our intellectual property. Whilé'we attempt to protect our
intellectual property through patents, copyrights and trade secrets in the United States and other countries,-there can
be no assurance that we will successfully protect our technology or that compeutors will not be able to develop
similar technology independently. We cannot assure you that'thie claims'allowed-on any patents held by us will be
sufficiently broad to protect our technology against competmon from third parties.with similar technologies or
products. In addition, we cannot assure you that any patents issued to us ‘will not be challenged invalidated or
circumvented or that the rights granted thére-under will provide competitive advantages t us. Moreover, the laws of
some foreign, countnes do not protect 1 nteliectual property nghts to the Same extent as thel laws of the United States,
and we could experience various obstacles and hlgh cosis in protectlng our 1ntellectual property rights in foreign
countries, including South Korea, where we recently announced our lease of a new manufacturing facility. If we are
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unable to obtain or maintain these protections, we may not be able to prevent third parties fror using our intellectual
property. e L . -

We also rely on trade secrets, proprietary know-how and continuing technological innovation to remain
competitive. We have taken measures to protect our trade secrets and know-how, including the use of confidentiality
agreements with our employees. However, it is possible that these agreements may -be breached and that the
available remedies for any breach will not be sufficient to compensate us for damages incurred. T

Litigation may be necessary to enforce. or defend, agamst claims of intellectual property infringement,
which could be expensive and, if we lose, could prevent us from selling our products.

Llugauon may be necessary in the future 1o enforce our patents and other intellectual property nghls to protect
our trade secrets or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any litigation, regardless
of the outcome, could be costly and require significant time and attention of key members of our management and
technical personnel.

Our domestic and international competitors, many of which have substannally greater resources and have
made substantial investments in competing technologies, may have patents that will prevent, limit or interfere with
our ability to manufacture and sell our products. We have not conducted a’comprehensive independent review of
patents issued to third parties. Third partiés may assert infringement claims, successful or otherwise, against us, and
litigation may be necessary to defend against claims of infringement or invalidity. An adverse outcome in the
defense of a patent suit could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties, require disputed rights to be licensed
from third parties or require us to cease selling our products. Even successful defenses of patent sunts can be costly
and time-consuming. " s

We must attract and retain key employees and our management team and employees must work effectively
together to maintain and grow our business.

Our future success depends in part on our ability to retain ke)l/ personnel, particv.ilarly senior managémenl and
engineers. We also need to attract additional skilled personnel in significant areas of our business to grow. There can
be no assurance that we will be able to retain our existing personnel or attract additional qualified employees in the
future. We generally do not have employment contracts with our employees and do not maintain key person life
insurance on any of our employees.

1 . C b

Terrorism and international political instability may neganvely affect our operations.

1 ' ! t
The threat of {errorism targeled at the regions of the world in Wthh we do busmess increases the uncertamty m

our markets and may delay any recovery in the general economy, which could threaten our business. N

Increased international political instability, particularly resulting from the threat of terrorist attacks, and
further enhanced security measures as a result of the threat of terrorist attacks may hinder our ability to do business
and may increase our costs of operations. Such continuing instability could cause us to incur increased costs in
transportation, make such transportation unreliable, increase our insurance costs and cause international markets to
fluctuate. This instability could have the' same effects on our supphers and their ability to timely dehver their
products to us. If this international political mslablllty continues or inéreases, our busmess and results of operauons
could be harmed. T
Qur manufacmnng fac:lmes and our customers’ manufactunng Sacilities may be subject to d:smpnon
from natural d:sasters.

Operations at our manufactunng facilities are Sl.lb_]CCt to dlsrupuon for a variety of reasons, mcludmg work
stoppages, acts of war, terrorism, fire, earthquake, energy shortages, flooding or other natural disasters. Our
corporate and manufacturing facilities in California are located near major earthquake faults, which have
experienced earthquakes.in the past. Such disruption could cause delays in shipments of products to our customers.
We cannot ensure that alternate production capacity would be available if a major disruption were to occur or that, if
it were available, it could be obtained on favorable terms. Such disruption could result in cancellation of orders or
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business.

loss of customers and could seriously harm our-business. It could also significantly delay our research and
engineering efforts for the development of new products, most of which is conducted at our California facilities.

Operations at our customers’ manufacturing facilities are subject to the same disruptions-that may affect our
facilities. Any such disruption could result in the delay of scheduled delivery dates for products ordered by affected
customers, the cancellation of existing orders, and lhe delay of future orders, all of which could senously harm our

i b L N .. o B
gy v

We have exposure to various risks related to the 'regu!atory envifonment. .
We are subject o various nsks related 10 new, dlfferent inconsistent or even confllcung laws, rules and
regulations that may be enacted by legislative bodies and/or regulatory agencies in the countnes in which we

operate and with which’ we must c0mply

I
'

Computer vtruses may dlsrupt our operanons _
Desplle our network security measures, our products and servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins,
and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer systems and our ptoducts. Any such event

-could have an adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Additional Risks in Owning our Common Stock -

Our stock price may fluctuate significantly.

The market price of our common stock could fluctuate significantly in rcsponse to variations in quarterly
operating results and other factors, such as: '

* announcements of technological innovations or new products by ns or by our competitors;
"¢ government regulationé; .

. developments in péfem ox; 6&1e; plioi)‘érty rights; and .

+ developments in our relationships with our customers.

In addition, the stock market has in recent years experienced significant price fluctuations. These fluctuations
often have been unrelated to the operating performance of the specific companies whose stock is traded. Broad
market fluctuations; general economic condition and spec1ﬁc conditions in the flat panel display industry may
adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Same anti-takeover provisions may affect the price of our conunon stock.

Our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation .authorize our board of directors to issue up to
5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The board also has the authority to determine the price, rights, preferences
and privileges, including voting rights, of those shares without any further vote or action by the shareholders. The
rights of our shareholders will be subject to, and may be impaired by, the rights of the holders of any preferred stock
that may be issued in the future. These and other provisions contained in our charter documents and applicable
provisions of Californja law could serve to depress our stock price or discourage a hostile bid in which shareholders
could receive a premium for their shares. In addition, these provisions could make it more difficult for a third party
to acquire a majority of our cutstanding voting stock or otherwise effect a change in control of us,

We do not anticipate paying cash dw:dends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our Cdpltal stock and do not anticipate paying cash
dividends in.the foreseeable future. We have also agreed not to pay cash dividends under our current bank line of
credit, Instead, we intend to apply any earnings to the ‘expansion and development of our business.
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Item 2. Properties.

Information rcgardmg our principal properties at September 30, 2006 is as follows:

. U Location Type Pnncipal Use ‘ ._Footage Ownell'ship
San Jose, California . ... ... .. Office and plant  Manufacturing - 22,000 Owned

San Jose, California . .. ... ... Office and plant  Headquarters, marketing, sates, 128,520 Leased
- i administration, manufacturing, E .
: .+ research, engineering . -

Markham, Ontario, Canada. ... Office Sublet 50,000 Leased

Hsin Chu, Taiwan. .......... Office - Sales, service, marketing, . 10,236 Leased
administration, research '

We also lease office space for othér, smaller research, sales and service offices in several locations around the
world. In addition, in our fourth fiscal quarter, we entered into agreements to lease approximately 8,200 square feet .
of manufacturing space in South Korea beginning in fiscal 2007. Our operating leases expire at various times
through December 2010, with most having renewal options at the fair market value for additional periods up to five
years. Additional information on_these leases is included in Note 12 of the “Notes to Consolidated- Financialin +ee—mmmuie
Statements” in Part 1I, Item &. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”” We believe our properties are
adequately maintained and suitable for their intended use and that our production facilities have adequate capacity
for ‘our current needs. - :

Item 3. Legal Proceedings .

Photon Dynamics and certain of our directors and former officers were named as defendants in a lawsuit
captioned Amtower v. Photon Dynamics, Inc., No. CV797876, fited on April 30, 2001 in the Superior Court of the'
State of California, County of Santa Clara. The trial of this case commenced on April 3, 2006. On a motion for,non-,
suit, the court dismissed all claims against all directors on April 20, 2006. On May 5, 2006, as a result of jury verdict,'
Judgmenls were entered in favor of our Company and our former officers. The plaintiff, a former officer of the
Company, had asserted several causes of action arising out of alleged misrepresentations made to plalntlff rega:dmg
the existence and enforcement of our insider trading policy. The plaintiff had sought damages in excess of $6 million
for defendants’ alleged refusal to allow plamtlff to sell shares of our stock in May of 2000, plus unspecnﬁed
emotional distress and punitive damages. The plaintiff has the right to appeal the judgments. On June 30, 2006, the
plaintiff filed a timely notice of appeal. On July 28, 2006, the Court awarded us approximately $445,000 in fees and
costs. The award bears interest at the s[atutory rate of 10% simple interest per annum. Collection of the award W|l]
be stayed during the, plaintiff’s appea] of the verdict.

-

From time to time, we are subject to certain other legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordmary course
of business. Additionally, in the ordinary course of business we may potentially be subject to future legal
proceedings that could individually, or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our financial condition,
liquidity or results of operations. Litigation in general, and intellectual property and securities litigation in
particular, can be expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal
proceedmgs are dlfﬁcult to predict.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders during the quarter ended September 30, 2006.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Regzs:ram s Common Eqmty, "Rélated Stackholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of
Equiity Secunnes

Common Stock Market Price _ . :

rsel T SRR e e e Pt ildiaaiindhibaiuatuin. .
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “PHTN.” The following table

sets forth the high and low closing sales prices of our.common stock as traded on the NASDAQ National Market for

the periods indicated. o ot ‘ , :
;o C T o . -December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
Fiscal 2006 Quarter Ended | S 2005 2006 2006 2006
High. ... .oosvnn.. e e ..., 81926 $2272  $1975  §13.48
TLow . coee . 81674 $1747 $1252°  $1030
e ‘ - Decernber 31, ' March 31,  June'30,  September 30,
Fiscal 2005 Quarter|Ended ' ) L L2004 . -, . 2005 005 2005 .
High" . .... LA s2a00 92552 52200 $24.67
Tow e SIBTT SI8TS S1747 s178a

The closing price for our common stock as reported by the NASDAQ National Market on December 1; 2006
was $10.88 per share. As of December 1, 2006, there‘were approximately 142 shareholders of record of our
common stock.

' We have never declaréd- or paid any cash dividends to our shar¢holders and we have agreed-not to pay cash
dividends under our current bark line of credit. We do not presently plan to pay cash dividends in the foreseeahle
fulure -and intend to retain any future earnings for reinvestment in our business. :

1 *

On August 21, 2006 our Board of Directors approved astock repurchase program authonzmg us to repurchase
up to a maximum of 1.1 million outstanding shares of our common stock The repurchases have been and will be
made from tlme to nme on the open market at prevallmg prices and in negotlated transactions off the market as
Amanagement deems appropnate We do not repurchase our shares durlng any period in which we are in possession
of matenal non-pubhc information. The purchases are funded from avallable worklng capital, and the repurchased
‘shares will be ret'lred or used for ongomg stock 1ssuances There is no guarantee as to the exact number of shares that
will be repurchased and we may discontinue purchases at any time management determines that additional
purchases are not warranted. The timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend on a variety of factors
including price, corporate and regulatory requirements and other market conditions. In fiscal 2006, we repurchased

the followmg shares under this plan TR ey s - : o
- oo et - Total Shares
AR TEE BT Sty . L R PR Average  !..Purchased- - Shares Yet
) L. ) . . . .. . Total Shares Price Paid - as Part to be Purchased
R et teo 4wk Papchased per Share - of the Plan ' Under the Plan
: T . . . C . 3 ~ o -
August 1 through August 31, 2006 .. .. ... 503,581 $13.17 . 503,58L . 596,419

September 1 through September 30, 2006 . . 26,020 $13.35 529,601 ) 570,399

4 o - ooy st e oy Y s LR
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data . PRI o
The following selected consolidated summary financtal data should be read in conjunction wuh Part 11, ltem 8.

“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” and with Part I, Item 7. “Management’s Discusston and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this. Annual*Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated
statements of operations data for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated balance
sheet data as of Sepiember 30, 2006 and 2005 are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this report. The consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended September 30,
2003 and 2002, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of September 30, 2004 2003 and 2002 are derived from
audlled consolidated financial statements hot mcluded in lhlS report.

In fiscal 2003, we discontinued operations in two busmess segments: the printed circuit board assembly
inspection business and the cathode ray tube display.and high quality glass inspection business. Accordingly, the
operating results of these businesses have been reclassified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. We
currently operate in one business segment: the manufacture and servicing of test equipment for the flat panel display
indusiry.

Year Ended September 30, .
2006 2005 .- i 2004 5 - 2003 - . 2002
(In thousands, except‘per-share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations: ' . .
Revenue........................... $172,872 $125,813 $141,870 $ 67,196 $ 49,342

Income (loss) from operations. .. ........ 1,412 (21 l6l) 6,860 (30.692)"' -3, 4()2'
Income (loss) from continuing operations <o e BT )

before discontinued operations . ....... 4,207(1) (19 567)(2) 11,085(3) ~(27,7800(4) 6 230(5)
Income (loss) from discontinued . )

OPErations. . . ... ‘ (127 . 256 (1,391 - (44,592)'  (28,032)
Net income (loss). .. .. . $. 4,080,  $(19311) | $ 9,694 . $(72,372)  $(21,802)

Income (loss) per share from continuing
operations before discontinued : o oo , . S )
operations: . - . o L e e

Basic . ....... .. .. .. oo § 0251 § (1182 .- 0.67(3)-'$ ALTH@S 0.39(5)
Diluted. ..o voeee e 5025 %5 (1Li6X2) 3 0.65(3) § (L73 §  0.37(5)
Income (loss) per share from dlscontmued . L ‘ s : T
operations: ' . : ’ a
Basic . ........... i $ (001 $ 002 S (008 S (277) 'S (1.76)
Dilited. . . . . . e "$ Oon S 002 ‘S (008 § (27N 5 (16D
Net income {loss) per share: ' N . . - i S . o . oo ;
Basic .......... P S5 024(1) $ (1.14)2) % --.0.58(3) $ (4.50)4),$ (1.37)(5)
Diluted. . ............. ... ... .... $ 024() $ (1142 S 0573 $ @50 $ (1.30)5)
2006 2005 2004 2003 ) 2002
{In thousands) ot
Consolidated Balance Sheets: .. S ) o - Gy , 1.
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term ' Voo ' iy
dnvestments. . .................. e $102,769  $ 93,026 ..$ 84,155 $116,469  $170,143 ,
Working capital . , ... . Cuoee..d 121411 0 116,488 ¢ 132,335 - - 125,624 - - 190,188 |
“Total 98Ses . v i i e 177,613 183,684~ 207,900 - 161919  -249,159
Other non-current liabilities ............... 119 1,008 1,528 " 193 1,465 "

Shareholders” equity . . ............ e 14-4,381 142,594 159,959 . 144,143 ..226,143

N i EEPPINENE £ ct I
(1) Includes- a restructuring charge of approximately $30,000 related to the restructuring of the Company’s. -
Markham, Canada location, an impairment charge of.approximately $81,000 related to the impairment of. .
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manufacturing capital equipment and charges for amortization of intangibles of approximately $1.5 million.
Effective October 1, 2005, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payments,” and as a
result, fiscal 2006 includes net stock-based compensation of approximately $4.1 million related to-our stock
option plans and our employee stock purchase plan. There were no comparable charges in previous fiscal years.

(2) Includes a restructuring charge of approx1mate]y $1.2 million related to the restructure of the Company’s
Markham; Canada location, an impairment charge of approximately $637,000 related pnmarlly to impairment
of manufacturmg Capital €quipment ang'Charges'for amortization‘of intangibles of apprommately $1.5 million:

(3) Includes a goodwill impairment charge of approximately $665,000, purchased mtanglble asset write-off of
approximately $2.1 million and property and equipment impairment charges of appr0x1mate1y $234,000, all
_ related 1o the suspension of the low-temperature poly- -silicon (“LTPS”) and inverter product lines; acquired in-
process research and development charge of approximately $210,000 in connection with the acquisition of
certain assets from Quantum Composers, Inc.; gain on fixed assets of approximately $427,000-related to the.
sale of the TFT-LCD Backlight Inverter Business, and charges for amortization of intangibles of approximately
$789,000. -

4y Includes a goodwill impairment charge of approximately $10.0 million related to the Akcron and RTP Assets,
purchased intangible asset write-off of approximately $3.5 million related to the Akcron and RTP Assets, and an
‘acquired in-process research and development charge of approximately $2.5 million related to the acquisition
of certain assets from Intevac related to Intevac’s Rapid Thermal Processing Division and the acquisition of
substantially all the assets of Summit Imaging, and charges for amortization of intangibles of approximately
$1.2 million,

(5) Includes an acquired in-process research and development charge of approxlmately $410 000 in connection
with the acquisition of Akcron. .

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11,
Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion
contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results could differ materially from those projected
'in the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors, risks and uncertainties. including the risk
factors set forth in Part I Item 1A. “Risk Factors,” and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Generally, the
use of words such as “may,” “will" “could,” “would,” “should,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “relies,” “expects,”
“intends,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue” or the negative of such terms, or other
comparable terminology and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. The information included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K is as of the filing date with the Securities and Exchange Commission and future
evenis or circumstances could differ significantly from the forward-looking statements included herein. Accord-
ingly, we caution readers not to pIace undue reliance on such statements.

Overview
Our Company

We are a leading provider of yield management solutions to the flat pane} display industry. Our customers tise
our systems to increase manufacturing yields of high performance flat panel displays used in a number of products,.
including notebook and desktop computers, televisions and advanced mobile electronic devices such as cellular
phones, personal digital assistants and portable video games. Our test, repair and inspection systems are used by
manufacturers to collect data, analyze product quality and identify and repair product defccts at critical steps in the: -
active matrix liquid crystal display manufacturing process. y
We generate revenue from the sales of our ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver™ test and repair equipment, our
PanelMaster™ inspection equipment and customer support, which includes the sales of spare parts. Our test and
repair equipment are used primarily in the Array phase of flat panel display ‘production, and our inspection

equipment is used primarily in the Cell Assembly phase of production. As discussed above, on November 16, 2006
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we announced that we are realigning our resources, resulting in the discontinuation of our PanelMaster™ inspection
products.

'We sell our products to manufacturers in the flat panel display industry. Our flat panel display customers are
located in South Korea, Taiwan and Japan, where flat panel display production is concentrated, and in China. We
derive most of our revenue from a small number of customers, and we expect this to continue for the foreseeable
future.

Qur products are primarily manufactured in ‘San Jose, California. Our manufacturiné activities consist
primarily of final assembly and test of components and subassemblies, which are purchased from third party
vendors. We schedule production based upon customer purchase orders and anticipated orders during thé planning
cycle. We generally expect to be able to accept a customer order bu1ld the required machinery and ship to the
customer within 20 to 36 weeks. -

In our fourth fiscal quarter, we entered into agreements to lease approximately 8,200 square feet of
manufacturing space in South Korea where we plan to begin limited’ assembly and in-house testing of certain
of our ArraySaver™ products as early as our second quarter of fiscal 2007. This action is intended to improve the
overall cost structure for the ArraySaver™ product line. Qur new offshore manufacturing program will be subject to
the risks discussed in the. risk factor “Our ability to efficiently and effecnvely 1mplement our strategy of using both
domestic and offshore manufactunng may impact our proﬁtab:hty,” in Part 1 Item 1A “Risk Factors” in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. We will monitor our manufacturing capacity needs “current ‘and ant|c1pa£ed demand for our
products, overall market conditions and other factors we consider relevant as.we attempt o unplemem our strategy
of using both domestic and offshore manufacturing. If we are successful in executing our offshore manufacturing
strategy, it may result in asset impairment charges by creating excess capacity in our domestic manufactunng
facilities.

' The overall success of our business depends upon numerous faétgr's, including, but not limited to:

* The level of capital expenditures of flat panel display | manufacturers, which in turn depends on the current
and anticipated market demand for products utlhzmg flat panel dxsplays and

* The relative competitiveness of our products and services.

We do not consider our business to be seasonal in nature, but it is cychcal with respect to the capital equipment
procurement -practices of flat panel display manufacturers and is impacted by the investment patterns of these
manufacturers in different global markets. We do consider consumer demand for flat panel display products to be
seasonal, with peak demand occurring in the latter half of each calendar year. This end-user seasonality has an
influence on capacity decisions by flat panel display manufacturers and has a limited influence on the flat panel
display manufacturers’ overall investment patterns. However, because new fabrication facilities and upgrades to
existing facilities represent significant investments and take tlme o lmplement we consider flat panel display
manufacturers to have cyclical investment patterns. ' b

" A substantial percentage of our revenue is derived from thé sale of a small ‘number of yield management
systems that ranged in price from $350,000 to $2.8 million in fiscal 2006. Therefore, the timing of the sale of a
single system could have a significant impact on our quarterly results,

‘ -

Focus on Flat Panel Display Industry

We have not always focused solely on the flat panel display industry. Previously, we also produiced printed

circuit board assembly inspection products and cathode ray tube display and high quality glass inspection products.

- However, we exited these businesses during fiscal 2003 as we believed that they did not have the potential to be

profitable for us. Accordingly, the operating results of these former businesses are reclassified as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. L.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2004, we suspended operations in the low temperature poly-silicon (“LTPS”)
technology and the inverter markets, ‘Although we did not-actively pursue new LTPS business opportunities, we
continued to support LTPS systems in the field with parts and service through March 31, 2005. Having compieted
substantially all our customer commitments, we wrote off the remaining assets associated with the LTPS technology

25




in the second quarter of fiscal 2005. In our third quarter of fiscal 2004, we sold all assets related to the mvener
business.

Qur transition to the singular focus on our core business of developing yield management solutions for the flat
panel display industry has given us a clear strategy and direction. Our management team has been focused on
several imperatives to support these objectives:

* Product Focus: 'We continue to improve our product performance in defect detection, repair success, cost
of ownership, ease of use and throughput for each of our product generatlons We seek to couple this
lmproved system perforrrlarlcc with our expert apphcatu)ns engineering services-to: prov1de the. best  possible
‘business solutions to our customers.

winloThela

* Quality Focus:  'We continue to implement processes to drive preduct quality improvement and ease of use
for our customers.

* Technology Leadership: We continue to emphasize our research and development to maintain our
technology leadership in our products.

» Financial Improvemeni: We continue our efforts to improve financial performance. To achieve these
goals, we will continue to look for vertical integration opportunities, source certain raw materials and certain

system integration in Asia, and expand sales and marketing of our service product offerings.
. SO :
Furthermore, we have focused additional resources to strengthen our reporting structure,” processes, and

corporate governance within our organization.
In fiscal 2007, we will continue to focus on the following key areas:

+ Continued investment in research and development, with a focus on Generation 10 producls and new repair
product applications;

+ Grow our service and upgrade revenue as a percentage of overall revenue;
= (Gross margin improvement;
« New product introduction execution; and

» ‘Reduce our overall operating expenses through continued emphasis on operational efficiency and discipline.

Acquisitions and Dispositions

In addition to our efforts to develop new technologies from internal sources, we also have acquired new
technologies from external sources.and may do so again in the future. For example we acquired the following
businesses and product lines with complementary products and/or technologies:

Acquisition of TORC Assets.  In August 2004, we acquired all of the assets of TORC related to the design
and manufacture of pellicle products used for our modulators. The purchase price was approximately
$1.3 million, for which we paid in cash and notes.

Acquisition of Quantum Composers Assets.  In June 2004, we acquired from Quantum Composers, Inc.
all of the assets related to the design and manufacture of laser assembly products for our repair product line.
The purchase price was approximately $3.0 million, for which we paid in cash and notes, and assumed
approximately $156,000 in liabilities. '

We also continue to refine our strategic direction and, as a result, no longer have a need for some acquired
businesses and technologies. In fiscal 2003, we exited the printed circuit board assembly inspection and cathode ray
tube and high quality glass inspection businesses. As a result, some or all of the technologies acquired in connection
with some of our prior acquisitions, including Intelligent Reasoning Systems, Inc., Image Processing Systems, Inc.,
and assets of Advanced Research Technologies Inc., have been sold or abandoned.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, as a result of limited opportunities in the inverter market and uncertainty
with regard 1o flat panel manufacturers’ commitment to LTPS technology, we performed an impairment analysis of
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the goodwill, purchased intangible assets and certain other long-livéd assets associated with the Akcron (a company

we acquired in September 2002) and RTP reporting units. As a result of this analysis, we recorded impairments and
ultrmately wrote off the rernammg assets associated with these busmesses '

o |~,_.'; O ' LI S ok

;. See Note 4 of our “Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements” in Part 11, Ttem 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” in this. Annual Report on FormJO—K for further- information. - ,
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Industry R T Co e

.- Continuous innovations in microelectronics and materials,science have enabled manufacturers, including our

customers, to produce flat panel dlsplays with sharper resolution, bnghter pixels and faster imaging in varying sizes
for differing applications. Growth in the mobile electronic devices market, the desktop computer market and the
television market have driven the:demand for flat panel displays,,which-offer reduced. footprint, weight, power
consumption and heat,emission and better plCtllI'e quality,.as compared to cathode ray tube displays; the current
standard, technology for televisions:, . . .. . ...

Gaov o VT o

Actlve matrlx 11qu1d crystal dlsplay (“AMLCD") i the'Most prevalent and one of the hlghest performance flat
panel dlsplays available today. The manufacture of active matrix liquid crystal displays is an extremely complex
process, which has been developed and refined for different substrate glass sizes, Each progressive increase in initial
substrate glass size is referred to by its “generation.”” Manufacturing an active matrix liquid crystal display involves
a series of three principal phases — the Array Phase, the Cell Assemb]y Phase and the Module Assembly Phase. At
vanous points in the rnanufactunng process the flat panel dlsplay manufacturer usés test and mspecnon equ1prnent
to ldentlfy defects to permlt repan and to avond wastmg costly matenals on contmued manufacturmg of a defective
product Our yield management products mclude our test and repair equtpment that are‘used pnmanly in the Array
phase of productlon “and our 1nspect10n equnpment ’that”is lised pnmanly in the Cell phase ‘of producuon e

oyt Kol . LIS b b M LI S B ]
. In the last half of calendar year.2005.,market indicators. showed,that, AMLCD demandrose and continued

rising into calendar year 2006 as a result of significantly.reduced panel prices. However, at the end:of the first half of
calendar year 2006, we once again saw.an oversupply. Flat Panel Disptay manufacturers had been ramping capacity :
in ant:c:panon that the World Cup soccer tournament would generate additional consumer demand to offset the

typtcal first half seasonal demand dip. Unfortunately the additional déménd‘didniot materialize’ Creatifig oversupply

‘and causing inventories to build. Flat-Panel- Dtsplay manufacturers responded by’ scalmg back fadtofy utilization

rates-and dropping panel average selling prices; which-have eroded the manifactirers’ profits. However in the last

half of calendar year 2006, industry sources show that we are seeing the anticipated upturn in seasonal’ consumer

demand from the television and information technology end-user market.

The recent inventory levels, combined with profitability issues, havé résulted in delays in Some, But not all, of
our customers, investment plans. In addition, the majority of manufacturers have scaled back their investment plans
for calendar year 2007 unnl they can evaluate teleVISlon manufactunng costs, holiday season demand and consumer
electronics market issues such as brand strength ‘and hlgh ~definition [programming formats and avatlablllty As a
result, we have expenenced both Iower levels of bookmgs due to factory investment delays. and lower revenuein our
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and we anticipate lower than. anttcrpated bookmgs and lower revenue to continue for
the next several quarters. In addmon delivery dates for certain.of our-current orders could be rescheduled into the
future by our customers to meet thelr demands However these investment patterns could change dramatically .if
current inventory levels decrease rapldly Industry forecasts show the current consumer market conditions 10 be
seasonal in nature and 1ncreasmgly driven by the fact that the mdustry is still in the’ early adopuon phase of LCD
televisions. Based on industry forecasts, we beliéve that demand for cur Generation 7 test and repair equipment will
increase as the market works through the current. oversupply and pricing issues. In addition, we have installed our
first Generation 8 systems which are now helping one of.our customers ramp their: factory o full production...

Growth in the AMLCD television market is expected to continue to fuel the overall growth in the flat'panel
display market. While there is a.current oversupply :in the.market;. overall .consumer demand for AMLCD
televisions is .projected to.-accelerate during:the. latter.half. of calendar year. 2006. Overall,.-calendar :year
2006 ‘AMLCD television'panel demand is still forecasted'to be-roighly double that.of calendar year 2005. This
increased demand has been driven primarily by larger sized’ AMLCD televisions; and, in addition,.we have also seen
consumer demand formonitors increase and, as a result, we areiseeing an increase inipanel prices.. There are many
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factors that will dictate how successful AMLCD manufacturers are in penetrating the te]ev151on market, including
display performance, price reduction and the ability to maintain profitability. . L T

s

We believe continued growth in demand for AMLCD products will, in the long term, fuel investments in
Generation 6, 7 and 8 factories to keep pace and that test and repair systems will continue to represent a $ignificant
percentage of our customers’ capital spending, driving increased demand for out products and sefvices. In addition,

we have begun a Generation 10 product development program in anticipation of a move to Generation 10 substrate
glass (estimated to be 2,850 x 3,050mm in size) in the near future.

Customer adoption of our inspection equipment has been slower than we expected. Due to a continued decline
in demand for our PaneIMaster™ products, on November 16, 2006, we announced that while we will continue to
support the current'installed base, we are discontinuing the product line and will no fonger pursue riew business for
PanelMaster™ systems, upgrades or enhancements. The discontinuation of the PanelMaster™ products represents a
strategic realignment of our technical and financial resources, thus enabling us to focus on what we believe are more

profitable business opportunities . for .the:Company...dntroduced -atwthependgofafiscalu2004wreveniiewfromuotire~ -l
PanelMaster™ products represented approximately 6%, 6% and 0% of total revenue in fiscal 2006, 2005 and -
2004, respectively.

» i . - : +

Backlog:: . .. _
Yo i s st u,. ] SN e
Qur backlog cons:sts of unshtpped system orders uneamed revenue and systems in deferred gross margin. As
of September 30, 2006, our backlog was approx1mately $71 0, Jmillion, Compared to approxtmately $100.9 million

as of September 30 ZO%We expect to, shtpior. 1o, recogmz evenue on Ihe majonty of the September-2006 backlog i L

ERTET FIEN

: w1thm the next srxgo twelve{months All orders are subject tohdelay or cancellatlon w1th llmlted Qrno. penalty to the

customer. Because of possnble changes in product delwery schedules and cancellauon of product orders among
other factors, our-backlog may vary significantly and, at any particular date, is not necessarily indicative of actual

'saléS'for‘any‘suceeedin'g period. As noted above, we are currently expecting lower levels of bookings for the next

several quarters“due to recently announced factory investment delays by our customers ‘ '

KRR ' ' *

We recetved orders valued at approxrmately $30 7 million in the three months ended September 30, 2006, as
compared to approx1mately $44.2 million in the three months ended September 30, 2005. As.discussed abov_e, we
are currently, expecting lower levels of bookings for the next several quarters due to recently announced factory
investment delays. e ‘

e

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates |

ey . . PN

Our discission and analysis of our' financial condition and results 6f operations are based upon our
cotisolidated financial statements, which have been prepared’in accordance with U.S generally accepted-account-

ing principles. The preparation of our financial statémeiits and'the related disclosures requires our management 10

make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect ‘the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingént assets and liabilities. Note 1 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” included undér Part I1, Item 8. “Firiancial Statements and Supplementary Data,” in-this' Annual Report
on Form 10-K describes significant accounting policies' used in the preparatton of our consolidated financial
statements. Some of these srgmﬁcant accountmg pollc1es are conmdered to be critical accounting policies.
. o ' L B (4
A cnucal aceounttng policy is defined as'one. that is both material to the presentauon of our financial
statements and requires management to.make difficult,:subjective or complex judgments that could have a material
effect on our financial condmon and results of, operations. -, - . - ’

1Estimates and assumptions about future evénts and their effects cannot be determined with certainty. We base
our estimates on historical experiénce and on various other assumptions that are believed to be applicable and
reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates may changé as new events occur, as additional information is
obtained and as our operating environment changes. In addition, ‘management is periodically faced with uncer-
tainties, the outcomes of which are not within its control and will'not be known for prolonged periods of time. These
uncertainties are discussed in Part I, Itern 1A “Risk Factors™ in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. -
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We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used
in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. "+~ - -

Revenue Recognition ' : o i : B

-

Note 1 of our “Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements” included in Part I1, Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K provides a description of our revenue
recognition policy. For each arrangement for the sale and installation of equipment, we recognize revente when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred or the services have been rendered, the selling
price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured, the latter of which is subject to judgment. If

we determine that any.of these criteria are not met, we defer revenue recogmtlon until such time as we determine
that all of the-criteria-are met. .. - - . ‘ . '

In addition, for arrangements with multiple deliverables, we make additional judgments as 10 whether each
itern has value to the customer on a stand-alone basts, the amounts of revenue for each element that are not subject to
refund, that all defined customer acceptance experience levels have been met and the fair values of any undelivered
items have been reliably determined. < . C . 3 .

'We have a policy to record a provrslon for estimated sales retums m the same period as the related revenue 1s
recordéd, which is netted agalnst revenue. These estimates are based on historical sales returns and other known
factors which have not varied wndely in the past and we do not reasonably expect. these factors o srgnlﬂcantly
change in the foreseeable future If’ the historical data we use to calculate these estimates does not properly reflect
future returns, addltlonal provisions may be requ1red Hlstorlcally, we have ot experiénced the return of any of our
flat pane! dlsplay systems upon which we have recognized revente. Due to the relatively hlgh prices of our systems,
the return of one of these systems as a sales return would have a material adverse effect on our results of operatlons

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -

Our trade receivables are derived from sales to flat panel display manufacturers located in Séith, Korea,
Taiwan, Japan and China. In order to monitor potential credit losses, we perform periodic evaluations of our
customers financial condition. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for the potential mabrllty of our
customers to make requrred payments based upon our assessment of the expected CO“CC[lblllly of all accounts
‘ rece:va{ble ‘In estlmatmg the prov151on ‘we consider 1) historical experlence (11) the length of time the recelvables
are past due (111) any c1rcumstances of which we are aware regardmg a Customer 5 mablllly to meet its financial
obligations, and "(ivY other kilown " factors ‘We review this provrslon penodlcally to assess the adequacy of the
prov151on

0ur aliowance for doubtful accounts was approxnmately $406 000 and $ 153,000 at Septembér 30, 2006 and
2005 respectively. Thesé balances each represent less than” 1% of each ‘year’s accounts receivable balance. -
HlSIOI‘lCd“y, losses due to customer bad debis in our flat pane] drsplay business have been imimaterial, and 'we expect
that thls will not change in the foreseeable future. However, if a smgle customer was'dnable to make payments,
additional allowances may be requ1red Accordmgly, the mablhty of a smg]e customer ) make requrred paymcnts

could have d matenal adverse effect on our results of operattons e e
"J‘i .
- ~“ g . . -_‘ : - LI e - - * - -

‘ Invemones

- o . . o ' L T ‘ Y ’,

il The valuatlon of inventory requires us to estimate obsolete or excess'inventory and inventory that is not
saleable. The determination of obsolete or excess inventory requires us to estimate the future demand for -our -
products within specific time honzons generally twelve months or less. If our demand forecast for specific products '
is’ greater than actual dermand and we fail to reduce manufacturmg output accordmgly, we could be required to
record additional mventory write- offs Wthh would have a negatwe |mpact on our gross margin.

" +r'We review the adequacy of our lnventory valuation on a quarterly basis.” For production inventory, our
methodology involves maiching our on-hand inventory and non-cancellable purchase orders. with our demand
forécast over the next twelve months'on a'part-by-part basis. We then evaluate the parts found o be in excess of the
twelve-month démand and take: appropriate write-downs and write-offs to reflect the risk of obsolescence. This-
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methodology is significantly affected by the demand forecast assumption. Using:a longer time period of estimated
demand could result in reduced inventory adjustment requirements. Based on our.past experience, we believe the
twelve-month time period to best reflect the reasonable and relative obsolescence risks. If actual demand or usage
were 1o be substantially lower than estimated, additional inventory adjustments for excess or obsolete inventory

may be requ1red
Ly Lo T S I PR M L T A

" Warranty

- Our warranty policy generally states that we will provide warranty coverage for a period of one year from final
dcceptance. We record the estimated cost of warranty coverage, primarily material and labor to repair and service
the equipment when the related revenue is recognized. Our warranty obligation'is affected by product failure rates,

consumption of field service parts and the efficiency by which the product failureris.corrected. We estimate our
warranty cost based on historical data related to these factors.

Our liability for warranty coverage was approximately $8.1 million and $5.3 million at September 30, 2006

and 2005; respectively. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or labor efficiencies differ from our
estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability and related provision would be required. The increase in
warranty over pnor year is due primarily to our agreement with one customer to rep]ace two ArrayChecker™
systems under warranty In'the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we agreed to replace two of the four original Generation
7 test systems at one customer with newer version of our Generation 7 test systems Even though all four ‘original
Generatton 7 systems have been in full productlon rellablllty and uptime lssues have 1mpacted the production
capabthty of the’ fabrication lines in Wthh they operate. The replacement systems cost of approxrmately
$3.0 million has been accrued as wa.rranty expense in the quartér ended September 30 2006. Although we belleve
the problems associated with these two tools’ scheduled to be replaced were ﬁxed in subsequent versrons of our
Generation 7 test products, we may experience additional warranty costs on other products that are in excess of our
estimated warranty costs.

R LR L.,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets S v A PR nt

We have accounted for goodw:ll and other mtangtble assets resulung from our acqursmons in accordance wnh
FAS 142, which pl‘OhlbltS the amortization of goodwrll and intangible assets w1th indefinite useful lives and requires
that these assets be revtewed for 1mpa|rment at least’ annually and more frequently 1f there are utdtcators of
impairment. The process for evaluatmg the potenttal Iimpairment of goodwrll is htghly subjective and requirés
significant Judgment at many points dunng the analysrs Should actual reSUlts drffer from our estimates, revisions to
the recorded amount of goodwill could be reported.

. Weamortize intangible assets with finite lives and other long-lived assets over their estimated useful lives and
also subject them to evaluatton for tmpan‘ment We review long llved assets mcludmg mtangtble assets with finite
Tives for impairment whenever events or changes in. busmess c1rcumstances mdlcate that the carrymg amount of the
assets may not be fully recoverable suchas a srgmf cant mdustry downtum srgmﬁcant decline in the market valué
of the company, or srgmﬁcant reductrons in prolected future cash flows We would recognize an 1mparrment loss
when estimated undiscounted future Cash flows expected 1o result from the use of the asset and 1ts eventual
disposition is less than its carrying amount. We determine tmpatrment if any, using discounted cash flows. In
assessing the recoverability of long-lived assets, including intangible assets, we must make assumptions regarding
estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets. If these estimates or
 their related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record additional impairment charges for these

assets. | : ' LT : g P -

'Tn prlor years we have recorded Both goodwrll and intangible asset 1mpa1rment charges as part of our transition
to a singular focus on our core busmess of developmg yleld management soluuons for the flat panél display
industry. During’ fiscal quarter ‘ended December 31, 2003, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of approx-
imately $365,000 and an intangible asset impairment charge of $2.1 million associated with our Akcron reporting
unit-and the remaining intangible assets associated with our.RTP and Akcron reporting units. These charges were
reflected in our results of operations for the three months ended December 31, 2003. In-October 2003, we settled

-$1.7 million of the $2.0 million escrow. related to the purchase of-certain assets relating to the RTP Assets in our
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favor, and $300,000 was settled in favor of Intevac, resulting in an additional goodwill impairment charge of
$300,000 in the three months ended December 31, 2003.

Goodwill as of September 30, 2006, was approximately $153,000, related entirely to our purchase of assets
from Summit Imaging. Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, as of September 30, 2006 were
approximately $1.7 million, related to patents and acquired core technology resulting from our purchase of assets
from Summit Imaging in fiscal 2003, the assignment and license agreement signed with 1HI in fiscal 2004, the
purchase of Quantum Composers in fiscal 2004 and the purchase of Tucson Optical Research Corporation in fiscal
2004.

Stock-Based Compensation

We estimate the fair value of stock options using a Black-Scholes valuation model consistent wuh the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share- Based Payments”
(“SFAS No. 123R™), SEC Staff Accounting Bulleting No. 107 and our prior period pro forma disclosures of
net earnings, including stock-based compensation (determined under a fair value method as prescribed by
Stateinent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No.
1237). The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
options expected life and the price volatility of the underlying stock.

‘We determined the.expected stock price volatility assumption using the implied volatility of our common
stock. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we primarily used historical volatility in deriving our expected
volatility assumption. We determined that implied volatility is more reﬂecuve of market conditions and a better
indicator of expected volatility than a historical rate.

Contingencies and Litigation : ‘ o

We make an assessment of the probability of an adverse judgment resulting from current and threatened
litigation. We accrue the cost of an adverse judgment if, in our estimation and based on the advice of legal counsel:
the adverse judgment is probable and we can reasonably estimate the ultimate cost of such a judgment. We were
engaged in one significant litigation matter as of September 30, 2006 — Amtower v. Photon Dynam:cs Inc. On
May 5, 2006, judgments were entered in favor of our company and former officers. On June 30, 2006; the plaintiff
filed'a timely notice of appeal. On July 28, 2006, the Court awarded us approximately $445,000 in fees and costs.
The award bears interest at the statutory rate of 10% simple interest per annum. Coltection of the award will be
stayed during the plaintiff’s appeal of the verdict. This matter i$ described in “Item 3 — Legal Proceedings” in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. We believe that an adverse outcome in the appeal of the Amtower litigation could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Results of Operations . .

‘ : Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2006 2005 and 2004

IV A |
The following table sets forth, for the perlods 1ndlcated the percentage of revenue of certain. items in our

- Consolidated Statements of Operations.

L]

' : R Year Ended !
v S e . September 30,
' 2006 2005 2004
REVENUE . . v vvvveeerenen s PO e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenue . ... .. e e e e e 652 658 59.2
Gfosgmmgin.,_‘.,',,..,...‘..,_",,".,',..."',_,:.‘.;.'-.?__',‘__ ...... e 348, 342 408
Operating €Xpenses: ., ..« rwﬁwa eall e ','.'_: P L
.Research and developmentz..- N T T NP PR A 188 288, 20 9
Selling, general and admlmstratwe:-. L : s S 196 .- '»‘1'2_,5f,.. .
-Restructuring charge...... FARF IR a0 —
Goodwill impairment charge . . . . . e e SR e — 0S5
Impairment of purchased intangibles . . ................ ... — — 1.5
Impairment of property and-equipment .........¢............... 00 0.5 0.2
Loss {gain) on sale of property and equipment. ... ... ............ 0.0 7 (0.1) 0.3)
Acquired in-process research and development. . . . ................ ' —_ T = 0.1
Amortization of intangible assets. . ... ... ... . oo 0.9 1.2 . 06
Total operating eXpenses . .........«...-.... e .- 339 51.0 36.0
Income (loss} from operations. . . .. e e 09 (168)- 438
[nterest“mg:ome and other, net . 7", e S, e - 1.9 1.8 34
:Income ‘(lc.)ss) from contmumg operations before income taxes and
discontinued operauons. e s e 28 (15.0) 8.2
Provision for income taxes ... ..... A e e 03 _05 _04
‘Income (loss) from’ contmumg operations before discontmued operations .. - 2.5 (15.5) 1.8
Income. (loss) from dlsconunued operauons‘ cee e PP (0.1) 0.2 - (1.
Net income (10SS) . - « - .. .. SR A 24% (153)% 6.8%
Revenue
Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
’ {Dollars in thousands)
Revenue ................. $172,872 37%  $125813  $125,813 (11.3)% $141,870

Revenue increased 37% in fiscal 2006 from fiscal 2005 as our customers continued their expansion of
manufacturing capacity. However, as discussed earlier, the recent oversupply of end-user products has caused flat
panel display manufacturers to scale back utilization of existing capacity and to re-assess the timing of new factory
investments. This oversupply has resulted in delays in some, but not all of our customers’ investment plans, which
affected our fourth quarter revenues and will continue to affect our revenues in the next few quarters. The 11%
decrease in revenue in fiscal 2005 from fiscal 2004 was due to reduced capital expenditures by our customers due to
the impact of investments made by customers in 2004, which created an over-supply environment, primarily in the
first quarter of fiscal 2005. '

*
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We generate revenue from the sales of our ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver test and repair equipmeént,.our :

PanelMaster™ inspection equipment, and customer support, which includes the sales of spare parts. In addition, we
had limited revenue in fiscal 2004 from our Rapid Thermal Processing product line, which has been discontinued.

0

ArrayChecker and ArraySaver Product Revenue a

: ‘ . ! ' !
Fiscal 2006 v 2005 Our ArrayChecker and ArraySave test and repair equipment operate in the Array .
phase of AMLCD production and are built to handle the different generation sizes of substrate glass. Total revenue .
from our Generation 6 and earlier generation test and repair products represented approximately 35% and 84% of *
total revenue in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The period-over-period decrease as a percentage of total revenue
was due primarily to the shift in demand to our Generation 7 products among flat panel display manufacturers as
they move to a larger size glass substrate in the manufacturing process. Revenue from our Generation 7 products
represented approximately 50% of total revenue in fiscal-2006 with no corresponding revenue in fiscal 2005. Our .
products',in each new generation contain new performance:and control features designed specifically to enhance
yield improvement and process control. As a result,. historically we generally have experienced increases in our
average selling prices of between 20% and 50% in each new generation product. As with prior generation products, -
our Generation 6 and 7 ArrayChecker™ products have greater average selling prices than previous generations.
However, the average selling prices of our Generation 6 and 7 ArraySaver™ products were relatively flat as ;
compared to the prior generations due primarily. 10 a more competitive environment in the array repair market
There is no assurance that we will be successful at achlevmg or sustammg average se]]mg pnce increases on our
Generatton 7 and future generation products.

" i . . . . . Y

Revenue from our ArrayChecker™ products represented approximately 66% and 60% of our total revenue for *
fiscal 2006 and 2003, respectively. Revenue from our test products increased as a percentage of revenue primarily
due to'the varying levels of capital expenditures of our customeérs as they invest in manufacturing capacity, Wthh

resulted’in a higher mix of ArrayChecker products in fiscal 2006 as compared 10 flscal 2005
. b \ P . . 1 i T
Revenue from our ArraySaver products represented approximately 19% and 24% of tcta] revenue for f"tsca]
2006 and 2005, respectively. Revenue from our repair products decreased as a percentage of total revenue primarily
due to the higher mix of ArrayChecker™ products ordered.by our customers, . s .

I

.

Hevenué from our ArrayChecker and Ai'raySaver products mcludes revenue recogmzed at the time of
shlpment and revenue recognized upon final customer acceptance. Our sales térms aré typically 80% 10 90% of the
sales price due upon shipment with that portion of the remaining amount due after installation and upon final ,
customer acceptance. Revenue for fiscal 2006 included lower revenue related to the receipt of final customer
acceptances following completed installation of our products compared w1th fiscal 2005 both asa percentage of
revenue and in absolute dollar value.

h Fiscal 2005 v 2004: -Revenue from our Generation 5 and:.earlier generation test and repair systems
represented approximately- 34% and 53% of total fevenue in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease
in Generation 5 and earlier products as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to the increase in revenue from-)
our Generation 6 products as flat panel display, manufacturers moved to a larger size glass substrate in the |
manufacturing process and, to some extent, lower overall revenues. Revenue from our Generation 6 preducts
represented approximately 50% and 42% of total revenue in fiscal.2005 and 2004, respectrvely o

" Reventie fron our ArrayChecker products represented approx1mately 60% and 75% of total revenue for -
fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. Revenue from our test products decreased in absolute doilars prlman}y due to the |
reduced level of capital expenditures of our customers due to the absorption during 2005 of manufacturing capacity
brought online in 2004. Revenue from our test products decreased as a percentage of revenue due to the increase m
revenue from our repair products.

Revenue from our ArraySaver™ products represented approximately 24% and 19% of total révenue for fiscal
2005 and 2004, respectively. Revenue from our repair products increased in both absolute dollars and ‘as a
percentage of total-revenue partly in response to-the larger glass size processed in‘Generation 6 factories and due to !
the expansion of customer manufacturing facilities. The cost of yield loss associated with larger.panels is-driving !
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flat panel display manufacturers to increase the number of repair systems used in the manufacturing: process in an

effort to maximize yields. - PTIPARARTIT e : C
Revenue from our ArrayChecker and ArraySaver™ products for fiscal 2005 includes a slightly lower

absolute dollar value of revenue related to the receipt of final customer acceptances followmg completed

installation of our products compared with the prior fiscal year. However as a percentage of total revenues,
revenues related to receipt of final customer acceptance is slightly higher. - ..~ SR

- . Lo . N

]

PanelMaster™ Product Revenue R A ' ‘ Coa
. H . . ! ' o
Our PanelMasterTM inspection equipment operates primarily in the Cell Assembly phase of AMLCD pro-
duction, inspecting glass that has been cut down to the size of the needed application. As such, our PanelMaster™
product is not dependent on the initial glass substrate size and can function on either Generation. 6 or. Generano

[N/
fabrication lines. Consequently, we do not c1a531fy thls product line by generations. - ﬁ‘&% s

et T i
i Sﬁe— e r%\r‘t

F:scal 2006 v 2005 Revenue from SUr PanelMasterTM products represented approximately 6% of total
revenue for both fiscal 2006 and 2005. Our inspection ‘equipment was introduced in fiscal 2004 and the first *
production units were shipped in our fourth quarter of fiscal-2004. Because this was a new product line, we deferred
100% of the revenue until we received customer final'acceptance. The revenue recognized in fiscal 2005 represents '
certain systems purchased by one customer from whom we received final acceptance in our fourth quarter of fiscal
2005. - 7 o

T W . !

As dtscussed above due toa contrnued decline 'm demand for our PanelMaster™ products, on Noyember 16,
2006, we announced that while.we will continue to support the current installed base, we are discontinuing ﬂjé;.l
PanelMaster™ product line and will no longer pursue new business for PanelMaster systems, upgrades or
enhancements for this product line. R ‘

[ B N L Y S R 1 ¥ "‘-_ Ve
Fiscal 2005 v 2004: Revenue froin our PaneiMaster™ products represented approximately 6% of total:

revenue in fiscal 2005 with no corresponding revenue in the prior fiscal year. The revenue recognized in ﬁscal 2005

represents certam systems at one customer from. whom we recetved ﬁnal acceptance in our fourth quarter of fiscal.

2005. S o

TR Dbty L : . - t Lot
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Customer Support and Spare Parts Revenue

Fiscal 2006 yv2005: . Revenue from customer support and spare parts represented approximately 9% and 10%
of total revenue for fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. Although revenue was relatively flat as a percentage of total
revenue in both periods, revenue was higher in absolute dollars in fiscal 2006 over fiscal 2005 due in part tori

increased sales of service and spare parts as'we rncreased the 1nstalled ‘base of tools at cur customers facrlmes

Tt A ]

Fzsca! 2005 v 2004: - Revenue from customer support and spare parts represented approxrmately 10% and 5%
of total revenue for fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectwely The increase in absolute dollars was due in part to the

increased mstalled base of tools at our customers facrlrttes :

w 4 i v "
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Rapid Thermal Processing Revenue s

Revenue from our rapid.thermal processing products, which was based on the technology we acqurred in
November 2002, represented approximately 0%, 0% and 0.5% of our revenue for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, ..
respectively. The revenue reported: in 2004 .represented sales of upgrades to an existing product. We have ,
discontinued. this product line and do not expect additional sales or revenue in the foreseeable future. - .
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International Revenue ' ‘ . " Lo i : '

‘Revenue by region for the periods indicated was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, . © ., September 30,
2006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
LT 3 ‘

(Dollars in millions)

..................... $113.3 173% $ 415 §$ 415 3N% 3 685

JTaiwan ... L 41.1 . (23) 532 532 (13) 60.8
o dapan L 7.7 (55 - 17.0 - 170, 35 11.0
1. China .......... T B, 10.8 (24) 14.1 14.1 778 1.6

§1729  37% $1258 §$1258  (1)% $141.9
The changes in revenue from fiscal 2006 10 2003 and from fiscal 2005 to 2004 are a result of mé investment

patterns of flat panel display manufacturers, which in tumn depends on the current and anticipated market demand.
for products utilizing ﬂal panel dlsplayq

In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, we invoiced revenue of approxrmale]y $74 million, $19 3 million and
$10.4 mitlion, respectively, in currencies other than U.S. dqll'a‘rs' primarily Japanese yen.

LA LY

Revenue Outlook : . R A LA R S

. :We expect total revenue for the first quaner of fiscal 2007.to be between $15 and $20 million. As discussed
earlier, the recent oversupply in end-user products, combined with profitability issues at our customers has resulted
in delays in some of our customers’ investment plans, and may cause delays in deliveries of current orders, all of

’whlch will reduce our revenues.- As stated above, forward looking statements’ sich as these and the ones below
regarding our expected financial results for fiscal 2007 are subject to risks and uncertainties” Please see Part I,
Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for factors that could cause these forward looking
staiements to differ significantly from our actual results.

Gross Margin . S
< " " Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
. September 30, September 30,
2006. = Change' .. 2005 2005 Change 2004 .
 Gross Margin. . ............... . $60,101  40% . $43081 $43081  (26)% $57,901
- Percent of Revenue. . ........... 5% . 3% 3% ..., 4%

 Gross margins, as a percentage of revenues, remained relatwely flat in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005
and were primarily due to a higher mix of hlgher margin ArrayChecker systems offset by

¢ Lower revenue related to the receipt of final customer acceptances following completed installation, which

have higher margmq assocnated with this portion of the sales pnce as compared to the same penod in the
prior year;

. .
4 . Wt ' »i

* » Cosls associated with SFAS No. 123R for whlch there were no comparable charges in the same penod of the
- prior fiscal year; - :

+ An additional write-down of excess mventory in our third quarter asa result of anuelpated lower bookings
and revenues; . : _ T :
* A one-time warranty charge for the replacement of two of our Generation 7 ArrayChecker™ systems.
Gross margins, as a perceritage of revenues, decreased in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 primarily due
to:

A

1 -+ Higher percentage sales of lower-margin products, including our ArraySaver™" and PanelMaster™ products;
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* High warranty costs, higher rework costs and expedite fees incurred as a resuit of the execution issues
surrounding the production ramp up in our Generatlon 7 ArrayChecker™ and ArraySaver™ systems and in
our PanelMaster™ products;

* The under-utilization of our San Jose facilities; and

. lncreased manufactunng and support headcount and travel costs to support our growmg mstalled product
base. . . TR e ey

We anticipate that our gross margin as a percentage of revenue for our first quarter of fiscal 2007 will increase
slightly due to the expected change in mix of higher gross margin products. However, gross margins will be
negatively affected by costs associated with the under-utilization of our San Jose facilities in connection with our
expected lower first quarter revenues.

Key factors that may impact our future gross margins include:
* Qur.revenue mix between higher-rnzu'gin ArrayChecker™ systems and lower-margin ArraySaver™ systems;

+ The costs of increasing customer service staff to support potential increased demands from new and existing
Customers, Co )

« The additional costs in connection with inefficiencies of manufacturing newly introduced products;
. :,_gﬁ_(gmpetiti‘\{e,{pricing‘ pressures, particularly in the array repair market; .

P T
' i nes - Thé success Of our strategy of using both"domestic and offshore manufacturing as we begin limited
manufacturing of certain of our-ArraySaver™ systems in Scuth Korea;

. Reduced productmn levels as a consequence of either industry slowdown, order cancellations or rescheduled
* product shipmenits requested by our customers; and

+ Fluctuations in the level of revenue due to the cyclical nature of our customers’ capital expenditures:

Research and Development

. Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
" September 30, September 30,
. 2006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
7 ) . : (Dollars in thousands)
Expense . ‘ ......... S $ $32,420 (1 l)% - $36,275  $36,275 22%  $29,701
" Percent of Revenué. .. .......... . 19% 29% 25% 21%

Our research and development expenses consisted pnmanly of salaries, related personnel costs, depreciation;
prototype materials and fées paid to consultants and outside service providers, all of which relate to the design,
development, testing, pre-manufacturing and improvement of our products.

Our overall research and development spending decreased in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 in both
absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenue due to lower spending on our Generation 6 and 7 test, repair and
inspection product development programs and to savings from the restructuring associated with the closing of our
Markham, Canada location. This decrease in research and development expenses occurred despite the impact of
SFAS No. 123R in fiscal 2006, for which there were no comparable charges in fiscal 2005.

We increased our overall research and development spending in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 due to
more engineering programs in process to support simultaneous development of Generation 6 and 7 test and repair
products, and our inspection products. The increased costs related primarily to higher spending on prototype
materials and engineering headcount. : .

We expect our research and development expenses to increase slightly in absolute dollars during our first
quarter of fiscal 2007 as compared to research and development expenses of approximately $7.3 million in our

36




fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. Dunng ﬁscal 2007, we will continue our research and developmem efforts to address
the followmg areas: ! 4

. Focus on product enhancements and improving cost of ownéfship on our Generation 7. 7.5 and 8 products;

. Begm Generation- 10 product development programs and = .

+ Continue our reliability and cost reducuon 1n1l1at1ves

.

We will continue to invest in research and development to maintain technology leadership in our products. Our
customers must continually improve their display quality performance and production costs in order to be
successful in the display market. To meet our customers’ needs, we must improve our product performance in
defect detection, repair success, cost of ownershlp, ease of use and throughput for each of our product generations.’

oy o . .

Selling, General and Administrative . - ... i - )
C R : " -Fiscal Year.Ended ' - Fiscal Year Fnded
o L vt September 30, . September 30,
L2006 ,, . Change, . 2005 2005 » Change . 2004
(Dollars in thousands). ) oo
E_xpense .......... e $24.611 . (% $24,678 $24.678 39% $17,780
Percent of Revenue. . . . ... A 14% C20% T 20% T 13%

L2
Our selling, general and administrative expenses consisted primarily of salaries and related expenses for
marketing, sales, finance, administration and human resources personnel, as well as costs for auditing, commis-
sions, insurance, legal and other corporate expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expensés remamed relauvely flat-'in absolute dollars in ﬁscal 2006
compared to fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2005 costs included approximately $1.6 million of one-time-costs associated
with an internal investigation by our audit committee and resulting restatement of our financial statements for fiscal
2004 and’ the first quarter of fiscal 2005, which resulted in the filing of an amendment to our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for fiscal 2004 and our Quarterly Report on'Form 10-Q for the three month period ended December 31,
2004. Fiscal 2006 costs include costs associated with SFAS No. 123R for which there were no comparable charges
in fiscal 2005, B o ‘

‘Selling, general and administrative expenses were higher in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004 in both
absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenue due primarily to:

4

e

* Amounts spent on the internal investigation discussed above;

-+ Amounts spent on preparation work for compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; and
e L AR PR . , i
e Addmona] mvestments in marketmg .o - ' .
Ki . .

We expect our, sellmg,,general and admmlstratwe [expenses, in our ﬁrst quarter of ﬁscal 2007 to increase
sllght]y as compared to selling, general and ‘administrative expenses of appr0x1mately $3.8 m1111on in our fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006. : ,

3o - l"."nl..'

Stock Based Compensatwn 10

-

Effecuve October. 1, 2005, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payments.”
SFAS No. 123R establishes accounting for stock-based awards exchanged for employee services. Accordmgly,
stock-based compensation cost is measured at grant date, based on the fair value of the award which is computed
using the Black-Schales option valuation model and is recognized as expense over lhe employee § requisite service
penod C o e et ‘

We prev1ously applied Accoummg Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accoummg for Stock Tssued fo
Employees” and related’ lmerpretatlons and provided the reqmred pro. forma disclosures of SFAS No. 123
“Accounung for StockBased Compensation.” No employee stock- based compensation was reﬂected in net

.
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income/loss in fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2004, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the,
market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123R, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, our Board of Directors approved the
accelerated and full vesting of all unvested outstanding stock options to purchase shares of common stock of Photon
. Dynamics, Inc. that were held by current employees, including executive, officers, but excluding non-employee
members of our Board of Dlrectors "that had an exercise pﬁ'é'é" greater r than $25.00 issued under our Amended and
Restated 1995 Stock Optlon Plan and 2001 Equity Incentive Plan. Options te purchase 340,718 shares were subject
to this acceleration, which was effective as of September 1, 2005. The decision to accelerate the vesting of these
options was made primarily to reduce future financial impact to our results of operations, since after analysis it was
determined that the retention value of the underwater options was relatively small compared to the income charge to
continue vesting these options following the adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

We elected to adopt the modified prospective transition method as provided by SFAS No. 123R. Under that
transition method, compensation cost recognized in fiscal year 2006 incfudes: (a) compensation cost for all share-
based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of October I, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No, 123; and (b) compensation cost for all share-based
paymenlsigramed subsequent to Qctober 1, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with

“the provxslons of SFAS No. 123R.

During fiscal 2006, we recorded stock- based compensauon related to our stock option plans of approximately
$3.7 million, and compensation cost in connection with our employee stock purchase plan of approximately
$470,000: Approximately $408,000 of stock-based compensation was capitalized as inventory and deferred gross
margin during fiscal 2006. ‘

The compensation expense related to share-based payments is charged to cost of revenue, research and
development and selling, general and administrative categories based upon employees who receive the awards. The
following table summarizes the stock-based compensation expense in our results from continuing operations:

' k ) Year Ended
. . . September 30, ,, -
. ’ ‘ - ‘ 2006
. o ' : (In thousands)
- Stock-based compensation expense included in continuing operations:
Costof revenue . . . . ... .. e e e $ 401
Research and development . .. ........ ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... e 676
Selling, general and administrative . . ., ... S . L. e 3,002
Total stock-based compensation expense after income taxes(1) .. .. ... ........... $4,079

(1) The income tax benefit on stock-based compensatnon was not matenal

As of September 30, 2006, the unrecorded stock- based compensation balance related to stock options was
$3.0 million and will be recognized over an estimated remaining weighted average amortization period of 1.6 years.

Restructuring Charges

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, ' September 30,
B 2006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
. ' ) (Dollars in thousands)
CEXPENSE. . it $30  @N% S$1,197 SLI97T  10% $0
Percent of Revenue .................... 0%. 1% 1% 0%

[

In April 2005, we recorded an initial restructuring charge of approximately $676,000 associated with a
reduction in workforce and consolidation and closing of our facilities at our Markham, Canada location. The charge
was comprised of approximately $430, 000 for employee severance and related benefits as a result of planned
terminations of up to 32 employees and approximately $246,000 for contract termination costs associated with
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excess facilities. The charge for excess facilities relates to rent obligations under a long-term operating, lease
agreement for facilities we vacated in June 2005. This lease extends through October 2007 and the charge isnetof a
sublease agreement we entered mto in Apnl 2005

Under the restructuring plan,-certam employees were offered additional severance amounts and retention
bonuses to stay through either September 2005 or March 2006. We accrued charges for these benefits ratably over
the related service periods. We-recorded additional restructuring charges of approximately $521,000 through
September 30, 2005 and approximately $114,000 during the six months ended March 31, 2006 related to these
severance and reténtion amounts. The'fiscal 2006-charges were'partially offset by an adjustment to the liability of
approximately $84,000 related to bonuses riot paid.'All termination benefits were paid out by March 31 ; 2006 and
we do not expect to incur any additional restructure charges for lhe closure of our Markham, Canada locanon

R Tt . ' . ' L

* Under the.restructuring plan, we expect annual savings in salary and benefits-costs, amortization” and ‘Tent
expense of approximately $1.6 million'to $2.0 million per fiscal year, primarily in research and development‘ To
date, our actual savmgs have approxrmated our expected savings.

v e el e N " '
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Impairment of Goodwill, Purchased Intangibles and Property and Equipment . ‘

' T CO P T T . i LI . N
oo B S " Fiscal Year Ended - Fiscal Year Ended
: L " St e e w ., s JSeptember 30, |, | September 30,
(. . 2006 Change 2005 2005 :+ Change 2004

(Dollars in thousands}
» I’J- - .

EXPENSE . . oo B, $81 (81)% $637 $637  (79)% $2,988
PercentofRevenue:....‘.'...'..‘...'...'.'... 0% 0.5% " 05% . - 2%

f ” t . . LEL T L : e - el

In fiscal 2006 and 2005, we incurred tofal impairment charges of approxrmately $81,000 and $637,000,
respectively, consisting primarily of manufacturing ‘capital equipment that had no future use. In fiscal 2004 we
incurred total impairment charge of approximately $2.9 million, consisting of approximately $665,000 of goodwill
1mpa1rrnent charges, approx:mately $2.1 mllhon of purchased mtanglbles 1mpa1rment charges and approximately
$234 000 of property and equipment 1mparrmem charges. These charges were a result of suspendmg operanons of
the LTPS and inverter products ,

KR e [ S LT TR T ‘ 7
b o
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' Loss (gain) on Sale of Property and Equipment e,

A P L S A PR '

Fiscal Year Ended” * *  Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004

' (Dollars in thousands) ‘
LOSS (GAIN) .+« + v o eeee e $58  (162)% $(93) $(93) (78)% $(427)
Percent of Revenue ........ e 0% 0% 0% 0%

In fiscal 2006, we recorded anet .liclgss on sale of property and equipment of approximately $58,000 on the sale
of miscellaneous assets. ., o C .

In fiscal 2005, we recorded a net gain on sale of propeny and equrpment of approxrmalely $93 000 primarily
due to the sale of a demonstration system. .

L .o P A - R Y [TE—

In fiscal 2004, we recorded a net gain on sale of properry and equibmeni of approxfmafely $427,000, which
included the sale of our inverter business. In May 2004, we sold all of our.assets in South Korea related to our. TFT-
LCD Backlight Inverter business for.approximately $481,000. The:assets'included inventory and.production
equrpment intellectual property and some of ‘the employees related to'the inverter business. In the three months

ended June 30, 2004, we recorded a gain on the transaction of approximately $419,000. s L
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Acquired In-Process Research and Development

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, September 30, -

2006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
I i (Dollars in thousands)

Expense ........... R ... $0 0% ~-$0 $0 .(100)% $210
Percentof Revenue. . ...................... 0% . - 0% 0% 0%

We had no acquired in-process research and development charges in fiscal 2006 or 20035. In fiscal 2004, we
acquired from Quantum Composers all of the assets of Quantum Composers related to the design and manufacture
of laser assembly products for flat panel display LCD manufacturing and repair. The purchase price of this
acquisition was allocated in accordance with FAS 141, “Business Combinations,” including in-process research and
development charges that were expensed on the acquisition date as. they represented ongoing research and
development projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future uses.

«: Acquired,in-process research and development was identified and valued through interviews with executives

of the company from which the assets were acquired, analysis of data concerning developmental products and their
stage of development, the time and resources needed to complete the projects, their expected income generating
ability, target markets and associated risks. The income approach, which includes an analysis of the markets cash
flows and risks associated with achieving such cash flows, was the primary technique we utilized in valuing in-
process rescarch and development. We discounted projected incremental cash flows back to their present value
using discount rates of 30% for the Quantum Composers asset purchases, which was determined after consideration
of our weighted average cost of capital and the weighted average return on assets.

In-process rescarch and development related to Quantum Composers involved the design of the next
generation laser cutting/ablation systems for our LCD panel repair products. At the time of acquisition, the
project was approximately 75% complete, and was substantially completed by the end of fiscal 2004, with
additional incurred costs of approximately $25,000 to complete development.

Risks associated with our acquired in-process research and developm’en‘t include the inherent difficulties and
uncertainties- in completing each project and thereby achieving technological feasibility, ant1c1pated levels of
market acceptance and penetration, market growth rates and risks related to the impact of potential changes in future
target markets. The nature of the efforts required to develop the acquired in-process research and development into
commercially viable products principally relate to the completion of all planning, designing, prototyping, veri-
fication and testing activities that are necessary to establish that the products can be produced to meet their design
specifications, including functions, features and technical performance requirements. As such, the timing of
completion and ultimate commercial application are affected by the successful completion of these activities and
ultimately, market acceptance. :

Amortization of Inta‘ngi;ble Asse_té.

Y

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, ' September 30,
‘ 2006 Change 2005 2003 Change 2004
" : o o (Dollars’in thousands) '
Expense........coiiiinienan, $1,489 (4)% $1,548 $1,548 9%  $789
Percent of Revenue. ............. e 1% 1% 1% 1%

o v ‘ . .

Amortization of intangibles remained relatively flat in absolute doltars in‘fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005
as the intangible asset base remdmed relatwely stable in both years

‘The increase in amortization expense in fiscal 2005 compared to ﬁscal 2004 is due primarily to lhe additional
amortization associated with the intangible assets related to both the purchase of assets from Tucson Optical
Research Corperation and from QuantumComposers, both'of which were purchased in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2004. . . . o, .

LI i
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+ Based on intangible assets recorded at September 30, 2006, and assuming no subsequent additions to, or
impairment of the underlying assets, we expect our amortization to be approximately $1.2 million in fiscal 2007.

Interest Income and Other, Net

: . S .o " Fiscal Year Ended . Fiscal Year Ended
R .. S - *_ September 30, <+ September 30,
) A 2006  Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
Lo ‘ . . (Dollars in thousands) . |
[nleresl Income and Other, Nel ........ $3,356.  51% $2.218  $2,218 54%  $4,802
Percent of Revenue . ............... 2% 2P0t . 2% v 3%

-

Interest income and other, net consisted primarily of 1nterest mcome for?f‘gp ourrency exchange gains and
losses and other miscellaneous income and expense.

.. .ur Thehigherlevel of interest income and other, net, in fiscal 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily attributable to
) an increase in mterest income and 1o a decreased effect of transaction gains and losses. Interest income increased
due both to higher average balances of cash and marketable securities in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 and
to higher interest rates on invested cash in fiscal 2006 compared to rates in effect in fiscal 2005,

lnlcrcsl income and other, net, in fiscal 2004 was hlgher than fiscal 2005 primarily due to the receipt of a
technology llcense fee resulting from a litigation setl]emenl in the first quarter of fiscal 2004

. : ] - N . . . ,

Provision for Income Taxes

. o ) Fiscal Year Ended  Fiscal Year Ended
! : . ! ' September 30, September 30,

et Y 006 Change 2005 2005 Change 2004
DL T Vo [RI (Dollars in thousands)
CExpense.....:........ e an 3561 (10)% 3624 $624 8%  $577

Percent of Revenue. . .................. ... 0% : 0% 0% 0%

The fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 effettive tax rates were 11.8%, (3.3)% and 4.9%, respectively. The effective
rate for fiscal 2006 is lower than the statutory rate primarily due to operating losses not benefited and to foreign
taxes. The negative rate for fiscal 2005 primarily relates to foreign tax expense incurred regardless of our net
operating igsses and does not denote a tax benefit. The effective tax rate for fiscal 2005 was lower than the beneficial
statutory rate primarily due to operating losses not benefited and to foreign taxes. The effective tax rates for fiscal
2004 included a foreign withholding tax related to a technology license fee resulting from a litigation settlement in
the first quarter of fiscal 2004, The effective tax rate in fiscal 2004 is lower than the statutory mte due primarily to
tax beneﬁts arising from net operatmg losses, offset by alternative minimum taxes

As of September 30, 2006 we have federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approxrmately
$80 8 million and $17 9 million, respectlvely We expect that our effectlve tax rate wrll be less than the statulory tax
rate in ﬁscal 2007 ‘

N i B . ' + -

We record a valuation allowance agamsl our:net deferred tax assets. Realrzauon of our deferred tax assets
depends on our generating sufficient taxable income in future years in appropriate tax jurisdictions to obtain benefit
from the reversal of temporary differences and from net operating loss and credit carryfomards In'fiscil 2005, we
determined there was sufficient future taxable income in Japan to release the valuation allowance ‘related to
temporary differences generated by the Japanese subsidiary in the amount of $85,000. Due to the uncertainty of the
timing and the amount of such realization in the other tax jurisdictions, management concluded that a full valuation
allowance was required for the net deferred tax assets. generated in the other tax jurisdictions as of September 30,

2006.

Our future effective income tax rate depends on various factors, such as tax legislation, the geographic
composition of our pre-{ax income, amount of and access to tax loss carryforwards, expenses incurred in connection
with acquisitions that are not deductible for tax purposes, amounts of tax-exempt. interest income and research and
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development credits as a percentage of aggregate pre-tax income, and the effectweness of .our tax plannmg

' L]

strategies. + - ' et o : . ,

Discontinued Operations

PRI

Through January: 14, 2003, we conducted business.in three operating segments: flat panel display products,
cathode ray tibe dtsplay and hlgh quality glass inspection products and printed circuit board assembly inspection
products. In January 2003, we impleméfited a plan to éxit th printed circuit board assembly inispectiontbusifiessxlne: - mgpmmsf
June 2003, we 1mplemented a plan to exit the cathode ray tube display and high quallty glass inspection business.
Accordingly, the’ operating’ results of thése former business segments have been’ ‘presented’ as dtscontmued
operations for all periods presented.’ . o el S

Printed Circuit Board Asser;ib!j; Inspection Busitess S T
' " Fiscal Year‘li'rrded‘ i
P R Y ) September 30,
' ) C T Ta06 2008 2004
e o (In thousands)
Net Loss .,y v v pns R R "‘ ot $(1‘i4) $(56) 5(1 562) i

The loss from discontinugd operations for the' y‘e"l*ar Lnded.stg.ptemher‘?oﬂ B2006 consists -primarily of
approximately $259 000 of legal costs related to the ,Amtower V. Photon Dynamjcs; Inc’ et offeet by’
approximately $108,000 of deferred rent charges that wére reversed in the quarter ended December 31, 2005 wheh LT

the Company successfully renegotiated its remaining lease obligations for its Austm Texas facrllty
’ i

The loss from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2005 meluded approx1mately
$113,000"of addtt_rongtl accruals for legal expenses rélated to the Amtower vs. Photon Dynamics, Inc. lawsuit and
approximately. ,$75,0'00 of other expenses, primarily, legal and administrative, offset in part by approximately a
$132,000 benefit for the reversal of a liability related to the settement of vendor obligations.

T I S

. P e, N
e . oy ‘ L. . . RTINS

The loss from discontinued- operattons for the year ended September 30, 2004, includes-litigation costs of
approximately $1.5 million for ‘settlement of prior inventory purchase commitments,” the settlement of the
Thomason v. Photon Dynamtcs lawsuit and the legal expenses mcurred as part of the settlement

. . :
LN MR B

"Cathod'e _Rgzy Tube Display and Ht'gh Quality‘ Gla.s"s _Inspection ,Blysmes}s.

o . . . . T ) ) i o Flscal Year Ended
A e t C : ST - September 30,
S ' : e o TC2006 2005 2004
; P T Con i G e . (In thousands)
Netlncome.:....’.’...:'.'.‘.L.I.‘.'.'..’.'.;..‘....:.L.........‘....‘.... $27 5312 $171 .
Income from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 thcludes approxrmately $l7 000

of adjustments to reduce the remaining estimated- warranty provrslon . -
cal . T : Coa - H]&

The income from dtscorttmued operations for the year ended September 30, 2005, includes approximately
$288,000 for the reduction in certain reserves, including $143,000 related to warranty provtstons and approximately
$145,000 related to Iease obhgatlons settled at amounts less than ongmally estlmated ' :

The mcome from dlscontmued operattons for the year ended September 30 2004 mcludes againon the sale of
certaln assets related to the former glass mspecuon busmess o e

LA TR

. * * . . T -y . X
A o . St " DERE . LA I ' I TR [

Oudook :. ) o

We do not expect any further activity from these businesses. '~ - -~

o B4 o B .

quutdlty and Capital Resources .

. LN SR RN B S l‘l,alt:J.'n e el * v N
- We have financed our growth prlmar1ly by'a combination of.cash flows from operattons and public stock
offermgs. Working capital was approximately $121.4 million as of September 30,2006, compared to approximately
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$116.5 million as of September 30, 2005. A major component of working capital is approximately $102.8 million of
cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments as of September 30, 2006, compared to approximately
$93.0 million as of September 30, 2005.

‘Operating Activities of Continuing Operations. Cash provided by operating activities from continuing
operations was approximately $20.0 million and $13.7 million in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, while cash
used in operating activities from continuing operations was approximately $24.4 million in fiscal 2004.

In fiscal 2006, cash was provided by operating activities by our net income from continuing operations of
approximately $4.2 million, adjusted by approximately $11.5 million of non-cash related items and by approx-
imately $4.3 million of cash prov1ded by changes in working capital. Non-cash related items consist primarily of
approximately $7.2 million-of depreciation and amortization charges and approximately $3.8 million of stock-
based compensation charges. Changes in working capital consists primarily of a net decrease of approximately,
$14.2 million of inventory balances, offset in part by a net decrease of approximately $5.7 million of deferred gross
margin and a decrease of approximately $3.3 million in accounts payable. The decrease in inventories is due
primarily to timing of delivery of products in our backlog and to lower levels of fourth quarter bookings due to
market oversupply.-Deferred-gross margin fluctuates based upon the timing of acceptance of our products by our
customers, The decrease in accounts payable is due primarily to reduced inventory levels,

" In fiscal 2005, cash was provided by operating activities despite our et loss of approximately $19.6 million
primarily by collections of accounts receivables of approximately $31.3 million due to our higher revenues,
especially in the latter half of the fiscal year. This source of cash was partially offset by a decrease in accounts
payable of approximately $5.5 million.

ln fiscal 2004 cash was used in operating activities desplte our net income of approximately $11.1 million
primarily due to an increase in accounts receivables of approximately $48.1 million, resulting from the timing of
revenues and to increases in inventory of approximately $22.7 million,

Investing Activities of Continuing Operations. Cash provided by investing activities from continuing
operations was approximately $15.1 million and $26.7 million in fiscal 2006 and 2004, respectively, while cash
used in investing activitics from continuing operations was approximately $18.8 million in fiscal 2005.

In fiscal 2006, cash provided by investing activities was primarily the result of approximately $17.3 million in
net maturtties and sales of short-term investments, offset by approximately $2.3 million in capital expenditures.

In fiscal 2005, cash used by investing activities was primarily the result of approximately $14.2 million in net
purchases of short-term investments and approximately $4.9 million in capital expenditures.

In fiscal 2004, cash provided by investing activities was primarily the result of approximately $39.0 million in
net maturities of short term mvestmem:i offset by approximately $9.8 million in capital expenditures.

Fmancmg Activities of Commumg Operations. Cash used in financing aclivities was approximately
$5.8 million in fiscal 2006, while cash provided by ﬁnancmg activities was approximately $718,000 and
$6.2 million in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively.

 In fiscal 2006, cash used in financing activities was primarily the result of approximately $7.0 million in stock
repurchases, offset by approximately $1.8 million of sales of our common stock under our employee equity
compensation plans.

In fiscal 2005, cash provided by financing activities resulted from sales of our common stock under our
employee equity compensation plans of approximately $1.9 million; partially offset by net payments of short term
obligations approximately $1.2 million.

In fiscal 2004, cash provided by financing activities resulted from sales of our common stock under our
employee equity compensation plans of approximately $6.2 million.

The timing of and amounts received from employee stock option exercises are dependent upon the decisions of
the respective option holders, and are not controlled by us. Therefore, funds raised from the issuance of common .
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stock upon the exercise of employee stock options sh0u]d not be considered an indication of addltlonal funds to be
received in future periods.

In March 2000, we entered into a bank line of credit (“line of credit’”) which had an initial term of one year. We
have renegotiated the line of credit on an annual basis and currently have a $4.0 million borrowing capacity on the
line of credit with an interest rate of floating prime..In October 2006, we renegotiated the line of credit with terms
substantially the same as the original line of credit and extended it through October 2007. The line of credit is
secured by substantially all of our assets and contains ccnam ﬁnanc:lal and other covenants. At Septembcr 30, 2006
no amounls were outstanding under the' line of credit. *

Operatmg, Investing and Financing Activities of. Divconmmed Operations. In January 2003, we imple-
mented.a plan to exit the printed circuit board assembly inspection business and in June 2003 we implemented a
plan to exit the cathode ray tube display and high quality glass inspection business. Accordingly, the operatmg
results of these business segments have been reclassified as discontinued operatxons Net cashused by&dlgggwmued '
operauons during fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 is as follows: '

. Fiscal Year Ended
v . " . . o . . . 2006 © 2005 2004
' {In thousands)

"Cash flows from operating actlvmes

Printed circuit board busmess e o D " $(1,242) $(543) $(1,387)
Cathode ray. tube display and high quality glass 1nspecuon , —_— .
DUSIIESS .« . o o ottt vttt . {29) 97) (47)

Net cash used in operating activities from discominuéd operations . . (1,271)  (640) (1,434}

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cathode ray tube display and high quality glass inspection

BUSIIEES « o oo ot e et e e e e - (313) —
Net cash used in ﬁnancihg activities from discontinued operations . . — 313y -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued - . . .

operations: I _

Printed circuit board business ... .. .......... L (1,242 (543)  (1.387)

Cathode ray tube dlsplay and hlgh quahty glass mspectlon '
s BUSINESS . . .. oot i PR 29 410, . (47)
Net decrease in cash and cqsh equiyalems from discontinued g '

‘operations, . ... ....... e P P $(1,271) , $(953) $(| 434)

Cash used in discontinued operations in fiscal 2006 consisted primarity of changes in working capital balances
associated with costs relaled 1o the Amtower v. Photon Dynamics, Inc. lawsuit. oo

Cash used 'in dlscontmued operauons in fiscal 2005 consisted pnmarlly of changes in working capital
balances, payments for settlement of prior inventory purchase ¢ommitments, and the settlement of a lawsuit.

's
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~above,

Contractual Obligations ’

The following table summarizes the approximate contractual obligations that we have at September 30, 2006.

These obligations include both non-cancelable obligations and other obhgauons that are generally non-cancelable
cxcept under certain limited conditions. -

Paymems Due by Fiscal Year

_ Total 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011 Thereafter
' ' : {In thousands)
Operating lease obligations . .. . .. C$12372 § 3326 $2,833  $2,727  $2,785  §$701 —
Capital lease obligations . ... ... .. , 196 . 65 71 60 - - —
Purchase obligaﬁons- U 27,002 26,389 613 — — - . =
Total'.........i..0........ $39570 $29.780 $3517 $2787 $2785 $701  $—°

“We"have non-cancelable operating leases for vatious facilities in the  United States, South Korea, Japan,
Taiwan, China and Canada, certain of Which permit us to renew the'leases at the end of their respective léase terms.
In Auigust 2003, we signed a lease agreement for a 128,520 square-foot building in San Jose, California urider a non-
cancelable operating lease that expires in 2010, with two renewal options at fair market value for additional five
year periods and represents the majority, of the amounts reflected in the “operating lease obligations” in the table

* i

In fiscal 2006, we entered inté ‘multiple capital ledsés on certain equipment used by the Company.

R

We maintain certain open inventory purchase commitments with our suppliers 10 ensure a-smooth and
continuous supply chain for key components. Our liability under these purchase arrangements‘is generally

.., Jestricted to purchase commitments over a forecasted time horizon as mutually agreed upon between the parties
‘and is reflected in “purchase obligations” in the table above. The majority of these purchase commitments are

covered by confirmed customer orders.”* -

Working Capital . TR S
. We believe that cash generated from operatlons together with the llqmdlty prowded by existing cash balances
and borrowmg capablhly, will be sufficient to meet our; operating and capital requirements and obligations for at
~least the next lwelve months, However, this forward looking statement is based upon our current plans and
_assumptions, which may change, and our cap1ta1 requirements may increase in future periods. In addition, we
believe that success in our indusiry requires substantial capital in order to maintain the flexibility to take advantage
of opportunities as they may arise. We may, from time to time, invest in or acquire complementary businesses,
products or technologies and may seek additional equity or debt financing to fund such activities. There can be no
assurance that such funding will be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, if at all, and if we were to
proceed with acquisitions without this funding or with limited funding it would decrease our capital resources. The
sale of additional equity or convertible debt securities could result in dilution to our existing shareholders.

‘o

Off-Balance Shéet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2006, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii)
of SEC Regulation S-K.

Transacnons with Related Pames -

During fiscal 2006 2005 and- 2004 we pald $0, $108 000 and $138,000 respectively, to Dr.-Malcolm
Thompson, who was: our Executive Chairman of the Board from October 2003 until September 2005 and has
been our Chairman of the Board since October of 2005, for consulting services rendered to us. During fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004, we recorded approximately $14,000, $52,000 and $206,000, respectively, in stock ownership
expense related to options granted to Dr. Thompson in connection with his services to us.
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Impact of Accounting Pronouncements

. In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”). This Interpretation
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 109. It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the

- financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This -

lnterpretauon also prowdes guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods and disclosures. It will be effective.for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Earlier application
of the provisions of this Interpretation is encouraged if the enterprise has not yet issued financial statements,
including interim financial statements, in the period this Interpretation is adopted. The provisions of this
Interpretation apply to.all tax positions upon initial adoption of this Interpretation. Only tax positions that meet
the recognition threshold criteria at the effective date may be recognized or continue to be recognized upon adoption
of this Interpretation. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of this Interpretation will be reported as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for that fiscal year, presented separately. We are currently
evaluating the accounting and disclosure, reqqit:egnqqls of this Interpretation and we expect to adopt it as required at
the beginning of our fiscal year 2008 o

In Jurie 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Fmancml Accounting Standards-No. 154, “Accounting Changes
and ‘Error Cofrections” (“SFAS 'No. 154™). SFAS No. 154 replaces APB No. 20 (“APB 20”) and SFAS No. 3,
“Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements,” and applies to all voluntary changes in
accounting principle, and changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting
principle. APB 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recognized by
including in net income of the period of change a cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle
whereas SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior.periods’ financial statements of a voluntary
change in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable. SFAS No. 154 enhances the consistency of financial
information between' periods. SFAS No.-154 will be effective beginning with our first quarter of fiscal year 2007.
We do not expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 154 wilt have a material impact on our results of operations,
financial position or cash flows,

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
“Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantlfymg Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements” (“SAB 108”), which provndes mterpretlve guidance ‘on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of

 prior year misstatements “should be con51dered in quantifying a current year misstatement. SAB 108 is effective for

fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006. We will be required to adopt the provisions of SAB 108 in our
annual financial statements for the year ending September 30, 2007. We do not expect that the adoption of SAB 108

" will have a matenal impact on our results of operations, ﬁnanc1al position or cash flows.

In September 2006, the Fmancnal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial

_, Accounting Standards No..157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“FAS 1577). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes
- a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about

fair value measurements. SFAS 157.is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and is effective for us as of September 30, 2009. We do not expect that the adoption of
SFAS 157 will have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates primarily related to the operating results of our
foreign affitiates. Actual changes in foreign exchange rates could adversely affect our operating results or financial
:condition. The potential impact depends upon the magnitude of the rate change. We believe our exposure to changes

- in foreign currency exchange rates for our cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable is limited as the majority

of our cash, accounts receivable and-accounts payable are' denominated in U.S. dollars. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and

« 2004, approximately $7.4 million, $19.3 million and'$10.4 million, respectlvely, were invoiced in currencies other

than U.S. dollars, primarily Japanese Yen. - ..
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"As of September 30, 2006, we had approximately-$3.3vmillion in:cdsh.and cash: equivalents denominatediin
' foreign currencies, primarily Japanese yen. Our cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currency are subject
. to exchange rate risk and their value fluctuates wuh changes in exchange rates.. A hypothetical 10% immediate and
tuniform adverse move in all currency exchange rates affectmg cash ‘ahd ‘cash equivalents from the rates at
,September 30, 2006 would have decreased the fair value of our cash and cash equivalents by approximately,$300,000.

_%
4

As of September 30, 2006, we had approximately :$11-1-million inaccounts: feceivables ‘denominated'in
foreign currencies, primarily Japanese yen. Our accounts receivable denominated in foreign,currency, are subject to
exchange rate risk and their value fluctuates with changes in exchange rates.,A _hypothetical, 10% immediate.and

uniform adverse move in ail currency exchange rates affecting accounts rcce}vable (from the’rgtes at{Septe'rpl;)Er 310
2006 would have decreased the falr value of our dccoun[s rec‘e:vab}e by approx:mately '$1.0 million.

el b vinatadmntt izl uhl rehi) )

" Yaterest Rate Risk . . o ot Ll duan s n‘.h!:h’f\"-l’".":' R T

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing the income we
receive from our investments without significantly increasing risk, Some of the securities that we may invest in may
“be subject to market risk. To minimize this risk, we maintain our portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term
investments in a variety of securities, including commercial paper, money market funds, government and non-
government debt securities and certificates of deposit.

Our exposure to market risk relates primarily to interest rate fluctuations in connection with our cash and cash
equivalents and our short-term investment portfolios. We enter into financial instruments for non-trading purposes
and do not have derivative financial instruments in our portfolio. The following table presents principal amounts and
related weighted average interest rates by year of maturity for our investment portfolio, substantially all of which is
held in U.S. dollars:

. There Fair
September 30, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 after Total Value
- T (Dollars in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents . '

(variable rate) .. ........... $47,941 _ - — — - $47,941  $47,935
Average interestrate . . ... ..... 3.98% '
Short:term investments (variable :
TAE) L. — —_ - — — 346,765 $46,765  $46,765
Average interestrate . ......... 5.25%

Short-term investments (fixed : ‘
1 () [N $ 8,102 _— - — —_ — $8102 % 8,069
Average interestrate ... ..... . 4.37% :

Long-term investments (fixed
1) — 5800 — -— —_— — & 800 § 787
Average interestrate ... ... ..., 3.67%
. ' There Fair
September 30, 2005 2006 2007 _Z_QQ_IE 2009 2010 after Total Value

{Dollars in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents

(variable rate) ........ $20,288 —_ — — — —  $20,288  $20,288
Average'interest rate . . . . . 1.30%
Short-term investments :
(variable rate) . .". . .. .. $ 1,000 — — $2,300  $3,200 $23,575  $30,075  $30,071
Average interest rate . .. . . 2.62% ' 3.60%  3.72% 3.76%
Short-term investments
(fixedrate) .......... $40,503 $2484 —_ — —  $42,987  $42,667
Average interest rate . . . .. 2.56%  3.46%

The fixed rate securities, as with all fixed income instruments, are subject to interest rate risk and will fall in
value if market interest rates increase.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM -

The Board of Directors and Shareholders : L
Photon Dynamics, Inc. : ‘ 2 .

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Photon Dynamics, Inc. as of September 30,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements ‘of dperations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the penod ended Seplember 30, 2006. Our audits also included the financial stalement schedule
listed in the index at ltem 15(2)(2) ). These findneial statements and schedule are the responsibility 'of the

management of Photon Dyndmlcs Inc. Our responsrblhty is to expreQS an. opmmn on-these ﬁnancnal Stalemems
and schedule based on our audns ) o Sa Lo

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Pubhc Company Accounting Oversi gh[ Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to’obtain reasonable-assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our oplmon the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the
consolidated financial position of Photon Dynamlcs Inc. as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the consohdated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three yeats in the period ended September 30, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. general]y accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial slalements taken as a whole, presents falrly in all
material respecm the mformauon set forth therem

4

As discussed in Note 10 to the consohdated financial statements, in f'rsca] year 2006 Photon Dynamics, Inc.
changed its method of accounting for share-based payments. o . .

f\ We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accouriting Oversrght Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Photon Dynamics, Inc.’s internal” control over financial repdrting as of
September 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrared Framework 1ssued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commlssmn and our report dated December 8, ”006
expressed an ungualified opinion thereon. -

| /s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
December 8, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Photon Dynamics, Inc,

We have audited management's assessment, inctuded in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting in Item 9(a), that Photon Dynamics, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Interrial Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO
criteria’). Photon Dynamics Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control “over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness.of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting. basedgomourfa‘u‘dlw

. e n.,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Publlc Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provxdes a
reasonable basis for our opinion. |

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal contro! over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the compan'y, and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. ‘

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Photon Dynamics, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
control criteria. Also, in our opinion, Photon Dynamics, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, based on the COSO control criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Photon Dynamics, Inc. as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2006 and our report dated December 8, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
December 8, 2006
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC:
7. v 1 CONSOLIDATED.BALANCE .SHEETS -~

i Ta 4
, & -
:. ..'" [ W Por .I
v by v * ..
’ ' ‘ "ASSETS
S "t PR
Cuprent assets: T
' Cash and cash 'equivalen{é B S A T AU S
Short-term INVeStMEen S, . . . oo vttt it e et e e e e

'}_\ccounts recelvable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $406 and $153

September 30,

2006

2005

{Ln thousands except share
data)

$ 47,935

54,834

!

4

'$* 20,288

" 72,738

respectively .. ... ... A T 29341 27,067
Inventories: .. . ... .. : ..... 18,442 32,545
““Other current assets . .. ~....... S e I S e 3972 ' 3,932
" ™" Total current assets. . .. ..........0. ... Lol 154524 156,570
Long-term inVeStments .. . .........0. 0. ..oouieeieniletn.ls PRSI /-7 A —
Land, property and equipment, net. . ............. I RO 15,891 19,366
Other assets ............. e R R i R 4,542 4,390
Intangible assets, DL . . . .~ .0 . ce o et e e L6 © 3,205
Goodwill. . .. ... 0. ... 00 e e i 153 153
* “Total assets-........:. e e e " $177,613  $ 183,684
. i . 1 ., - .
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY e )
Current liabilities: - S HE
+-Accounts payable. .. ..Ul ~% 7657 $-13,005
Warranty ... e A et e 8,058 5,346
.Employee notes payable:- .. ... ... ... . .. 977 490
nOt]'nercurrentllablhtles;..‘.-..............................~...-,.- ........ - 8,967 . - 8,128
, Deferred gross margin . 1 . ﬁ ...................................... 7,454 13,113
Total current labilities . .. ... ...voveenernnnn .. G = 33,113 40,082
Other non-current llabllmes e VR s e 119 , 1,008
Commnments and contmgenues (Note 12) P
Shareholders’ equity: AT
Preferred stock, no par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized! none 'Bdtstaﬁ:ciiné, as of " o
* «_ ‘September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively . ......... ... oo oL — ke
; 4 Common stock, no par value 30 000,000 shares authorized, 16,526,782 and
- 16,989,940 shares issued and? {outstanding, as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, ‘
TESPECHIVElY . . L e e, « 285,510 .- 287,765
‘_Accumulaled deficit. .. 7. ... . e e e e e e e e e e (141,409 (145,489
Accumulated other compreher_lgrve ACOME ... ve e 280 . 318
" Total shareholders BQUILY v e e e e et e e 144,381 142,594

;3

. v
iy

See accompanying notes!toiconsolidated-finaricial statements:
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" $ 177613

"'§ 183,684
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF-OPERATIONS

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
. . 7 (In thousands, except per share data)
REVENUE . | . o o e e $172,872 $125,813  5141,870
Costof FeVENUE . ... vttt it e e e e e e 112,771 82,732 - 83969
L 60,101 43,081 . 57.901
Operating expenses: IS
Research and development ag g vsrwr . .o\ ., .. e _ 32 420‘ 36 275 29, 701
Selling, general.and administrative. . . . . . . . R 28611 24,678, enl 7. 180ks0000e o
Restructusing charge . . ... ... . L e .30 1,197 —
Goodwill impairment charge . ............ e e _ — — 665
Impam‘nent of-purchased intangibles . .. ... .. e e e — . 2,089
Impairment of property and equ1pment e e e 81 637 _ 234
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equ1p_menl, e e e o 58 (93) 427
Acquired in-process research and development. . ... ........ ... ... i — — 210
Amortization of intangible assets. . . .. ... ... .. ... . .. .. 1,489 1,548 789
Total operaling expenses ., .......... f e, 58,689 64,242 51,041
Income (loss) from operations. . .. ... ... ...l 1,412 (ZL161) 6,860
Interest income and other, met . . . ... e e e 3,356 2218 4,802
Income (loss) from continuing operations before infcome taxes and
discontinued operations . . . ... ... i e e 4,768 (18,943) 11,662
Provision for income taxes . ....... ... .. i i . 561 624, 571
Income (loss) from continuing operations before discontinued .
COPEIAONIS . & . L ot e e e <4207 .. (19,567) . 11,085
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . ... ................. - (12N 256 (1,391)
Net inCOme (L0SS) -« « v v v v e veeeeeeee e $ 4080 $319311) § 9,694
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations ' '
"Basic .. ... P § 025§ (116 $ 067
o $ 025 § (1.16) $ 065
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operations: =~~~ . _ ' " ' _
Basic..........................................-s........-$I-(O-Ol) 5 002 -$ .(0.08)
Diluted . . ... R Sl n S @08 002§ (008)
Net income (loss) pér share: . , R '
Basic ... e e e § 024 3§ '(l.14). -3 '0.58
Diluted ... U T 0240 8 (104y '8 057
Welghted average numbcr of shares: C . '. s
Basic . ...\ e 16,978 16,890 16,631
Dituted . .. ... e 17,011 - 16,890 17,087

See accompanying notes to'consclidated financial-statements.
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC. |
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS.OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

See accompanyingsnotes. {0 consdlidated_wﬁfrandiaj ‘statements.
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-.” Al ) ty T C Stock and
¢ , s Capital In Excess of Accumulated
’ * Par Value Aecumulated Comprehensive
Share Amount Deficit Income . ,. Total,

i : . . (In thousands} :: . ° e
Balances at September 30, 2003. ... ... 163907 $279,417 7 $(135.872), T 1 $598 7. $144 143
Components of comprehenswe -income:-

Net income .. ....0oo.ove.. PR — — 9694 .. — 19,694
' Change in unrealized gain on i e ot
©investments ... ...l — — -, BT '.,(377)
Currency transiation: ad_]ustmerlts Cee e — o writae a2 12600 0 0 0126
Pk ' 5 .
Total comprehenswe income. ... ..... . - -+ 9,443
* L . ' .. e, L ' ot B
Net issuance of common stock . ... . . el 469 - 6,167 : . - © 6,167
Stock ownership expense . . .......... . - 206 — T = . 206
Balances at September 30,2004, ......... 16,859 285,790 (126,178) 347 ": - 159,959
Components of comprehenswe loss: o S Coam b
WNEtloss. oo e — (19311 — (931D
* Change in unreahzed!gam on . Nl e
JINVESIMENLS .. ... — — - L (138 i L (138)
Currency translauon adjustmenls N —, R |- A 109
Total comprehenswe loss . ..o ou s ) - e M) .
Net issuance of conimon stock . . .. ... .. 131 1,797 —_ — s, 1,797
Tax benéfits of stock option transactions . . — 126 - —_ — 126
. Stock ownership expense . ... .. T —_— . 52, L e—aan . = . 52
Balances at September 30, 2005.." ... .... 16990 287,765 .,.'(145489) . . 3i8 142,594
Components of comprehensive income: : e . E !
+ Netincome -. . . .. ._..-.:.‘. e —_ — - 4,080 v — L . .4,080
Change in unrealized:loss on AR
cdnvestments L ... ...l e — — 2273 273
_Currency translation hdjustm_ents ........ — — - _‘ (311) v (3i1)
~--Total éé’mprehensir}e-income ......... T 4,042
' - Poattoend . ERRLILTE U O/ P —
Net issuance of common stock . ... .. Lo 116 el 788 . — .. \— 1,788
Repurchase of Common slc)ck net ....... (529) (6;993) . — — (6,993)
" Cancellation of escrow. shares. . ........ (50) - (1,258) — — (1,258)
Slock based* compensatron ............ — 14,194 - = 4,"1'94
Stock ownershlp eXpense . ... ......... — 4 . — . — ..., 14
Balances at Seplember 30,2006, ... ... 16527 $285,510 | $(141:409) " $280 "' - $144.381 -
E ¥ - " -; . “l"al ' ":
. St et X - ,;‘ - 'I‘rh l‘
' AL R BEPRCE YN v . Grgels o
ko - TR U] [t ._‘ LM . 4 ] ST A
' AR T .




PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC:
.+ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF .CASH FLOWS "

) .- X Year Ended September 30,
ereee 7 e 2006 2008 2004
N D T A L (In thousands)
Cash flows from operiting activities: _ -~ SR Y
Net income (loss) from conunumg.cpcrnuons. e it e s 2 - .a., ........ L. oX o8 4207 $(19.567) % 11,085
Adjustmcnls to reconcile;net’ iHESME (logs): from conunulng opcranons to net cash used in \ .
" operating activities ‘from continuing operations: .
Depreciation . . . ..ottt e e e S R . 5,720 . 5,037 2,898
Amortization of intangible assets . ... ... ... oL i 1,489 1,548 789
‘Stock-based compensation. . . . . . . N iivea., Y 4,079 -— =
Acquired in process research and development . . ... ... ... ... Ll L, . — —_ 210
. Impairment of goodwill .. ... ... .. .o — — 665
‘ Impairment of purchased intangibles . . .. ........... .. . Lo il 0 — 2,089
~7 ilmpairment of property and equipment . .. ... ..........,., R X V8L . 637 234
SIOCk DWRership eXpense .. ... . L e 14 52 206
.. pRcsmetunngexpense:................................‘.........‘..{...‘..:.:.rnr- 5"30'mi¢q'llliw :
5 L0ss (gain) on salé of property and equipment (93) (427)
“t3" Accretion of non-interest bearing notes payable 39 64 17
_ Changes in assets and liabilities: R .
Accounts receivable . . .. ... ...... e e e e e e e e e e e P 2, 274) 31274 {48,074)
Inventories . . .. ... vins s PN et Lty e de s . 14 218 ., (829} {22,720)
Other current assets , . . ......... S P e e 383 (130) 1,553
Related party receivable .. ... ... ... ... . ... i e T — 250
, -, Otherassets ... ...... ... ... ... ... ... . ..., R TR E R T (1,168) 536 (1,157
CAccounts payable. . .. L. L e e (5,269) (5,475) 14,448
Other current liabilities . . . . . . .. ... .. e , aed 010, e (999) 4,808
s, Deferred grossmargin. . ................... .. e e e e e e e (5 659) 1,610 8,764
C Otherlimbilities . ... e e 79" (91} (49)
u i A .
. Net cash prbvided by (used in) operating activities from continuing operations . . .. .". .7 * ‘20,037 13,745 (24.411)
Net cash used in operating activities from discontinued operations .. .............. .(1,271) (640) . {1,434)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating actwmes ................. A . 18,766 13,105 {25,845)
Cash flows from investing activities: od ! — Pt T '
Purchase of property and equipment. . .. .........¢ ... ..., e L e (2.343) (4,880} (9,803)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets . . .. ... ... . ... L. ' 50 270 481
Acquisition of Rapid Thermal Processing Division from Intevac, Inc.-.. .. ..... ... e ST —_ " (300)
Acquisition of Qunntum Composers, Inc._ . .......... — — (1,000}
Acquisition of Tucson Optical Research Ccrporauon - : — — (625)
Acqguisition of certain intangible assets upon termination of a dlSll'lbulOl’ ag'reemem ............ ) — (1,138)
Purchase of short-term investments . .............. ... . . vuuunrernn.. RO (l25 928) (56,380)  (420,296)
Maturities and sales of short-term investments .. ..o . L. 143,319 42,175 - 459411
Net cash provided by (vsed in) investing activities from continuing operations, . .. ... .. - 15,008 .- (18,815) 26,730
Cash flows from financing activities: - - N .
Issuanceofcommonstqck,net........................................._;_..1 ‘.1,783_ 1,923 6,167
Repurchase of common stock . . ... ... ... ... Ut SRR Y (1 2 ) B — =
Repaymem of shoft-lerm notes . . . .. ... .. . e e e (609) (1,205) L —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing acuvmes from ccmtmumg operations . . ......  (5.814) 718 6,167
Net cash used in financing activities from dlscommued operallons ......... e .E-." T— (313) - —
H - Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3. . . . .. T Faol. v (5814) - 405 6,167
, Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . . ..o oo e (403) 110 , 126
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations . . . . ........ 28,918 | (4.242) 8612
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents from discontinuéd operations .. ............... (L2TD) " (953) (1.434)
* Net increase (decrense).in cash and cash cquivalents ! . . . ‘27,6477 ' (5,195) 7,178
Cash  and cash equivalents at beginning of year. ...... 20,288 25483 18,305
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.. .- $ 47935 $20288 § 25483
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Income taxes paid. . . . . e e $ 768 § 498 § 59
Interest Paid . . . . 0 v v e e e —_ 1 6
Supplemental non-cash financing and investing activities d:sclosure
Assumed liabilities from acquisition of Quantum Composers, Inc. assets . .. .. ............ —_ — 155
Note payable issued in acquisition of Quantum Composers, Inc. assets . . ..............., — — 2,000
Note payable issued in acquisition of TORCassets .. .. ..... ... .. ..o, — — 625
See accompanying riotes’ to‘consolidated:financial statements.
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCI'ALISTATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

» Description of Operations and Principles of Consolidation.  Photon Dynamics, Inc. (“Photon Dynamics” or
the-“Company™) is a supplier of integrated yield management solutions for the flat panel display industry. The
Company’s test, repair and inspection systems are used by manufacturers'to collect data, analyze product quality
and identify and repair product defects at critical steps in the active matrix liquid crystal display manufacturing
process. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries
that are not considered variable interest entities (“VIEs™) and all VIEs for which the Company is the primary
beneﬁc1axy All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

. The Company currently operates in one segment: the manufacture and servicing of test equipment for the flat

panei display industry. Prior to January 2003, the Company conducted business in three operating segments: the
manufacture and servicing of test equipment for the flat panel display industry, the manufacture and servicing of
cathode ray tube display and high quality glass lmpecuon products and the manufacture and servicing of printed
circuit board assembly inspection producls In January 2003 the Company implemented a plan to exit the printed
circuit board assembly inspection business. In June 2003, the Company 1mplementecl a plan to exit the cathode ray
tube display and high quality glass i inspection businiess. Accordingly, the operatmg results of these former business
segments have been presented as discontinued operations in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets,”

(“FAS 144”) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities” (“FAS 146”). Accordingly, in the consolidated statements of operations, the operating
results of these former businesses have been classified as “Income (loss) from discontinued operations” for all
periods presented. The cash flows from these businesses have been presented as “Net cash flows from-discontinued
operations” in the operating, investing and financing sections of the consolidated statements of cash flows. The
Company continues to incur charges relating to discontinued operations primarily due to costs associated with the
Amtower v. Photon Dynamics, Inc. lawsuit.

Management Estimates and Assumptions. 'The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepled accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Examples of estimates made by management include
estimates of product life cycles, restructuring charges, stock-based compensation volatility and forfeiture rates and
litigation and contingency assessments. Examples of assumptions made by management include assumptions such
as meeting the criteria for revenue recognition, the calculation of the allowance for doubtful accounts; inventory
write-downs, warranty accruals and when investment lmpalrmenls are other than temporary Actual results could
differ from those estimates and assumpnons : :

Fair Value of Financial lnstrumems. The Company evaluates the estimaied fair value of financial instru-
ments using available market information and valuation methodologies. The use of different market assumptfnns
and/or estimation methodologies could have a negative effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The fair value of
the Company’s cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities approx-
imates the carrying amount due to the relatively short maturity of these items.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term ]nvesrmems. ‘Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with
insignificant interest rate risk and original remaining maturity dates of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. Short-term investments consist of highly-liquid investments with remaining maturities greater than
three months from the date of acquisition. Long-term investments consist of highly-liquid investments with
remaining maturities greater than one year from the balance sheet date, excluding those investments that the
Company has the intent and ability to realize within twelve months from the balance sheet date without incurring
losses, which are classified as short-term. The Company classifies all securities as available-for-sale and all
securities are reported at fair value with any related unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, recorded in
Shareholders’ equity under the caption “Accumulated other comprehensive income.” The cost and fair value of
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

investments are based on the specific identification method. The Company periodically reviews its investment
portfolios to determine if any investment is other-than-temporarily impaired due to changes in credit risk or other
potential valuation concerns. All realized gains and losses and declines in fair value that are other-than- lcmporary
are recorded in earnings in the period of occurrence.

Inventories. Inventories, consisting of raw materials, work in process and finished goods, are stated at the
lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory which is obsolete (defined as inventory that will no longer be
used in the manufacturing process) or in excess of the forecasted usage is written down to its estimated market value
based on projected demand, historical usage and other known factors. The Company reviews the appropriate
valuation of its inventories on a quarterly basis. If actual demand were to decline below the Company’s forecasts,
the Company may need to take additional inventory write-downs.

Land, Property and Equipment.  Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation of property and
equipment is based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are thirty years for
buildings, and three to five years for equipment and office furniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the lease or the useful life of the related asset. Land is recorded at
cost, and is not depreciated. Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is included with depreciation
expense.

The Company periodically reviews its land, property and equipmient to determine if facts and circumstances
exist which indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable or that the useful life is shorter than
orlgmally estimated. The Company assesses the recoverability of its assets held for use by comparing the projected
undiscounted net cash flows associated with the related asset or group of assets over their remaining lives against
their respective carrying amoums Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the carrymg amount over the fair
value of those assets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets.  Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price of an acquisition exceeds the
estimated fair valué of the net identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is
reviewed for impairment annually during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year.

" .

.+ Acquisition-related intangibles, including purchased technology, license agreements and non-compete con-
tracts, are presented at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of two to four years. The Company periodically reviews its identified intangible
assets to determine if facts and circumstances exist which indicate that the useful life is shorter than originatly
estimated or that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. If such facts and circumstances do exist, the
Company assesses the recoverability of identified intangible assets by comparing the projected undiscounted net
cash flows associated with the related asset or group of assets over their remaining lives against their respective
¢carrying amounts. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those
assets. )

Accumulated Other Comprehenswe Income {Loss). The Company reports items required to be recognized
under accounting standards as components of comprehensive income (loss), including unrealized gains and losses
on available-for-sale securities and foreign currency translation adjustments, in Shareholders’ equity in its
consolidated financial statements.

Concentrations and Other Risk. The Company uses financial instruments that potentially subject it to
concentrations of credit risk. Such instruments consist principally of cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade
accounts receivable and financial instruments used in hedging activities.

The Company invests excess cash not required for use in operations in securities that the Company believes
bear minimal risk of loss. These investments are of a short-term nature and include investments in auction rate
preferred securities, commercial paper and government and corporate debt securities. The Company has not
experienced any losses due to institutional failure or bankruptcy.
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company’s customers are located in South Korea, Taiwan, Japan and China. The Company’s sales to these
customers may be adversely affected by the overall health of these economies, including the effects of currency
exchange rate fluctuations. The Company generally does not require collateral for its trade accounts receivable, The
Company maintains a provision for potential credit losses based upon expected collectibility of all accounts
receivable. For sales to some of its customers in certain geographic regions, the Company requires letters of credit.
The majority of the Company’s revenue is invoiced in U.S. dollars although approximately $7.4 million,
$19.3 million and $10.4 million of revenue that was recognized in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were
invoiced in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily Japanese Yen. The Company believes its credit
evaluation prior to shipment, credit instruments such as letters of credit, and subsequent ménitoring of customer
status mitigates its credit risk.

Although the Company had no foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding as of September 30, 2006,
2005 and 2004, it did have approximately $2.8 million of foreign currency forward exchange sales contracts maiure
in fiscal 2004. These instruments were used to mitigate the impact of currency fluctuations on the Company’s
income. The Company may be exposed to credit loss in the event of non-performance by counterparties on foreign
exchange contracts it may use in the future to mitigate the effect of exchange rate changes. These counierparties are
large, international financial msututxons and to date, no counierparty has failed to meet its financial obligations to
Lhe Company.

i The Company’s products mclude certain components that are currently supplled by a sole-source vendor. The
Company believes that other vendors would be able to provide similar components; however, the quahf" cation of
such vendors may require start-up time. In order to mitigate any adverse impacts from a disruption of supply, the
Company attempts to maintain an adequate supply of critical single-sourced components.

Foreign Currency. The functional currencies of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are their respective local
currencies. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of the foreign operations are translated to U.S. dollars at current
period end exchange rates, and revenues and"expenses are translated to U.S. dollars using weighted average
exchange rates in effect during the period. The gains and losses from the translation of these subsidiaries’ financial
statements into the U.S. dollar are recorded directly into a separate component of shareholders’ equity under the
capnoﬁ “Accumulated other comprehensive income.” Currency transacuon gains and losses are included in Lhe
Company’s results of operauons

Derivative Fihancial Instruments. The Company may use forward exchange contracts to mitigate the effect
of exchange rate changes on a portion of, but dot all, existing and anticipated foreign currency denominated
transactions expected to occur within the following 18 months. The purpose of Photon Dynamics’ foreign currency
program is to manage the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on certain foreign currency denominated revenues,
cost and eventual cash flows. The Company believes these financial instruments, when used, do not subject it to
speculative risk that would otherwise result from changes in currency exchange rates. The Company does not use
derivative financia! instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

The Company’s derivative instruments, if any, are recorded at fair value based on quoled market pnces for
comparable instruments. Gains and losses, if any, are recorded immediately in earnings.

During fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company did not purchase any new foreign currency exchange
contracts; however, in fiscal 2004, the Company had foreign currency forward exchange contracts to sell
approximately $2.8 million in Japanese yen that matured.

. Warranty. The Company’s warranty pol:cy generally states that it will provide warranty coverage for a
" period of one year from final acceptance. The Company records the estimated cost of warranty coverage, primarily
material and labor to repair and’service the equipment upon product shipment, when the related revenue is
recognized. The Company’s warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, material usage rates and the
efficiency by which the product failure is corrected. The Company reviews actual product failure rates and material
usage rates on a periodic basis and adjusts the warranty liability as necessary.
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Revenue Recognition. Photon Dynamics derives revenue primarily from the sale and installation of equip-
ment and spare part sales. . N :

The Company recognizes revenue on the sale and installation of equipment when persu'asive,evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the selling price is fixed or determinable
and collectibility is reasonably assured. Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists when a sales quotation
outlining the terms and conditions of the arrangement has been issued to the customer and a purchase order has been
received from the customer accepting the terms of the sales quotatron and slating, at a minimum, the nurnber,of
systems ordered and the value of the overall arrangement

'5! L

The Company accounts for Certam of’ﬁ?‘%ﬁgduct sales, as arrangements with multlple deliverables. For
arrangements with multiple ¢ dehverables the Company recognizes revenue for:ihe,delivered items if the delivered
items have value to the customer on a standalone basis, the amount of revenue for delivered elements is not subject
to refund, and delivery or performance of the un_dellyered itemns is consrdered__ probable and substantially in the
control of the Company, the Company has met defined customer acceptance experience levels for the delivered
items, and the fair value of undelivered items, such as installation and system upgrade rights, can be reliably
determined. The Company allocates revenue to the delivered items based on the lesser of the amount due and
billable upon shipment and the difference between the total amount due at time of shipment and the.allocated fair
value of the undelivered elements, with the remaining amount recognized after installation and acceptance when the
final amount becomes due. Installation and other services are not essential to the functionality of the products as
these services do not alter the product capabilities, do not require specrahzed skills or tools and can be performed by
other vendors. \

For new products that have not been demonstrated to meet product spec1ﬁcauons 100% of revenue is deferred
until customer dcceptance. S '

[ ' 1 [V I

vy e

The Company recogmzes revenue on the sale of spare parts when the product has been shipped, risk of loss has
passed to the customer and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. ., . : o

Through the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company sold it§ products in Japan Lhrough a value added
reseller. Terms and conditions of the Company’s sale of products tg its’ valué- added reseller were generally
consistent with terms and conditions offered to other customers and title typically ‘transferred to the value-addéd
reseller upon shipment. The Company did not grant any rights of return, stock rotation or price protection for its
product sales to its value-added reseller. Accordingly, sales transactions with the value-added reseller, consisting of
$0, $0 and $6.0 million of revenue in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were recorded in accordance .with
Company policy. : o ‘ L

The Company has a policy to record a provision as necessary based on’ hlstoncal rates for’ esumated sales

returns in the same period as the related revenue is recorded wh:ch s netted agamst revenue. 4
]

Shipping Costs. 'The Company’s shipping and handling cosls are mcluded under cost of sales for all periods
presented. In those instances where the Compatiy does bill for shipping and handlmg, the amounts bllled are
classified as revenue. ‘

Advertising. The Company expenses advertlsmg costs as mcurred Advemsmg expense was $38 000,
$56,000 and $109,000 fof fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectwely

N

Research and Development Cost. Costs to develop the Company’s products which include both hardware
and software components are expensed as incurred. Software 1ncorporated in the Company s products is an integral
part of the overall product design process and costs to develop software, which is deemed 10 be incidental, are not
tracked separately.

e . ey

Income Taxes. The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the liability method in
accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based
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on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates and laws
that will be in effect when differences are expected to reverse. o

Eammgs Per Share. Bas:c eammgs per share is calculated using the welghted average number of shares of
common stock outstandlng Dlluted eammgs per share is computed in the same manner and also gives effect to all
dllutlve common equivalent shares “outstanding dunng the period. Common equivalent shares consist of stock
opt'lons issued to employees under,employee stock opnoq plans.

Stock-Based Compensation. Effective October 1, 2003, the Company estimates the fair value of employee
stock options and employee stock purchase plans using the Black-Scholes valuation model, consistent with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R SEC SAB No. 107 and its prior period pro forma disclosures of net earnings,
including stock-based compensation (determined under a fair value method as prescribed by SFAS No, 123). The
Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the option’s
expecled life and the price volatility of the underlying stock. Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accounted for
its stock- based awards under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. '25 “Accountmg for Stock Issued to Employees,” (“APB 25") and related Interpretations as permitted by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
(“SFAS No. 123”)

Vanab[e lnteresl Enmy In November 2005, Photon Dynamics entered into agreements which commit the
Company to provide funding to an early-stage development company subject to certain conditions and milestones.
The funding is in the form of a convertible note. In addition, in exchange for providing a limited use license to
certain of the Company’s intellectual property, the Company received an equity interest in the development
company. For accounting purposes, Photon Dynamics -is considered to be the primary beneficiary within the
provisions of FASB Financial Interpretation No. 46 (revised 2003) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
Due to the nature of the agreement, the Company determined that since Photon Dynamics is essentially providing
100% of the funding, there is no offset for minority interest and so the Company consolidates 100% of the entity’s
operations until such time as the entity obtains funding from other sources.

" Reclussifications. Certain prior year and prior quarter balances have been reclassified to conform to current
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on previously reported results of operations
or shareholders’ equity.

i Recent Accounting Pronouncements.  In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) issued
FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109" (“FIN 48"). This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
emerpnse s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109. It prescribes a recognition threshold
and' measurement-attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods and disclosures, It will be effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2006. Earlier application of the provisions of this Interpretation is encouraged if the enterprise
has\not yet issued financial statements, including interim financial statements, in the period this Interpretation is
adopted The prov151ons of this Interpretation apply to all tax positions upon initial adoption of this Interpretation.
Only tax positions that meet the recognition threshold criteria at the effective date may be recognized or continue to
be -recognized upon adoption of this Interpretation. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of this
lnterpretauon will be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for that fiscal year, *
presented separately: The Company is currently evaluating the accountmg and disclosure requirements of this
Interpretation and expects to adopt it as required at the beginning of its fiscal year 2008,

In June 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, “Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections” (“SFAS No. 1547). SFAS No. 154 replaces APB No. 20 (“APB 20”) and SFAS No. 3,
“Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements,” and applies to all voluntary changes in
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accounting principle, and changes the requirements for accounting for and repornting of a change in accounting
principle. APB 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recognized by
including in net income of the,period of.change acumulativeseffectofichangingiioglicinelifaccounting. prmmple
crcﬂSFAS‘IM requirestretrospectivefapplicationitolpriordperiods#Hin i i
change in accountmg ptinciple, unléss it is impracticable. SFAS No. 154 enhances the consistency “of financial
information between periods. SFAS No. 154 will be effective beginning with the Company’s first quarter of fiscal
year 2007. The Company does not expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 154 will have a material impact on its
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

- “"In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
' “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements” (“SAB 108™), which provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of

prior year misstateients should be cénsidered in quantifying a current year misstatement. SAB 108 is effective for

fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006. The Company will be required to adopt the provisions of

SAB 108 in its annual financial statements for the year ending September 30, 2007. The Company does not éxpect

that the adoption of SAB 108 will have a material impact on its results of operatlons financial posmon or cash

ﬂowq e T

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement"of Fmanmal
Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™ (“FAS 1577"). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures-about
fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and is effective for the Company as of September 30, 2009. The Company does not expect that
the adoption of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on its results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Note 2— Financial Statement Components

. September 30,
2006 2005
{In thousands)

Balance Sheet -

3 N =
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i oo b e A ot L e

Inventories:
Raw materials ... ........... e teai... $10740 0 $ 12476
Work-In-process. . ... .. e e e cL... o+ 7036 19,327
Finished goods ... .............ooooo ... S [ PP 666 742
CTotal L. e PR e § 18442 $32545°
Land, property and equipment: : ‘
Land and bUilding . . . .o oot § 70567 8 7,056
O Equipment, .. ... P e e 15952 17,380
Qfﬁce furniture and fIXEUTES . . . . . .. .. i e e e P 2,864 3,102
[easehold improvements .. ......... e e i e e . 8591 8,401
’ ' : ) 34,463 35,939
" Less: accumulated depreciation. and amortization . . . . ... e . (18,572)  (16.,573)
" ol ...... DU . e, co... $15891  $19366
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September 30,

2006 2005
{In thousands)

Other current liabilities:

- . Co : : . L |

Compensation ... ....uviin i P $ 3460 3 4,133

. Vendor obligation . .............. e e e 942 286

Professional f8ES . . . . ot ettt e e e e ' 891 1,314

LCustomer deposils . . ... ... L 1,500 —

Other accrued expenses . ........ e e e 2,174 2,395

Total ..o S $ 8967 $ 3,128

Deferred Zross mlargin: . o :

Deferred system sales. .......... e e e e e $12,217 §$ 25481
- Deferred cost of revenue related to system'sales . : ... ... U, e (4,763)  (12,368)

B 1) e e $ 7454 $13,113

Other non-current liabilities:

Long-term portion of employee notes payable. . ........... DR $ — % 966
Other non-current liabilities . .. .............. e e e e 119 | 42
TOUL o v ee e e e e e e $ 119 $ 1,008
~ Accumulated other comprehensive income Foreign currency transiation : LI
adjustments .. ............ .0 0 L. e e e e $§ 332 § 643
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities. ... ........ DU . oo (52) (325)
Total .....ooiiii e e c... %8 280 0§ 318
‘ ‘ i’eaf Ended Seﬁtémb_er 30,
2006 2005 2004
. . . ) i (In thousands) )
.Statements of Operations . ,
_Interest income and other, net T - " v P
INtETESt IMCOINE. . . ..ottt ettt e e e e e $3,742  $2,187 51,508
 INTEIESt EXPENSE . . o oo\ v e e (65) (74) (23)
Foreign exchange gain (108s). . . ... ... . 0 e i (147) 356 90
OURT ettt e e e (174)  (251)  3,409(1)
CUTOMAl e e $3,356  $2,218  $4,802

(1) In fiscal 2004, the Company recorded a technology license fee resulting from a litigation settlement.

Note 3 — Discontinued Operations
* Printed Circuit Board Assembly Inspection Business

The Company formerly had a business which sold printed circuit board assembly inspection products. These
products enabled printed circuit board assembly inspection manufacturers to detect and identify defects, thereby
increasing yields and quality and reducing costs. The Company previously sold its products for the printed circuit
board assembly industry primarily through sales representatives and distributors. The Company generally
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recognized revenue from the sale of its printed circuit board assembly inspection products upon shipment as such
product sales were not subject to customer acceptance provisions. In January 2003, the Company implemented a
plan to exit-the printed circuit board assembly mspecuon business_Accordinglythe operating results of this former,
qﬁ"\ eyt

“The foliowing table summarizes the results of discontinuing the printed circuit board assembly mspecuon
products former reporting segment: .
Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands) 4 -
ReveNUE . . ..t e $ — 8§ — §$ 83
COSt OF TEVEIUE . o v v o vt e e e e e e it e e e — (126) —
GrosSMAargin ... ... .vvvnrieaneanannas e — 126 83
Operating expenses: ‘
Research and development. .. ... .. ... ... ... ... . L. — — 21
Selling, general and administrative. .. ....... .. ... .. L 154 182 1,624
Total Operating EXPENSES . . . . ..o v e e (154) 182 1,645 7%
Loss from discontinued Operations. . . ... ...vv v et vt niennanraras $(154) % (56) $(1,562)

The loss from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2006, consists primarily of
approximately $259,000 of legal costs related to the Amtower v. Photon Dynamics, Inc. lawsuit (See Note 12),

-offset by approximately $108,000 of deferred rent charges that were reversed in the quarter ended December 31,

2005 when the Company successfully renegotiated its remaining lease obligations for its Austin, Texas facility.

The loss from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2005, includes approximately
$132,000 for the reversal of a liability related to the settlement of vendor obligations, approximately $113,000 of
legal expenses related to the Amtower v. Photon Dynamics Inc.’ lawsuit, and approximately $75,000 in other
expenses, primarily legal and administrative expenditures.

The loss from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2004, includes litigation costs of
approximately $1.5 million for settlement of prior inventory purchase commitments, the settlement of the
Thomason v, Photon Dynamics lawsuit and the legal expenses incurred as part of the seitlement.
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The following summarizes the assets and-liabilities. of the;prinied circuit board assembly inspection: products

discontinued operattons T B e T L T
L _ S e e T T e T Septembér‘SO;-
o |'."IJI:":, Ta- "jf‘i‘ gl oL 2006 _" < 20051
(In thousands)
™ 1
[ [ [ ASSETS
Current assets: ol
Oher CUITENE @SSELS - .+« ooy v v vt e bttt oo 8597 % 175
) Total current assets. . .......... e P .: oo 3997, 105
Other assets: e e e S T AL P
Other MON-CUITENT ASSELS . . .+« v v v te e ieeentcmee e e e aieeans srreenees sy D g 1016
TOtal ASSEES .« v v vttt et e e e e e e - 3397 81,191
. - L . . P R |
. C o - LIABILITIES
| . - . \ & ph . L R
Current liabilities: vl ' R : '
Other current llabrlmes ............. e e $201 § 579
. LRI SRR P T L IR W RS - R T R A =
Total current ltablltttes ................................................. 201 579
Other liabilities:
B D AN TR T SRR R SN Ay - [ ’ —_— !
Other non-current liabilities . . . .. b b ST ey A e Y 42
-, Total liabilities - . . ... ... ....!:); Vel rabmnn s Bl Bt ad s '.!'."."._. Caee, 5201 |$ 621
' T s R DR T R S R, TS L, I A T LT L B E Y SRR Y

At September 30 2006 assets mclude approxnmately $445 000 related:to-a court award for legal fees and costs

Dy

obhganons PR tv.-": i uui' v 'N‘;_ ryoulai ..-'1am .;f.l ‘lr Sk S AR AR

At September 30, 2005, ‘assets" mcluded a recenvable of approxtmately $1.0 million agamst shares that were
bemg held in escrow related to'the Company s acquisition of Intélligent Reasomng Systems Inc. Dunng the quarter
endéd March 31, 2006, the’ Company s'claim agamst the escrowed shares was accepted and the Company received
certain of the escrowed shares 'ds part of the settlemént: The Company &ancélled the shares and the balance of th
£scrow account at the time of share cancellation of approxrmately $1.3 mlllton was recorded as a reduction of
Conimdn stock in the' consolidated financial statements (Sée Note 9y. Current ltabthtles 1nclude apprommately
$79,000 related to current operating lease obligations, approximately $300, 000 Telated to accrued legal costs for the
Amtower v Photon Dynamics Inc. _lawsun and approximately $200,000 related to potential vendor obligations.
Other liabilities ‘of apprgk_imately $42,000 relate entirely to non-current operating lease obligations:

I AR . s ‘e - . ate 0

(T MU P

PR N tra i ¥

Catoar b LA 4
IR o ) e . N o RV L PR RN
INE v Pl
R ‘ . Co s PR H O i
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In the second quarter of fiscal 2003, in accordance with SFAS No. 146, the Company recorded a liability of

approximately $2.0 million for costs associated with the discontinuation of the business, including termination
benefits of approximately $700,000 and’ approximately $1.3 million of purchase obligations to suppliers. The

following summarizes the liability since inception:
.. (X}

Omne-Time
Termination Other
Benefits Costs . Total
. - {In thousands}
o Inccptlon of Hability,. . o cosmcamahihan: L. s $696 81,326 $2022

Cashexpenditures .. ........... 0005 ¢ eeevnneenses IR (1 e (5 7Y e LT S
Adjustments to the liability . .. ...,,... .. .. 00 ol (82) 474) (556)
Balance at September 30, 2005 . .. ... . i . — 7 d000 200

»+"Cash expenditures . ......... .., ... oo . —_ L

Adjustments to the liability . . .. ......... e — — —
Balance at September 30, 2006, .. . ... ... ..o § — $ 200 -$ 200

" At Septérnber 30, 2006, the rémaini_ng balance of $200,000 consists primarily of poten_ual vendor obliégtidus.

PR H
Cathode Ray Tube Display and High Quality Glass Inspection Business o R
! The Company.formerly had a business which sold cathade ray tube display and high quality glass inspection
products These products allowed cathode ray tube dlsplay manufacturers to locate and characterize defects and
glass manufacturers 10 detect and ldentlfy defects such as scratches, pits, bubbles, stones, inclusions and distortions,
thereby increasing vields and qualrty and réducing'costs. The Company prev1ously sold its products for the cathode
ray tube display and high quality glass inspection industry primarily through sales representatives and distributors.
The Company, generally recognized revenge from product,sales upon,customer acceptance..In June 2003, the
Company implemented a plan to ex1t the cathode ray tube dlsplay and high quallty glass mspectton busmess
-Accordingly, the operating. results of this former business segment have been reclassified as a drscontmued
operation for. all periods prcsented and the Company now conducts business in ‘one segment, ., ...

‘ The followmg table summanzes the results of dlscontmumg the cathode ray tube dlsplay and hlgh quallty glass
mspectron products reportmg scgment ot

L L _‘. - .- '.‘.'L;!'A T S H

LRI BN TR T N PP IR P R T L A .4 )" Year Ended September+30,:":
P T SN AL Jv 2006 0 2005 2004 , ¢
) {In thousands)
Costofrevenue.....,........v00n-n Mt haaa e $27 S50 § —
Gross margin. . .............. e 27 150 —
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative . .. . .......... ... .. ... ... ... — (162) 38
Gain on sale of fixed assets .. .............. e e — — (209)
Total operating exXpenses. . . ..., .. ... it — (162) (171}
Income from discontinued operations. . ...... e e $27 $312 $171

Income from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2006, includes approximately $17,000
of adjustments to reduce the estimated warranty liability.
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4 Income from discontinued operations for ‘the vear ended.September 30, 2005, includes approximately
$288,000 for the reduction in certain reserves, including $143,000 related to warranty provisions and approximately

$145,000 related to lease obligations settled at amounts less than-originally estimated: .. ... 5.

Income frorh d1scontmued operatlons for the year ended September 30 2004 mcludes a gam on the sale lof
certain assets related to the former glass inspection business. e

*

tThe following summarizes s the, agsets and liabilities of the cathode ray tube, display and.hgh quahty glass

mspectron cllscontmued operatlons " . o, by o PR T O PP P Lo
P s . A TS B FEEE : N I P } ** .+ September3{,
(TN A Sl Tenav d T et . ST, 20060 -2005
A Ceoe i . T (In 7, i
s : ' :‘ v ) \ thousands)
EE v ry M I L Lo Tl f
* Other current liabilities . ... .. .. $19 $74

At September 30, 2006 Other current liabilities relates entlrely to lease obhgatlons Future minimum leage
payments due by fiscal year are approximately $18 000 and $1,000 iA fiscal 2007 and 2008, respectwely

At September 30, 2005 other current liabilities include approximately $34,000 related to warranty obhgauons
and approx1mately $40 000 related to operatmg lease obllganons

. ) ln the thlrd quarter of fiscal 2003 in accordance w1th FAS 146 t.he Company recorded a ]1ab111ty of
apprommately 19 miilion for costs ass}ocrated w1th the drscontmuauon of the busmess The followmg summanzes
the liability since inception: = ' ’

e ot . o Ve s ,; One-Time . Contract ~ . .., .
e S P et e T Termination "l‘erniination‘ ' Othe'r ‘
O P N S T YR . - Benefits, --* .Costs .- Costs.;  Total
A e s Y PG g In, 1housands) S
- Inception of liability™ . . vt Lo Ul L $ 1,116 - BT .$-II\ :$ 1,898
"Cash expenditures®. . ... ...t v L Cow (1,1-16)' t o393y - (6l) - (1,570)
Ad_]ustments to the Hability. ... .. 0. ... Cieea L (304) 50 0 (254
3 . VAL PRI | .ot oonre X
e Balance of liability at September 30 2005 PR e T 74 AT 74
Cash expenclltures e e s T TR A (21) v o atTEe, s 2D
- Adjustments to the liability. . . ... .. ... .. e — (34) — - (34
, Balance of l1ab1hty at: September 30 2006 A <~ gl $ 19‘ ‘ ,.' bgiiog 19,
K el Toes . et = ! v - (9r .,’; o e

;i LI e, !‘ v 'ul""' S ! .“" i A’;i'l‘-‘ﬁ'“l\' ""-"1 4{‘1!1' oy
Note 4 — Acqutsmons and Dlsposmons

1
P

Year ended September 30, 2004 dtsposmons :-‘"< f"-’l'i we Lo Lo b

LIRS PR Cl S BN F S s

“in May 2004, the Company sold all of its assets in South Korea related to its TFT LCD Backhght lnverter
business to WOOYQUNG COQ. LTD for approximately $481, 000. The assets included inventory and productron
equipment for which the Company, had prevrously recorded impairment charges, intellectual property and certain
employees related to the inverter business. For the year ended September 30, 2004, the Company recorded a gam on
the transaction of approximately $419,000, which is included in “Operating intomé” in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations. ., .. . . . . . L . g
[N . thoag, e ¢ . ‘. . 1 [T | o ! LA or T 3 Y I

i ' Lot R T Ve T e e gt
Year ended September 30, 2004 acquisitions _ : oo
In June 2004, the Company acquired al} of the assets of Quantum Composers, Inc., related to the design and
manufacture. of laser assembly products-for: flat' panel display -LCD manufacturing: and- repair (the “Quantum
Assets™). Quantum Composers designed and sold pulse generator and laser diagnostic systems and provided
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contract.engineering and system design services to.the laseriindustry. The purchase price was approximately
$3.0 million, of which the Company paid $1.0'million up front'and issued $2.0 million of non-interest beating hotes

payable, due through June of 2007: In addition; the Company:assumed. approximately'$156,000 of liabilities and

i

mcurred approx1matelym$56f000;m acqulSItIOIl Srélated” expenses%onststmg prlrnarlly of“consultmg;“vtegal"’and‘
accounting fees. The identifiable tangible assets acqu:red consrsted prlmanly of 1nvent0ry

I3

"' In August 2004, the Company acquired all of the*assets of'Tucson Optical Research Corporation {“TORC™)
related to the design and manufacture of pellicle products which are used in the Company’s modulators (the “TORC
Assets™). The purchase price was approximately $1.3 million, of which the Company paid $625,600 up front and
issued '$625,000 of non-interest bearing notes payable, due through August of 2005. In addition, the Company
incurred approximately $25,000 in acquisition-related expenses, consisting primarily of consulting, legal and
accounting fees. The identifiable tangible assets acquired consisted primarily of invent_o_ry; -

et
§

v e SR T B PRI S ol { LAY A e
Note 5 — Goodwrll and Other Purchased Intanglble Assets i e b

K AT R T L T P I SR TR

L Goeodwill -+ oL e T it D e ! R TN T
crcme e ol s e g Ry T e

The carrying value of goodw111 was approx1mately $153 000 at both September 30, 2006 and 2005 There were

no add1tlons or ad_]ustments to goodwrll dunng ﬁscal 2006 dnd’ 2005 n ﬂsca] 2004 the Company recorded

appr0x1mately $665 000 of goodwill impairment charges composed ‘of the followmg

RV BT ““" o4

it

In November 2002, as part of the acqulsltlon of the rapid thermal processing technology from Intevac,

Inc: (the “RTP Assets”) $2 0 million was placed into escrow to be released either to the Company or to Intevac

depending on thé occurrence of certain future events during the escrow period. In September 2003, the

Company filed a claim against the escrow. for the full $2.0 million. In October 2003, the' Company.received

$1:7million on its claim against the $2.0 million escrow related to the RTP Assets. The claim for the remaining

. $300,000 was resolved, in. favor of Intevac. Because the Company had previously written off all. goodwill

resultmg from ‘the acqu1s1t10n of thé RTP Assets, the $3OP POO resolved in favor of Intevac resulted in an

‘adjustment to record additional goodwill, which'was deemed to bé impaired due to contmumg detenoratlon in
business conditions during the three month period ended December 31, 2003 S :

ChE ‘.‘t - A

. Durlng the threé months ended December 31 2003 the Company recorded a goodwtll impairment charge
of ‘approximately $365 000-under the: prowsnons of Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ (“FAS 142}, representing the remammg goodwrll associated w1th its
inverter business. This impairment charge was a result of the contmumg "$ofthess’in’ thé ‘inverter markét.
Accordingly the Company performed an impairment analy51s for the remaining:acquired intangible assets as

required by_ Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or

! LA SO S

Dtsposal of Long leed Assets”’(“FAS 144”) e b . i"; L "_‘ " ': , "r !
LI AU (P AILTPNAE # 1 SIS MO 1 -
" In accordance wnh FAS 142 and FAS 44, these ﬁscal 2004 m'lpalrment charges estabhshed new cost bases for
WL e Lt AT O B P R A T LT L ot T

the remammg goodwrll assets : ,
LA 7 "rrrl ' .|,| _ih LR W "r.‘-"" ot Kl

There have been no significant events or circumstances negatively affecting the valuation of goodwi]i"'at
September 30, 2006 subsequent to the Company’s annual impairment test performed dunng the foutth quarter of
fiscal 2006 SRR F L S TV PR LS [

co- “ I I A ""r- Rl el o 3l wi il D LN A Tv.oft i
" Goodw1ll at September 30, 2006 relates entlrely toithe Company 5 purchase of -assets from Summit Imaging in
May 2003. . [ R 1o S tel; - et ‘rl L'c v amenresy o e - ' o [ B
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Intangible Assets o

The components of intangible assets as of September 30, 2006 were as follows:

e ) . Ve N .
Developed Core License Con:):ete ,
Technology’ Technology - Agreement Contract Total
" - (In thousands) ' '
Gross carrying amount at September 30,
2006 . ....... 0iien .. BL006. $ 2,408 $1,13§ $ 968 $ 5,520
 Accumulated amortization .. ....... (578) | (1,504) {948) (774) (3,804)
Net carrying amount at September 30, . ' ' )
R 2006 ......................... 5 428 $ 904 $.190° $ 154 $ 1,716
e . [ 3 o - - -
The édmponents of intangible assets as of September 30, 2005 '\yere as follows: '
"’ . ' ‘ S s A . b Non
Developed Core License Compete
. Technology Technology  Agreement  Contract Total
. ' " ! A i (In thousands) * ‘
Gross carrying amount at September 30, ’ ' T o o L
j; 2005 .0 $1,006" $2,£‘IOS" $1,138~ ) "$968  $5520.
. Accumulated amortization . .. ...... _(326) (902  _(568) = .519) _(2315)
- Net carrying amount at September 30, T . -
2005 L $. 680 $1,506 $.570 . $449. $3,205..

'

: “The following table summarizes the act1v1ty dunng the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006:

v ' IV

. . R , Non
: DeveIoped * -Core License Compete
Technology Technology Agreement Contract Total

\ Lo © {In thousands)

Balance as of Septemnber 30, 2005 .. ... §$ 680 $1,506 $ 570 $449 $ 3,205
‘.Amortizalion during the p'eriod ........ (252) (602) (380) (255) (1,489)
;Balance as of September 30, 2006 . . . .. $ 428 $ 904 $ 190 $ 194 $ 1716

"There were no additions to intangible assets and no adjustments to intangible assets other than amortization
charges during fiscal 2006 and.2005. In fiscal 2004, the Company. recorded approximately $2.1 million of
purchased intangibles impairment charges composed of charges related to the remaining portion of the acquired
developed technology and core technology related to the inverter business and the RTP assets, These 1mpalrment
charges were a result of the continuing softness in the inverter market and i increasing uncertainty surrounding LTPS
technology. In accordance with FAS 142 and FAS 144, these fiscal 2004 1mpa1rment charges established a new cost
basis for the remaining intangible assets. - _ . '

X .

‘Based on intangible assets recorded at September 30, 2006, and assummg no subsequent additions to, or
impdirment of, the underlying assets, the remaining estimated amortization’ expénse relating to intangible assets at
September 30, 2006, is appronmately $1 2 million and $550,000 in fiscal 2007 and 2008 respectively.

In -assessing the recoverability of its mtanglble assets, the. Company must makc assumptions regarding
estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets. It is reasonably
‘possible that these estimates, or their related assumptions, may change in the future, in which case the Company
may be required to record additional impairment charges for these assets.
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Note 6 — Restructuring and Other Charges

, Restructuring e e o

Durmg the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company implemented a restructuring plan to relocate all activities in
its Markham, Canada location — — consisting of tesearch’and development related to the Company’s PaneiMaster™
inspection systems — to the Company’s Dagjon, South Korea and San Jose, California locations. The Company
recorded this restructuring plan in accordance with SFAS No. 146.

The restructuring plan included reducing its workforce and closing its Markham, Canada location. Manage-
ment approved and implemented the plan and determined the benefits that would be offered to the employees being
terminated. Management determined that terminations affecting up to 32 employees ,wouid. take,.place in three
phases through March 31, 2006. Certain of these employees were offered permanent employment elsewhere in the ‘”’"ﬁ;
Company and those that accepted were provided with certain relocation benefits in lieu of severance benefits. In the
third quarter of fiscal 2005, all 32 of the affected employees were notified of [their termination and the benefits
package, was explained in sufficient detarl such that each affected employee was able to determine the type and
amount of benefits they'were entltled to recelve

The Company recorded an mmal restructurmg charge of approximately $676 000 in its third quarter of fiscal
2005, which was comprised of appr0x1mate1y $430,000 for employee severance and related benefits and
approxrmately $246,000 related to contract termination costs associated with ‘excess facilities. The charge for
excess facilities relates to rent ohhgatlons under long term operating lease agreements which are to be paid in cash
through October 2007, net of a sublease agreement the Company entered into in April 2005, and to costs associated
with the book value of leasehold improvements. The Company recorded a total restructuring charge of approx-
imately $1.2 million in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, The Company recorded an additional restruc-
turing charge of approximately $114,000 during the six months ‘ended March 31, 2006, which represented the
ratable charges for employee severance and related retention benefits that were to be paid on March 31, 2006. This
charge was offset by approximately $84,000 of adjustments to the liability for bonuses not paid. These charges are
reflected in “Restructunng charge” in the Company $ Consohdated Statements of Operations.

The followmg fable summarizes the hablhty since mceptron

. One-Time * Contract
Termination ~ Termination
: Benefits Costs Total
) . . (In thousaqu)
Inception of liability ... ..0 ..o i $ 430 $ 246 $ 676
Ciash Payments . ... .. .. ... ... AR (526) @21 (547
Costs incurred and charged to eXpense ... ... ... ..evoonoon. 521 — - 521
Ad]ustments to the liability ... ... e 24 _(166) _(142)
L ' Ba!ance at September 30, 20{)5. e oo ) 449 59 508
Cash payments ........... R @9y . (16 (508)
Costs incurred and charged to expenses. . . ... ... . ..ol L 1i4 — 114
_Adjustments to the liability .......... ISR R EE _an &), _ (6
. Balance.at September 30,2006, . . 50t e 8 — 38§ 38

= _ i

As of September 30, 2006 the remammg llabrllty of apprommately $38, 000 is reflected in “Other current
labilities” in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and relates primarily to the lease of the Markham,
Canada facility, which continues through October 2007. All termination benefits were paid out by March 31, 2006.
Adjustments to the liability represent an adjustment to bonus amounts accrued and to foreign currency translation
effects on the liability. Lo P : -
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Asset Impairment . - . - . . : '

In fiscal 2006 and 2005, the Company incurred total irﬁpainnent charges on property and equipment of
approximately $81,000 and $637,000, respectively, consisting primarily of manufacturing capital equipment that
had no future use. In fiscal 2004 the Company incurred an impairment charge on property and equipment of
approximately $234,000 resulting from suspending operations relating to the LTPS and inverter products.

Note 7 — Financial Instruments : "

Short Term Investments

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-fdi—sale, by type. are as follows:

L oo . Gross " Gross

Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized  Estimatéd
Cost Gains Losses * Fair Value
(In thousands)
. September‘BO, 2006 . ) ) ‘- . MR .
Auction rate pre}'erl:ed securities . . . ... e $46,765 1 $— $ ' 346,76;5
] "Corporam debt SeCUrities . . ...t 20,849 — (48) 20,801
Mortgage-backed securities. . ............. .. 20000 —: (4 . 1,996
Money markel bank deposits and other .. ... ... 22,167 — — . 22,167
Total available-for-sale investments . . ... .. ' $91,781 e $(52)  $91,729

Amounts included in; . . . .
' Cash equivalents , ,............ e $36,114

i

'$ (6)~ - $36,108 :

$-i
Short-term investments . ............. 54,867 - - (33) 54,834
Long-term investments . ....... e 800 — (13 787
Total available-for-sale investments .. . . . .. $91,781 $— $(52) $91,729
; Gross Gross
‘ Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized - Estimated

Cost Gains - Losses - Fair Value
' (In thousands) Co

September 30, 2005.

o . ) -CJ’l
Auction rate preferred securities . .. 1. ........ $30,075 — $ @ $30071.
- Mortgage-backed securities. . ... ... .. .. 21,769 - 164y 21,605
. Commercial paper and corporate debt Lo _ -
‘ securities .. ......... et 21,219 — C(157) 7 21,062 )
Money market bank deposits and other . . ... ... 7,108 — .— 1,108
| Total available-for-sale investments . . . .. .. $80,170 $— $(325) © $79,846
5 Amounts included in: L . e .
“r .Cash equivalents ... ......... e % 7,108 $— $ — $ 7,108 .
. Short-term investments .............. © 73,063  _— (325) - 72,138
_‘ Total available-for-sale investments . . . . . . . $80,171 .

$(325) $79,846
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The contractual maturities of the Company’s marketable securities as of September 30, 2006, regardless of the
consolidated balance sheet classification, are as follows:

by v S e L AL 1 BRI L) IR T .
. . : - ' - L e Estimated
f Wl gd - I'i‘ Lt T alk !nh‘ﬂ ﬂl "! EREERTIN t'! Tl a i ~-‘c‘ e M Cost:-\, . Fail' Vﬂ]ue
WSt Lok v ,,1r it sl K i, on bfmmu ¥ Tim thousands) -
Due in less' thit“orie 'year™ 7 e SR L $44215  $44.177
Duein 110 3 years . . ... ..ttt i e e e e 800 787

Duein 3105 years . ... .ottt e — —
DueinStolOyears ..................... R R TR R — —

Due in greater than 1) years . . ... . e 46,765 46,765
Total c?st and estlmated fair values L e RPN $91,780  $91,729
O e B O T B R B O N P o, =

Actual matumles may dlffer from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay\obhgatlons w1th or w1thout call or prepaymem penalties.

Securities with contractual maturities over ten years are auction rate securities., While the contractual e
matumles are long—term the Company believes th‘e securities are highly liquid and that the Company can take '
advamage of mterest rate re-set periods of between one and twenty- exght days to liquidate the securities.

Management has thé ability and intent, if necessary, to liquidate these investments to fund operations within
the next twelve months and accordingly has classified these investments as Short-term investments in‘current assets
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets T S ce

.- i "(“:.\“ [ . .
Net reallzed gams and losses for-the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were not material to the
Company’s financial position or results of operations and have been included in “Interest income and other, net” in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the respective period. The breakdown of marketable securities with

unrealized losses at Sebgember 30, 2006 is as follows:

T - In a Loss Position . In a Loss Position .
T - for Less Than for 12 Months _
R ‘.'1‘. ¢ ;_?‘:‘r' - 12 Months . " or Greater . Total
N T o ’ Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
FMV Losses FMV Losses FMV Losses
y m It » » ] (In thousands)
Corporate debt secunhes . .’ o $16 324 $(35) $2.483 $(13) $18,807 $(48)
Mortgage-backed securities: .. 1,996 4) — — 1,996 (4)
To[alt ................. $18,320 $(39) $2,483 $(13) $20,803 $(52) 7
P {3 Ly . - oS ; \ .

The gross unrezilliz'e‘d losses related to the Com;)'any’s investments are due to changes in interést rates and bond
yields. The longer the duration of a security, the more susceptible it is to'changes in market interest rates and bond
yields. As y1e1ds increase, those securities with'a lower yield-at-cost show a mark-to-market unrealized loss, The
Company views these unrealized losses as temporary in nature and believes it has the ability to realize the full value
of all these, mvestments . e Ty _ o, :

The Company periodically reviews its investment portfolio for possible impairment due to changes in credit
risk or ather potential valuation concerns. The Company believes that no investment held at September 30, 2006 -
was impaired: While certain available-for-sale securities have fair values that are below cost, the Company believes
that the declme in market value is due to changes in interest rates and bond yields and not due to increased credit

'I..‘ ¥

risk. . - -
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'— (Continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments oo TR T 1 A '

Under its forelgn currency risk management strategy, the Company may, from time to time, utilize denvauve
instruments to protect its interests from unanticipated fluctuations in earnings and cash flows caused by volatility i in

currency exchange:rates- This financial exposure is monitored and managed by the.Company as an integral part of
its ov_erall risk management program which focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce
the potentially adverse effects that the volatility of these markets may have on §t§ operating results, e

The Company, accounts for its derivatives instruments. accordmg 1o Statemem of Financial, Accountmg
Standards No. 133, “Accountmg for Derivative Insiruments and Hedgmg Act1v1tles” (“FAS 133, which requlres'
that all derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives which do
not qualify or are not effective as hedges must be recognized currently in earnings. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes, nor does it hold or issue leveraged derivative
financial instruments. -

The Company’s international sales are primarily denominated in U.S. doliars although approx1mately
$7.4 million, $19.3 million and $10.4 million of revenue recognized in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 respecuvely '
was invoiced in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily Japanese Yen. For foreign curréncy denominated
sales, however, the volatility of the foreign currency markets represents risk to the Company’s ‘margins. The
Company defines its exposure as the risk of changes in the functional-currency-equivalent cash flows (generally
U.S. dollars) attributable to changes in the related foreign currency exchange rates.. The Company records the
mark-to-market change in fair value of its derivative instruments within “Other current liabilities” in the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company did not have any foreign currency forward exchange sales contracts at
September 30, 2006, 2005 or 2004. The Company had foreign currency forward exchange contracts that matured
throughout fiscal 2004 to sell approximately $2.8 million in foreign currenc:les primarily Japanese Yen. The
Company did not quallfy these forward salés contract as hedging instnirhénts, as defined by FAS 133, and as such,
recorded the changes in the fair value of these derivatives immediately in “Interest income and Gther, et in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company recorded a net gain of approximately $208,000 from
changes in fair values of these foreign currency exchange contracts in fiscal year 2004. This net gain is:included in
“Interest income and other, net” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 1,

- dair s ¥

-, .t ’ . . LI
P I It - ST M PR AL

Note 8 — Income Taxes

e, b Lo . LI o ,vr)..}‘-,: T o

. 2 ) iu
: The provision for income taxes related 1o contmumg operanons consnsls of the followmg i
. " ' [N [P i ;ote T A L Ay o o
o G S R , \earEnded ‘.
Co , e . ‘ieptember 30,
T N L I ) 13 il b ' FED i H
- Sefere s e v 0060 T 2005 7 2004
i : Lt erpe o0 7, (Inthousands)
- %, Current: T R I (LA R Rt s T e
¢ Federal ......% ... . .. R T U A . oot 8175 8 2378164
Y State........! ORI I l~' t2n e g 3
L ] S , . ST PRI i x LA )
Foreign................... P SRR 1356 '678 Y10
e ' ST R T KRV . S i HIE e
Deferred: ‘ '
Foreign L TV (S P N SRS L I See(85)
! B P I LR : IR AT
Provtsmn for income’ laxes ..... e T $561  $624. ° $577

T

>

‘
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Income (loss) before income taxes related to continuing operations consists of the following: p
: Year Ended September 30,
2006 - 2005 2004
Domestic . ........... e e e $3.418 - $(26,996) $17,490.
Foreign ........c.coviniennnnn. e e ~ 1,350 . - 8,053 (5,828)
Income (loss) before income taxes ................ I CO$4,768  §(18,943)  §$11,662

i —

|
. . . o . {In thousands) :

** The significant components bf the Company’s deferred income tax assets afe as follows:

September 30,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards . . ... ... . o i i $ 30,267  $ 31,954
. Research credit carryforwards . . .......... ... oo e 9,585 9,528
Canadian research and develqpment_expenditures: e U 10,884 9,242
Purchased intangibles . . . . .. e P EREE 3,004 3,083
Inventory write-downs. . ......... e e e e g e . 5,198 4,229
Depreciation . . . . . . e e e e e e e e 1,555 . .2,591
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ... ......... ... .. il L1582 58
Expenses not currently deductible .. ... .......... e ‘ 5,310 4,327
- Stock-based compensation. ... ... .. e e 1,399 —_—
Deferred revenue .. ......... ... ... e e e .. 4,500 7,210 -
Total deferred (ax aSSELS . . ...\ oevrreennnann. PR .. 71854 72222
Valuation allowance . . . .. ... e e e (71,796)  (72,137)
Net deferred tax assets ... ... e e e e e e 58 ‘85

Deferred tax liabilities .. ............... e I — g

Total net deferred tax assets. . ... ....... . ..... [P $ 58 % 85

Deferred tax assets reflect net operating loss and credit carryforwards and the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes.

The valuation allowance decreased by approximately $341,000 in fiscal 2006 and increased by appfoximately
$8.0 million in fiscal 2005. As of September 30, 2006, approximately $14.5 million of the valuation allowance is
related to the benefits attributable to stock option deductions which will be credited to paid-in capital when realized.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company has federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approx-
imately $80.8 million and $17.9 million, respectively. The federal net operating loss carryforwards will begin
expiring in fiscal year 2022 if not utilized. The state net operating loss carryforwards will expire at various times
beginning in fiscal year 2012 if not utilized. The Company also has federal and state research and development tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $5.2 million and $5.8 miilion, respectively. The federal credits expire on an
annual basis through fiscal year 2025 if not utilized. The state credits have an indefinite carryforward period.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company has cumulative foreign loss carryforwards for Canadian income tax
purposes of approximately $2.0 million. These foreign loss carryforwards will expire on an annual basis through
fiscal year 2010 if not utilized. The Company has cumulative Canadian scientific research and development
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expenditures (“SR&D™) available for deduction in future years of approximately $16.2 million. These deductible
SR&D can be carried forward to reduce future Canadian taxable income indefinitely. The Company also has SR&D
credit carryforwards of approximately $4.4 million, which continue to expire on an'annual basis through fiscal year
2015. In consideration of the fiscal 2005 restructuring of the Canadian operation, wWhich closed the Canadian facility

and moved all research and development activity elsewhere in the Company, and the varying future expiration dates

of the available tax loss and credit carryforwards the Company does not expecl to reahze any tax.benefit assocwled
with, these attributes. + . . o

Under certain prov1510ns of the Imemal Revenuc Code of 1986 as amendcd ‘the avallablltty of the Company S,
domestic net operating loss and tax credlt carryforwards may be subject to limitation if it should be determined that
there has been a change in ownership of more than 50% of the value of the Company’s stock. Such determination
could limit the utilization of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

The reconcnltatlon of the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to the Company s effective income tax rate is as
follows

J. i

. ) + Year Ended September 30, .

. 2006 . 2005 2004
(In thousa_nds) o
Expected provision (benefit) at federal statutory rate. . ... ... L. 81,673 $(6,540) $ 3,594
Foreign income tax rate differences . .......... PEPI ’ (79) 593 410
Losses (benefited)/not benefited . . ... ........ .. ... ... ... .. (1,434) 6,441 (3,482)
Disallowed business meals and entertainment . . . ............... 85 114 54
Nondeductible stock-based compensation . . . ........ ... .. ... 173 — -
Nondeductible VIE 10SSES . 5. .« .o tvvieaereenneaninnnn 43— —
Other individually immaterial items . ... ... ............. s — 16 1
t (R ‘

Provision for income taxes. .. ............... e g 's6l § 624§ 577

- Note 9 — Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock Repurchase Progr:afn. On August 2 1", 2006, the Comp'ar;y;g Board of Directors aoproved a
stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to a maximum of 1.1 million outstanding
shares of the Company’s common stock. The repurchases have been and will bé made from time to time on the open
market at prevailing prices and in negotiated transactions off the market as management deems appropriate. The
Company does not repurchase its shares during any period in which the Company is in possession of material non-
public information. The purchases are funded from available working capital, and the repurchased shares will be
retired or used for ongoing stock issuances, There is no guarantee as to'the exact number of shares that will"be
repurchased by the Company and the Company may discontinue purchases at any time management determines that
additional purchases are not warranted. The timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend on a
variety of factors including price, corporate and regulatory requirements and other market conditions. In fiscal
2006, the Company repurchased the following shares under this plan: T - . |

Total‘ Shares

fr Pt ‘ "7 Average - Purchased Shares Yet
T » ., ‘Total Shares Price Paid - as Part to be Purchased. . «
Purchased per. Share . of the Plan Under the Plan
August 1.through August 31, 2006 . . . .. L. 503581 ° $13.17 -, 503,581 596,419
Septembcr 1 through Scptember 30, 2006 . 26 020 ; $13 35 529, 601 570 399 .

R |
The aggregate repurchase price of approx1mate1y $7.0 mllllon was reﬂected as a reductlon of common stock in
the consolidated financial statements: ! . Lo e
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Settlement of Escrow Shares. During the quarter ended March 31, 2006, the Company reached resolution on
shares held in escrow. In July 2001, the-Company had entered into a share purchase agreement with Intelligent
Reasoning Systems, Inc. (“IRSI”) and under the agreement issued 699,010 shares of Photon Dynamics, Inc.
common stock. A total of 57,195 shares remained in the escrow account pending resolution of the Company's claim
against the escrow related to the Austin, Texas, facility lease acquired as part of the purchase of IRSI. During the
quarter ended December 31, 2005, the Company settled its lease obligations and filed a claim against the escrowed
shares. During the quarter ended March 31, 2006, the Company’s claim against the escrowed shares was accepted
and the Company received 50,319 shares, while the remaining 6,876 shares were distributed to the former

shareholders of IRSL The Company cancelled the 50,319 shares and the balance of the approxlmatcly $1.3 million
R ih the escrow receivable account at the time of share cancellation was recorded s a reduction of common slock in
the consolidated financial statements. ‘

" ,

Stock Ownership Expense. Durmg fiscal 2006 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded approxlmately
$14,000, $52,000 and $206,000 in stock ownership expense related to options granted to a member of its Board of
Directors for consulting services (see Note 14). The fair value of these options was computed using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model and revalued in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force No. 96-18, “Accounting
for Equity Instruments That are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling,
Goods or Services:”

1

Shares Reserved. The Company has reserved shares of common stock for future issuance as follows:

*: September 30,

2006
Stock options outstanding. . . .. ... ... o i o I e 1,950,695
Stock options, available forgrant . . ......... ... ... . L . 798,336
Shares for employee stock purchase plan . ... L e 954,691
Exchange shares for previous’ acqmsmons .................................. 32,699
L P O N 3,736,421

Note 10 — Slock-Based Compensation Plans and Other Employee Benefits

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

1 I . PRI PR i . ' [ cats

Effect:ve October 1, 2005, Photon Dynamics adopted: the provnsmns of Statement of Financial Accountmg
Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) “Share-Based Payments” (“*SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R establishes
accounting for stock-based awards exchanged for employee services. Accordingly, stock-baséd compensation cost.
is measured on the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and:is recognized as an expense over the
employee’s requisite service period. Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accounted for its stock-based awards
under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” (“APB 25”) and related Interpretations as permitted by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS No. 123").0¢ .

At September 30, 2006, the Company’s stock-based compensation plans included an Equity Incentive program
and an Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which are described in more detail below.

Prior to the Adoption of SFAS No. 123R. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company provided .
disclosures required under SFAS No. 123, as amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosures.” No employee stock-based compen-
sation was reflected in net income for fiscal years-2005 and 2004, as all-options granted under those plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. * ..
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4 +The. pro forma information under. SFAS Na.,123!for the years ended September 30, 2005 .and:2004 is as

follows shen, QNG e Ll
. : Year Ended
P T September 30,
ST 2005 2004
B S (In thousands, except
R g oy e share data)
,Netmcome(loss)——asreported.....::...'..............1.‘..: ..... $(19,311)  § 9,694
- Less: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under, .+ .
fair value based mcthocl for all awards .................. st (9 534) (7 532)
Net 1ncome {loss) — pro forma ........... B S TR RPN $(28 845) $ 2,162
.. L il horgpet T LEERPRTINY S
Basic net income (loss) per share — as reported R PR ‘$ (1. 14) $ 0.58
& ‘! t e ]I' '{ ) ' l":"' . .
Diluted net.income (loss) per share —asreported. . . ............... ... .« v (1.14) . $,-_0.57
Basic'net income (loss) per share — pro forma .. :.:..... o ST $""(l 71) "$"‘0 13
' BT UN T (T IRELAE o IR ALV T) SO TS
Drluted net income (loss) per share —pro forma ....................... $ (1 ?l) $ 0 13

On September 1, 2005, the Company 5 Board of Directors approved the accelerated and full vesting of all
unvested outstandmg stock options to purchase shares of common stock of Photon Dynamlcs Inc. that were held by
current employees mcludmg execitive officers, but excluding non-émployee iembers of the Company s Board of
Directors, that had an exercise price greater than $25.00 issued under the Company’s Amended and Restated 1995
Stock Option Plan and 2001 Equity Incentive Plan. Options to purchase 340,718 shares were subject to this
acceleration, which was effective as of September 1, 2005. The decision to accelerate the vesting of these opnons'
was made prlmanly to reduce future fihancial |mpact to the Company § results of operatlons since after analy51s it
was“determined that the'retention value of the underwater options was relatiVely small compared to the income
charge to continue vesung these optlons following the adoption of SFAS No. 123R by the Company on October l
2005 alte S S aig i .tlmgl!:. EERIE I U TVIE B VI U o

T hIR n t "
Under the accountmg gundance of APB 25, the accelerated vestmg did not result in any compensatlon t0 be

recogmzed nt the’ Company 5 Consoltdated Statement of Operatlons as these unvested stock optrons had no mmnsrc
valpe The effect of the vesting ; accelerauon was the recogmtlon of 1ncremental addmonal stock based employee
compensation of approxlmately $3 6 mrlhonj m the quarter ended September 30 2005 whrch is, reﬂected in the
Company s fiscal 2005 pro- forma dlsclosure above ThlS stock- based employee compensauon expense amoum
would otherwrse in part have been recogmzed m the Company 5 consoltdated statement of. operatlons m future
penods after the adopuon of SFAS 123R in the ﬁrst quarter of fiscal 2006 R

ot LT NIEET
7 Impact of the adoption of SFAS No..123R2% The Companyielected to adopt the modlﬁed prospective transition
method as provided by SFAS No.. 123R! Under that transition méthod, compensation-cost recognized in the fiscal
yedr ended September 30, 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior-to, but
not yet vested, as of October 1; 2005, based on the grant-date fair.value estimated:in accordance with the:original
provisions of. SFAS No. 123; and (b)compensation cost for'all' share-based payments granted subsequentfto’
October 1, 20053, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with'the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.
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Previously réported amounts have not been restated. The effect of recording stock-based compensation for the

fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:
| T U T I l : Year Ended
L e September 30, 2006

(In thousands,
except per share data)

Stock-baséd compensation expense included in continuing operations:

COSt Of TEVENUE . . ..o vt i et e aeee s $ 401
Research and development .. .-L... .00 ool v L APV ) . 676
Selling, general and adminiSative . . ... ... ..vveerrereneeennen... 3,002
. , . . BN P
Total-stock-based compensation expense after income taxes(l} ............ " $4,079
Stock-based compensation expense by type ‘of award: .
Employee stock options . .. ................ 83,724
Employee stock-purchase plan ........... ... .. oo i o 0 470
"Amounts capitalized as inventory and deferred gross margin............... (115)
Neteffectonnelmcome(l)....................I..‘.'..'.........-...... $4,0’f9
_Effect’on net income per §hare§ o "
N - l- . . el e . B - e .. " . L
) Bési,c...’ ..... R R TP $ 0.24
‘Dlluted " ......... PP A 0.24 ¥

(1) 'I”he mcome tax benefit on stoek-based compensatron for all penods presented was not matenal

Equiry Incemwe Program. - 'I'he Company s equity 1ncent1ve program is a long-term retenuon program that is
intended to attract and retain qualified management and technical employees and align stockholder and employee
interests. At September 30, 2006, the equity incentive program consisted of: the 2005 Non-Employee Directors’
Stock Opnon Plan, under which non-employee directors may be granted options to purchase shares of the
.COmpany 5. stock and the 2005 Equny incentive Plan, under which officers, key employees consultants and all
other employees may be granted opuons to purchase shares of the Company §'stock, restricted stock” umts “and other
types of equity awards. The 20{)5 Non Employee Directors’ Stock Opuon Plan permits the gram of share opnons for
upto 400 000 shares of common stock whilé the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan permits the grant of share optlons for
up to 1,450, 000 shares of common stock. Under the Non- Employee Directors’ Stock Opnon Plan, non- employee
director stock options generally have a vestmg period of 12 to‘48 months, are generally exerc1sable fora penod of
ten years from the date of issuance and are granted at prices not Iéss than the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock at the grant date. Under the Equity Incentive Plan, employee stock options generally have a vesting
period of 50 to 60 months, are generally exercisable for a period of seven to ten years from the date of issuance and
are granted at prices not less than the fair market value of-the Company’s common stock at the grant date. Certain
option awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change of control. Restricted stock units may be granted
with varying criteria:such as time-based or performance-based vesting. No restricted stock units have been granted
under the equityiincentive program: -~ -, -+ ... . e 1 :
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:'The following table provides certain information with respect to atl of Photon Dynarmcs equity compensauon
plans in effect as of September 30, 2006:

s
]

Jo, )

*'Plan Categnry

L s

Equity COmpensation plans

. approved by sccurlty holders .

'E.quny compensauon plans not
approved by securlty holders

L

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon

AT P et .~~}" R N T

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance

' Under Equity '«

‘ Weighted-Average Compensation Plans

Exercise of ‘Exercise Price of * ‘(Excluding Securities
Outstanding Options  Outstanding Options . Reflected in Column (a))
) (@ (b) ' 9"
. LN
1,950,070 $23.28 798,336
VIR | SE PR .- S N .o T te
CUo_leest T ovsiess U L o d
- .11,950,695 o $2328 . v 798336 - L L

T

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation mode!
using a-multiple options-approach, consistent with the,provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Securities and- Exchange
Commissions SAB No. 107 and the Company’s pro forma disclosures of net earnings in prior periods, including
stock-based compensatlon (determined under a fair value method as prescribed by SFAS No. 123). All options are
amortized over | the requtstte servace penods ‘of the au;ards whlch are generally the vesting periods. The Black-
Scholes valuatton model requites the mput of the following assumpttons

1,1

Expecred Volanhty The Company estimates the volatility of its stock options at the date of grant usmg
1mphed volatilities. In connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company reaSsessed its valiation
technique and related assumptions. Expected volatilities used in fiscal 2006 are based on implied volatilities
from traded options on the Compariy’s stock. Prior.to the adoption of SFAS No..123R, the Company primarily
used historical volatility in deriving its expected volatility assumption. Thé Company determined that the use
of implied volatility is more reflectwe of market condmons and a better lndlcator of expected volatlhty than
‘historical volatility. '. e - -

e ., ty o, ' . ( St
Expected Term. The expected term of optlons granted is derived from a numencal model of the
Company’s stock price and represents the penod of time that optlons granted are expected o be outstandmg
The Company uses historical data to estimate optton exercise and employee termlnatton within th¢' valuatton
model. : LB MU

Y "'[‘

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the optton is based
on a risk-free zero-coupon spot interest rate at ‘the time of grant LTI U

i

2o

Expected Dividends. The Company has never declared or paid any cash d1v1dends and does ‘ot
presently plan to pay cash dividends'in the foreseeable future, Consequently, the Company uses an expected

dividend yield of zero in the Black-Scholes’ valuatlon model. 1t

Forfeitures. The Company uses- historical 'data and future expectations of employee tuinover to estimate
‘pre-vesting forfeitures. As required by SFAS No. 123R, ‘the- > Company records stock-based compensation
expense only for those awards that are expected to vest.

B G

—

’ i e St

Lt
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++. 1iThe fair value of eachfoption!grant’in’the fiscal years ended September 30 2006,;2005 and 2004, used the

followmg weighted-average valuation assumptions: B A R THR U RV e It
A R N | .
bt e 2006 2005 2004
I SN EAl)
Stock optlon:plan

Expé‘ct'éLd!stock,pnce volauhtyiL e : . i .. A% 69% 83%
RSk free interest rate®."}? R A 4.5% 34%. 23%
Expected life of options (years) ...~ L T .. 37 53 5 6

'Qi".n" [ ‘,|. ) C;
LI NI E \r' [}

SFAS No 123R requires the use of opnon pricing models’ that were not developed ot use in valmng emp]oyee
stock options. The Black-Scholes opuon-pncmg model was developed for use'in esnmatmg the fair value ‘of short-

lived exchange traded options that hive no vesting restrictions and are fully transférable’ Tn addition, optlon pricing
models require -the input of highly'subjéctive assumpuons‘*mcludmg the option’s expected life and the price
volatility of the underlymg stock.

R VAT S (AU TR I I SRR LA T SR L TR BTN PP IRLTI SO 5% LRI Ty, [P R AL TR S

s The fo]lowmg itable ‘surmarizes the combined ‘activity- under the eqmty ‘incentiverplans forithe indicated
penods.,,.‘.._:' B B IR VTSRt ST, {1102 15 K- SPRCES A PR TI I 1 SILTE TR | BPTIL I G SR TR |

T S ST S TNEIY S AUV RTINS 1 P Yo DU TTRRS A IR AL PREHER 3t TS I T A
Catd R 1 ETIEI B B R DRTIL V1 (s NI T 0 TR 'w?.'gh?"?‘_-"‘- WElghled-Average Lt AT TS
c “Available Options = Average Remaimng Contract Aggregate

- fof Grant" Outstanding” -Exercise Price 7'+ “"Term. ' # Intrinsic Value

Laboarit ot o Y R IeE I8 T TR R TS I 3 1Y Cod (ln.y-ears’) [ ([]l] thousands)

Balances al September 30,-2003 ., (725147 1,750,638 .., 82204 . e L
Addmona] shares, reserved ...... 400 000. N T s ST S S TR SOP ST 1 R TRE AU

*iOptions granted . 3 (618 550) 11 618; 550 ESEEc 1 U 1o VU S T % R B
Opuons‘canceled!explred‘".". .".-:ff.f T352,407 M(35ZAOT)~ 1327 b wiesion il
Optlons exercised ». My e L .0 “(384 572y ¢ 2274 T ':_:':."' ey I’:

il o et

Balances at September 30, 2004 . 859 004 1,632,20_9 $27.7_3 _ . Fo
*'Additional shares “réserved .. B 1,200,000 7 (1= ol pLp et

Ced LUSECEC T b R LG e M e Ty RRDNGO T rg i B e e i1 VT T R T ey e T ey
..Options, grm-cq&' TR PR T m(791800) 797 800 . 19 3.7. N I A A
Options canceled/expired ....... o 402,104 (399 144) 28 89 ' e
Opt;ons exerc1sed.';:.'., ........ e = 7(84 391) 13 59 e

Balances at September 30, 2005 . 1,663,308 ,1,946,274 $24 64 . :

Plan shares explred(l) R (789 818) e T aa T L .

3 Opnons granted R (472 950) . 472950 1837 . L el
Optlons canceled/expired . . ... .. 397,796 - (397,796). . »2536° . . .. - a
Options exercised. . .. . ii- oy - _(0,733) . 1506 . e

Balancesat September 30, 2006. L |798 336 r 1 ,950,695. $23.28 ; S X R ) - $326

Vested and expected to vest at e BT e ‘ '
September 30,2006 ... ........ 1,812,954 $23.63 7.0 $314

Exercisable at September 30, 2006. . 1,293,441 $25.54 6.6 $280

(1) The Company’s 1995 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan expired in November 2005. Option shares that
were available for grant at the time of cancellation and all outstanding option shares that subsequently are
cancelled or expire are no longer available for grant.
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‘The aggregate intrinsic value in the tablé above represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on the
Company’s closing stock price of $13.27 as of September 29, 2006, which would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders with in-the-money options exercised their options as of that date.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of September 30, 2006:

Options OQutstanding Options Vested and Exei'cisable.
Number of Shares Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Outstanding at Weighted-Average Exercise Price at Number Exercise Price at
September 30, Remaining September 30, Vested and ., September 30,
Range of Exercise Price 2006 Contract Life 2006 Exercisable 2006
4 o : - (In years) o
$3.00-%17.01 ..., 217,008 6.63 $14.00 111,633 $12.53
1736 - 17035« ... . 205,110 AT . 17.45,, 1o . 17.50
1806 - 1946 ..., - . 346,742 . . 6.22 io.. . 18.87 - 115,165 =~ - 1845
1950- 1950 ..... .- - -209;600 LI 8§92 . 19.50 C 82,440 19.50
‘19.68'- 2324 .. .. 202,856 - 170 2189 -133,216 - 21.57
2350- 2758 ..... 296,079 6.96 26.36 265,615 '26.69
2783 - 2991 ... .. - 202,340 S 694 . 29360 . . 202,340 29.36
31.11- 5900 ..... - 270,960 : w ' +37.06" © 270,960 37.06
$ 3.00 - $59.00 .. ... * 1,950,695 7.05 . $23.28 1,293,441 $25.54

- The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $6.94,
$12.39 and $21.63 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 was approximately $298,000. The total cash received from employees as a result of stock
option exercises during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $1.1 million, $1.1 million and $5.1 million,
respectively. In connection with these exercises, the tax benefits realized by the Company was minimal.

.The Company settles employee stock option exercises with newly issued common shares,

.As of September 30, 2006, the unrecorded deferred stock-based compensation balance related to stock options
was $3.0 million and will be recognized over an estimated remaining weighted average amortization period of
1.6 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company’s employee stock purchase plan provides that eligiblé
employees may contribute up to 10% of their eligible earnings through accumulated payroll deductions toward
the semi-annual purchase of the Company’s common stock. Participants purchase shares on the last day of each
offering period. The price at which shares are purchased is equal to 85% of the lower of the fair market value of a
share of common stock on the first day of the offering period or the purchase date. Offering periods are typically 51x
months in length.

The fair value of the stock purchase plan is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation
model, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, SEC SAB No. 107, FASB Technical Bulletin No. 97-1,
“Accounting under Statement 123 for Certain Employee Stock Purchase Plans with a Look-Back Option,” and the
Company’s prior period pro forma disclosures of net earnings, including stock-based compensation (determined
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under a fair value method as prescribed by SFAS No. 123). The fair value in the fiscal years ended September 30,
2006, 2005 and 2004 used the following weighted-average assumptions: -

[PE—

06 2005 2004

Stock purchase plan: ‘

Expected stock price volatility . .. ... 44% 80% 96%
Risk free INEreSE TAE . . .o v v v e i iin v n s bae e 46% 1.70% 2.13%
Expected life of plan (years) .. ... .oovovvr i 0.5 1.6 20

The weighted-average fair value of shares issued in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $5.27,$13.70 and $15.80,
respectively. , K

The compensation cost in connection with the employee stock purchase plan for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 was approximately $470,000. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, employees purchased 45,309,
47,188 and 84,785 shares, respectively. Total cash received from employees for the issuance of shares under the
employee stock purchase plan was approximately $722,000, $646,000 and $1.1 million during fiscal 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. ' ‘

The Plan shares are replenished through shareholder approval at the Annual Shareholder meeting. At
September 30, 2006, a total of 954,691 shares were reserved and available for issuance under this Plan.

Other Employee Beneﬁt. Plans

Retirement Savings Plan. The Company has a retirement savings plan that qualifies as a deferred salary
arrangement under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company
matched 50% on the first 7% up to $3,500 per year of an eligible employee’s contribution. The total charge to
operations under the 401(k) program was approximately $506,000, $469,000 and $411,000 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Note 11 — Net Income (Loss) Per Share '

Basic eamingé per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner and also gives effect to all dilutive potential
common shares outstanding during the period. Common equivalent shares consist of stock options issued to
employees under employee stock option plans and warrants.

e
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Year Ended September 30,
2006 2008 2004
(In thousand, except per share data)

Numerator:
Net income (loss) from continuing operafior)s before . . :
discontinued operations ... ............. e $ 4207 $(19,567)  $11,085
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations .. ......... (127) 256 (1,391)
Net income (loss) .. .............. Y $ 4,080 $(19311)  $ 9,694
Denominator: '
Weighted averagé shares for basic net income (los;;) per
share........ N 16,978 . 16,890 16,631
Effect of dilutive securities: Employee stock options .. .. ... 33 —(1) 456
Weighted average shares for diluted net income per share. ... 17,011 16,890 17,087

_Earnings per share:
Basic net income (loss) per share;

~ Net income (loss) from continuing operations. . . ... ... .. % 025 $ (1.16) § 067
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations . . ... .. L. (0.01) 002 . (0.08)
Net income (loss) pershare . ....................... "% 0.24 $ (1.1 % 0358

Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations. ... ....... $ 0.25 $ (1.16) & 065
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations .. ....... (0.01)X2) 0.02 (0.08)(2)
Net income (loss) per share . .. .............. .. P $ 024 $ (1.14) $ 05

— , _ . \
(1) The effect of potentially dilutive securities from employee stock options to purchase 124,060 shares at
September 30, 2005, was not included in the computation of diluted net loss per share as the effect is
antidilutive,

(2) In accordance with Statement of Accounting Standards No. 128 “Earnings Per Share,” the Company included
the effect of dilutive securities from employee stock options to purchase 33,000 and 456,000 shares in its
calculation of fiscal 2006 and 2004 diluted net loss from discontinued operations, respectively. !

At.September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, options to purchase 1,949,280, 1,203,202 and 243,000 shares,
respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price was
greater than the average market price of common shares for the respective periods and hence, their effect would
have been anti-dilutive. Lt '

Note 12 — Commitments and Contingencies

Operating and Capital Leases

The Company has non-cancelable operating leases for various facilities in the United States, South Korea,
Japan, Taiwan, China and Canada. Total rent expense under all operating leases was approximately $2.6, miltion,
$2.9 million and $2.4 million for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Certain of these
leases contain provisions which permit the Company to renew the leases at the end of their respective lease terms.
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Rent expense was net of sublease income of approximately $356,000, $186,000-and $4,000 for the years ended
September,30,,2006, 2005,and 2004, respectively, . @ @ e ot

A

Future minimum lease commifments™ under Gperatingléases¥at “September- 30, 2006, arc approximatcly -
$3.3 million, $2.8 million, $2.7 million, $2.8 million, and $701,000 in fiscal 2007 through 2011, respectively.
Expected sublease income is approximately $320,000, and $47,000 in fiscal 2007 and 2008, respectively. Operating
lease obligations consist primarily of the Company’s léase' agreement for our headquarters in San Jose, California,
which is leased under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in 2010, with two renewal options at fair market
value for additional five year periods. - R '

At September 30, 2006 and 2003, the Company had equipment with a net book value of approximately
$195.000 and $0 under capital leases, respectively. Total expense under these capital leases was approximately
$17,000 for the year ended September 30, 2006. Future minimum. lease commitments under capital leases at
September 30, 2006, are approximately $65,000, $71,000 and $60,000 in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. -

boes Tt

Line of Credit ‘ L

e . | . Lt

In March 2000, the Company entered into a bank line of credit (“line of credit”) which had an initial term of
one year. The Company has renegotiated the line of credit on an annual basis and currently has a $4.0 million
borrowing capacity on the line of credit with an interest rate of floating prime. In October, 2006, the Company
renewed its line of credit with its bank, with terms substantially the same s the original and extended through
October, 2007. The line of credit is secured by substantially all of the Comipany’s assets and contains certain
financial and other covenants. At September 30, 2006 and 2005, there were no amounts outstanding under the line
of credit. : :

.
[ R .

Purchase Agreements’

The Company, maintains certain open inventory purchase commitments with its suppliers to ensure a smooth
and continuous supply chain for-key components. The Company’s liability in these purchase commitments is
generally restricted to a forecasted time horizon as mutually agreed upon between the parties. The Company’s open
purchase commitments were $27.0 million as of September 30,2006, including cancelable purchase commitments.

o Vo . !

Retention Bonus
: : - Yoo . e .
The Company entered-into an agreement with certain kf;y employees of Summit Imaging, Inc. whereby the
Company paid incentive bonuses to retain. the identified employees. The agreement provided for a total bonus
payment of $1.5 million, to be paid in four annual installments beginning on April 1, 2004. In August of 2005, the
Company entered into separation agreements .with these employees: The agreement: contained contingent provi-
sions for the original bonus to be paid.'As of September.30, 2006 and 2005, the Company had accrued
approximately $188,000 and $375,000, respectively, through charges to earnings which is included in “Other

current liabilities” in the consolidated financial statements. R

Warranty Obligations B ST JEIETI . e

The Company generally offers warranty coverage for a period of one year from the date of final customer
acceptance. Upon product shipment, the Company records the estimated cost of warranty coverage, primarily
material and labor to repair and service the equipment.Factors:that affect the Company’s warranty liability include
the number of installed units under warranty, product failure rates, material usage rates and the efficiency by which -
the product failure is corrected. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liability
and adjusts the amount as necessary. - .+t I S : A
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e wChanges in the Company s_product liability. dunng fiscal 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

P T Rk i T T LA S Fiscal Fiscal i
. ‘ gy ) 0 - 2006 2005
Gt S . S e oy r‘ (In thousands)
Begmmng balance TR TP A i e . :$5346 36,194
_ Estimated warranty cost of new shipments durmg the periods. . . ... .. .. L 956 4,770
oo Warranty charges during the period.'. o0 Lo L P, 2,288)  (4.651)
Changes in liability for pre-existing warranties, including expirations. . . . . .. 4,044 (967}
~ Ending balance ... ............. RN N S $8,058 ° § 5346

* The increase:in the Company’s warranty - lrabrlny over'the prior year is due primarily to the Company’s
agreement with one customer to‘replace! two ArrayChecker™ systems: In-the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the
Company agreed to repiace two of the four original Generation® 7 test systems sold to a.customer with a newer
version of our Generation 7 test systems. Even though all four original Generation 7 systems have been used by the
customer in full producuon reliability and uptlme issues have ﬁnpacted the produetron capab111ty of the fabrication
lines in Wthh they | operate The replacement systems cost of approximately $3.0 million has been accrued as
warranty expense in 1he (quarter ended September 30 2006.

Guarantees )
Id -t ) (

Subject to certain llmltauom Photon Dynamlcs indemnifies its current and former officers and directors for
certain events Or accurrences, Although the maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be
reqmred to make under these agreemems is theoretically unlimited, based on prior experience, we believe the fair
value'of this llablllty is-de minimums-and no‘liability has been recorded

. . e .

Legat Proceedings

The Company and certain of i 1ts directors and former officers were named as defendants in a lawsuit captioned
Amtower v. Photon Dynamics, Inc., No. CV797876, filed on April 30, 2001 in the Superior Court of the State of
California, County of-Santa Clara. The trial of this case commenced on April 3, 2006. On a motion for non-suit, the
court dismissed all claims against all directors on April 20, 2006. On May 5, 2006,-as a result of jury verdict,
Judgments were entered in favor of the Company and its former officers. The plaintiff, a former officer of the
Company, had asserted several causes of action arising out of alleged misrepresentations made to the plaintiff
regarding the existence and enforcement of the Company’s insider trading policy. The plaintiff had sought damages
in excess of $6 million for defendants’ alleged refusal to allow plaintiff to sell shares of the Company’'s stock in May
of 2000, plus unspecified emotional distress and punitive damages. On June 30, 2006, the plaintiff filed a timely
notice of appeal. On July 28, 2006, the Court awarded the Company approximately $445,000 in fees and costs. The
“award bears interest at the statutory rate of 10% 51mple interest per annum. Collecnon of the award will be stayed
during the plaintiff’s appeal of the verdict. * - ‘ :

‘From time to time,'Photon'Dynamics is subject to certain other legal proceedings and claims that arise in the
ordinary course of business. Additionally, the Company in the ordinary. course of business may potentially be
subject to future legal proceedings that could individually, or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition, liquidity or results of operations. Litigation in general, and intellectual property and securities
litigation in particular, can be expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of
complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict. '

Note 13 — Segment Reporting and Geographic Infermation

Statement of Accounting Financial Standards No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments. Operating
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segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance of the company. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is
considered to be the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”). The CEO reviews the Company’s financial
information presented on a consolidated basis substantially similar to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. Therefore, the Company has concluded that it operates in one segment: the manufacture and servicing
of test equipment for the flat panel display industry. Accordmgly the Company has provided only the required
enterprise-wide disclosures,

'3“' T

AT g

The Company sells its products for lhe ﬂat pancl Jdlsplay mdustr.y dlfﬁ:CﬂL logcustomers, in South Korea
Taiwan, China and Japan. Through the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the’Company also, on a’ “limited” baSlS, 'sold-in- -
Japan through a value-added distributor. For geographical reporting, revenue is attributed to the geographlc tocation
1o which the product was shipped. Long-lived assets consist pnmanly of property, plant.and: equipment, and are
attributed to the geographic location in which they are located.

The following is a summary of revenue by geographic area based on location where the product wﬁslshipped:

Year Ended September 30, .
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands) ’

Revenue; ‘ , . .
SOULH KOTEA .+ v v e e e et e e oot et e e e $113,288 $ 41474  $ 68,450
TUIWAN. « oo A i L. 4LI08 53,159 T 60,793
Japan .. ..o U e T 7665 17,044 11,017
o T e 1081 14,136 1,610

Total ... o e e $172,872  $125813  $141,870

The following is a summary of revenue by product line:
‘ " Year Ended
September 30,
2006 2005 2004
{Percent of total

. o ) revenue)
Revenue: : o _ -
ArrayChecker™ ... ... ....... S PP 66% 60% T5%
ArmaySaver™ ... e PP 19 24 19
RTP systems ............. R R . 1
PanelMaster™ .. ... .......... N A ‘6 6 —
- Customer spares and other ... .......... oo ' e 9 10 _5
Total o0 vt e EERT R e 100% 100% 100%

’ * — —— ——

84




+

‘ PHOTON DYNAMICS INC. - :

‘ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < (Continued)

Sales to individual unafﬁhated customers in excess of 10% of total revenue were as- follows ¢
e T T T T L ettaase o Year Ended
NG ) . : L : September 30, .
. S ‘ o 2006 2005 204

. IR : y I (Percent of total "
: ] [ ' . . e RV T T revenue) - .
4" Customer A. .. 0...... L U S S . .. 39% '22% - 39%

CUSIOMEr B ..o\t e L. 25% 10%

Customer C. ..., .. S B R R R R L Co12% % 13%

Customer D. .. ............. S « 1% ox

! CustomerE.............. D R U 12% )

Customer F.................... L. P e S £ 12%

. . Customer G............ R e [P * * 10%
) 'CustomerH. e I * * - 10%

*: Customer accountéd for less than 10% of total revenue for the period.

- Accounts receivable from individual unaffiliated customers int excess of 10% of total gross accounts recewable
were as follows: =~ i

, . . Septemb'er 30, '
’ . cre o, (2006 2005
. (Percent of
H « 4 .. pross accounts '
. . . o . receivable) .
- Customer A .. 0............ 37% A
Customer B ... ... ..., S ,...,.._21%_29"%
Customer C . ................., e R ey 16% 0 19%
:Customer 19 B B e Lo 16% 0%
Customer E. ... ..o T 2 19
‘ ¢ T . ) N - -
* Customer accounted for less than 10% of total gross accounts receivable for the period. .+
Long-liyed assets by geographical area were as follows: - * -+ ° TR X -
? ' “' " " Geptember 30, :
‘ . . . © 2006 2005 '.
’ i : o C ey R (In thousands)
CUMIMEd SHAES . L e $16,234 - . $21,022
. SouthKorea.............. R A Lo 1,229 * 820
. ,Qahada .............. e ey e — 519
Othér .. ... S PO 297 363
W TOtAl. L Ll 8177600 $22724.

S
Note 14 — Related Party Transactlons -

During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company paid $0, $108,000 and $138,000, respectively, to one board
member for consulting services rendered to the Company. During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company,-
recorded approximately $14,000, $52,000 and $206,000, respectlvely, in stock ownershlp expense related to options
granted to this consultant.

4
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PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 15 — Notes Payable

In the third quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company issued $2.0 million in a series of six promissory notes in
connection with the acquisition of Quantum Composers, Inc. The notes are non-interest bearing and mature at
various.times through June 25, 2007. The discount on the notes of $127,000 was calculated based on an imputed
interest rate of 6%. The outstanding balance on the promissory notes, net of unamortized discount, was approx-
imately $977,000 and $1.4 million at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The entire September 30, 2006
balance will be repaid in fiscal 2007.

Note 16 — Quarterly Consolidated Results of Operations (Unaudited)
The following tables contain selected uﬁaudited consolidated statements of operations data for each quarter of

fiscal 2006 and 2005:

Three Months Ended
December 31, March 31, © June 30, September 30,

2005 2006 2006 2006 ,
o (In thousands, except per share data)
REVENUE. o v v ieteeeaeie e innans F PP $41,633 $50,322 . $51,658- $29,259
Cost of revenue ... ... .. e e s 22,382 33,069 32,178 25,142
Gross margin . . ... .. J 19,251 17,253 19,480 4,117
Operating expenses: .
Résearch and development . . ................... 8,071 8,560 8,508 7,281
Selling, 'géneral and administrative . .............. 6,851 6,984 6,068 3,808
Restructuring charge (benefit) . ... .. .. [ 62 (32) — —
Impairment of property and equipment . ........... — — 50 31
Loss on sale of fixed assets. . ....... oot — — — 58
Amortization of intangible assets. . . . . P 372 373 - 372 372
Total operatihg EXPENSES . o v v v v v ene e 15,356 15,885 15,898 11,550
Income (loss) from operations .................... 3,895 1,368 3,582 (7,433)
Interest income and other, net. . . ............ovn-- ' 500 1,019 - 099 838
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes and discontinued operations . . . . .. e 4,395 2,387 4,581 (6,595)
Provision '(beneﬁt). for income taxes . ... ......... .. 352 199 205 (195)
Income (loss) frorri continuing operations before :
discontinued operations. . .. ... ... ia e 4,043 . 2,188 . 4,376 (6,400)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatiois. . ... ...... (680) 334 . (127 346
Net income (10S8). o« v v v v vt i e i inrn e $ 3,363 $ 2,522 §$ 4249 $ (6,054)
Net income (loss) per share from continuing operations: ' '
Basic .7......... [ e $ 024 $ 013 § 026 $ (0.38)
Diluted. . .. vovrii e $ 024 § 013 $ 026 $ (0.38)
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N Lk R

B T

Net income (loss) per share from discontinued

Three Months Ended -

December 3,

2005

March 31,
2006

June 30,
2006

September 30,

2006

(In thousands, except per share data)

LRty e

L

1ad LIVLEEA

ey h.c-.

Opel‘atlorls T Yo
‘Basic ...... A P PUNE LU SO fa $ (004) . $ 002 §$ (0.01) $-002
Dihited. .. . .. LU SN T $.(004) .. 0.02...8 (001)...$:-10i02
Net income (loss) per share 3 SRS :‘.r;: ..J "
'Basic,. i : R L v $--0.20 $-015 $ 025 $ '(0:36)
(Diluted: . . . ‘ e, 80200 - 0% 015 - $ -025 - $7(0'36)
Weighted average number of shares: R I R AR 2
Basic’ ... .. SR B BT 16,946 - 17,018 - 17,047- - 16,849
Diluted. . ... 7. . (U .. 17,047 17,077 - 17,077- - -16,849
{1, .un. iThree:Months, Ended--<« ... * . tng|
. . December 31 Maich 31, June 30, September 30,
AUEE o) T T ey sl G st e et 8 2004 e o 2008 oY 200850070 G’ 2008

I N L T R AR P TLAE 4y Ao et o et e gy (In thousands; except per shart data) o LT
Reveriue: . .4 € Ll Sanom sl A0 vy i sy b ) $36 639 i $:25.326'77 $39,096- 1:$24,752¢ 1
Cost of revenue".". AMSA e e EL T 81 T 181768 41 25,966 10 215,217
GroSs margin’s ©ite 3250 30 Tn s 2 0TS AR )3 858 1 Lt 6,558 r-""13,'130' ‘v 1'9,535

T IS PG SINERTS SR TAR TN B rm',-',,i"u ""“V{”‘\!n. 0ot RTED TR o el b R
Operalmg expenses: o R L ITTI T PR TSP b S R A DL
' Research and developmem R P r. 9470 29818 ., .8, 618 a1, 18369

.1 Selling, general . and’ administrative . . . . . . . e 2L 4,684, 'Jrn. £1:6,107 1; o -J 352, .+6,535q

:Restructuring charges .. 2L . 0. 0000 e iR '? gafte gy s Dt 0 0981 et L 246, .

«» Impairment.of property and equipment.. bt iedeyt LITTNGY | L n IO i iy 13{} RS ) |

-+ (Gain) lossron sale of property and cqulpment ety cnolpnRl e ol =007, (143) - . L0 50

Amortization of intangible assets ................ 397 it 0308 il 13806 e 373 .

Total operating expenses. . . ................ .. 14,551 16,705 17,332 15,654

Loss from operations . ................ ... ... ... {693) {10,147y  (4,202) (6,119)
Interest income and other, net. .. .. ................ 1,255 164 472 327
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income

taxes and discontinued operations ... ............. 562 (9,983) (3,730) (5.792)
Provision for income taxes . ...................... 39 359 167 59
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

discontinued operations. . ., .....,........ S 523 (10,342) (3,897) (5,851)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . ...... (6) (4) 268 (2)

Netincome (I08S) . ... ... .ot n i $ 517 $(10,346) $(3,629) $(5,853)
Net income (loss) per share from continuing operations:

Basic.... ... .. .. . 3 003 $ 61 $ (0.23) $ (0.35)

Diluted. . ...... ... ... .. $ 003 $ (0.61) §$ (0.23) $ (0.35)
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e '_;'-‘. .. b . . Three Months Ended
RUZ A bt R e December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
S _w__"'! @t o . o 2004 o 2005 . 2005 ) 2005
ST T e e T ' " (In thousands, except per share data) - - - ="
Net income (loss) per share from discontinued T ST P Lol e
operations: ' ‘ R
Basic ... R AR T .$ 000 $ (0.00) $. 002 . $ (0.00)
Dill}tpdt TR IR R L KRR R TR % 000 . % (©.00) . % 0.02: % (0.00) -
Net income (loss) per share: ' o A e n e
Basic....... P B T R _$ 0.03 . $ (e _$ (0.21)J $ (035
DHUEA. st en e enaneieee 3 003§ (06D § (021§ (039)
Weiéhted averagé nu?ﬁber o'f shares ) e et bt T -
Basic....... e I e f e - 16,872 16,948 - 16,984 16,931
Diluted. . . ... R R e e 17,009 16,948 16,984 .16,931

Note 17 — Subsequent Events (Unauditpd)

_*On November-16, 2006, the Company announced its intention to discontinue its PanelMaster™ product line.
While the Company will continue to support the current installed base, it will no longer pursue new business for
PanelMaster™ systems, upgrades or enhancements. The discontinuation of this product line will result in a
restructuring charge in the quarter ending December 31, 2006 in accordance with SFAS No. 146. .

; The restructuring:plan will include reducing the Company’s workforce and impairing certain manufacturing.
assets associated with the product line. Management has approved and implemented the plan and determined the
benefits that would be offered to the employees being terminated. Management determined that terminations
affecting up to 17 employees would take place in two phases through the end of Décember 2006. All affected
employees were notified of their termination and the benefits package was explained in sufficient detail such that
each affected employee will be able to determine the type and amount of benefits they are entitled to receive.

' The Companj expects to incur aggregate restructuring charges of ap'p'roxiihétely '$500,000 in its first and
second quarters of fiscal 2007 comprised of employee severance charges and'the write-off of certain manufacturing

assets associated with the product line, - . . T T I SR
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure . . -

There were no changes in or clisagreements with Emst & Young LLP on acccunting and financial disclosure
required to be reported under this Item 9.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures ' oot

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

'

Photon Dynamlcs maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a- 15(e) and ISd-lS(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {the “Exchange Act™)) that are deSIgned to ensure that

mformauon requlred to be dlSClOSCd in the reports we ﬁle or submit under the Exchange Actis recorded processed

summanzed and reported within the time periods spec1ﬁed in the Securities and Exchange Comnission rules and

forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management including our chief executive

ofﬁfcer and chief fi nanc:a]. officer, as appropriate tq allow’ umel¥ _dec:sllons_ regal:dlng reqmred”disclosure . ;‘

. Based on our management’s evaluation (with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer), our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded. that, as of September 30, 2006, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to
be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Y I

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. Internal
control ‘over financial reportmg is'a process des1gned to prov1de reasonable assurance regarding the re]:ab:hty of
financial reportmg and the preparatlon of financial statements for extemal purposes 1n accordance wnh gcnerally
accepted accounung pnncrples in the United States ' . ! '_‘

i . 4 ’ [

[ntemal control over the ﬁnanc1al reporting includes those pohcles and procedures that: (i) pertain- to the
maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accountmg principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being. made only in accordance with authorizations of management and.
directors of the company; and (111) prowde reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or d15p051t10n of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. ‘. PR ) s

’ .
o, - . [

Because of its inherent hmnauons, internal, control over financial repomng may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of - any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in condmons or that the degree of compllance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the design and operational effectiveness of our internal contro}
over'fihaficial reporting as of September 30, 2006, the end of the fiscal year covered by this report, based on the
framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO™) in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework, Based on this evaluation, management concluded that as of
September 30, 2006, Photon Dynamics mamtatned effectwe mternal ‘control over ﬁnancnal reporting in accordance
with the COSO crltena

Management s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of Septem-
ber 30, 2006, was audited by Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm that audited our
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Ernst & Young LLP has issued an attestation
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report on management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, which
report is included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form | 0-K and is incorporated here by reference.
Wt PR : LI : ' . o PR T v N . ! - .

Inherent Limitations of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. e y - L 0

Our management, including the chief executive officer arid chief financial officer, does not expect that our
disclosure controls and procedures or internal control over financial reporting will prevent all €rror and all fraud. A
colmrol system no matter how well desigied'and implémented, carfl provide only reasonablé, not absolute, assurance

N . KRN S e " . ! A . . - i ‘e 5 - 14,
that the gontr’_ system’s objectives will be met. Further, the de_é_lg'n"gfa a control system must reflect thefact that

ol
AA Ty 4 . "

.- 1, ot . . N . 2t ERS R I N . M . < ' .
thicre are resoiirce constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the

. ¥ . Ve . 0 J e . h ! . « g1 C o b . -
inhérent limitations in all control systemis, no eyaiuation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control

issues within a company aré'.det'e‘qtgd. The inhéfent limitations il:l'C.ll‘]del the r;aiilieé théi_'t judgmients in de‘ci{siqn’-I
making can 'be faulty, and that bieakdownis can occur bécause of siniple error or mistakes. Controls can also'be
circumvented by the individual acts-of some persons; by.collusion of two or more people or by:management
override:of the cantrols. Because of the inherent limitations in.a cost-effective control system, misstalements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. - - r1 - . : ‘ R Ce

y ! v R A T S .
item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable. S C o e o BRI

L T PARTINI. .. - g

.- r ' T +

. ., . . . - g L Il 1 , PR o R )_ e B
Certain information required by Part [T is omitted from this_Anqual Regqn on Form 10-K since we intend to
file our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, pursuant to Regulation 14A of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Proxy Statement’,’),,no't.l'ater' than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and certain information to be included in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference. ’ ‘ ‘ ' :
L . . [ o ., L. BRI
N O P e : ; Co

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant . . . .. .. . .,

(1) The information required by this Iter With respect to Executive Officers may be found under the ‘caption,
“Ex'ééiitiv'e’ Officers of the Registrant” at the end of Part I, Iter' 1 'of this Annual Report on Form 10-K"
A Lt ¢ . ot Lo e . . [ . R .

(2) The information required by this Item with respect to Directors, including information with respect to our
audit committee and our audit committee financial experts, may be found under the ‘section.entitled “ProposJal 1 —

Election of Directors” appearing in our Proxy Statement, to be filed in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of

Sh'a!lrenﬁolders. Such information is, incorporated herein by fchrépde., o

(3) The information required by this Item with respect to compliance' with Scction’ 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and our code of ethics, may be found in ‘t_hn_a,se_citiqns. entitled “Section 16{(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors,” respectively, appearing in our Proxy
Statement. 1o be filed in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is,
incorporated herein by reference. - ... . R PR L . g

i
4

- _ S A T o e

Photon Dynamics, Inc. has adopted a}'Cod'e of Bﬁsjnq'ss Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of its directors,
officers and employees. The Code of Business Conduct and’ Ethics is posted om our website ' at;
www.photondynamcis.com in the section entitled “Corporate Governance Management.” This website address
is.intended to be an inactive textual reference only. Information contained on-our website-is not incorporated by
reference.in, or made part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or our other filings with or reports furnished to the
SEC.. - - P T K I LR SO B S e !

.
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P Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item may be found under the section entitled “Executive Compensation”

appearing in our Proxy Statement, to be filed in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Benef cml Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

(1) The information required' by this frem with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management may be found in the section entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” appearing in our Proxy Statement; to be filed in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

(2) The information required by this Item with respect to securities authorized for issuance under our equity
compensation plans may be found in the section entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information” appearing in our
Proxy Statement, to be filed in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is
incorporated herein by reference. ‘

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Iten may be found in the section entitled “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” appearing in our Proxy Statement, to be filed in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14, Principal Aecountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item may be found in the section entitled “Proposal 5 — Ratification of
Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” appearing in our Proxy Statement, to be filed in
connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) 1. Financial Statements -

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

2. Financial Siatement Schedules

The following financial statement schedule is filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K. All other
financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either not applicable or the required information
is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE I
' PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNT
Year Ended September 30,
~Balancelat Char editony Charged to o ——
of Perlod Expense Accounts ‘Deductions ‘Period
i ) . - f([n lhousam:ls) o :

2006 e 5153 270 — .an  s406 :
2005 ..o $497 G4y . — @0 $153
2004 .. §726 — — 229)  $497

3. Exhibits

See 'the Exhibit Index which follows the signature page of this Annual Report on Form I10-K, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a) above. '
" (©) Finantidl Stateinent Schedules

See Itemn 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PHOTON DYNAMICS, INC.

By: /s JEFFREY A. HAWTHORNE

Jeffrey A. Hawthorne
President, Chief Executive Officer,
Acting Chief Financial Officer and Director

Dated: December 14, 2006

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Jeffrey A. Hawthome as his or her attorney-in-fact, each with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any
and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attomey-in-
fact and agent, fult power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be
done in connection therewith and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could
do in person. hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent, or his substitute or substitutes, -
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature _TH D_at_e
Is/ - JEFFREY A. HAWTHORNE President, Chief Executive Officer, December 14, 2006 .
" Jeffrey A. Hawthorne - Acting Chief Financial Officer and .

Director (Principal Executive, Financial
and Accounting Officer)

fsi MALCOLM J. THOMPSON . Chairman of the Board and December 14, 2006 -
Malcolm J. Thompson . Director
/sl NICHOLAS BRATHWAITE Director December 14, 2006 +

Nicholas Brathwaite

+

/st TERRY CARLITZ Director December 14, 2006

Terry Carlitz
st MICHAEL J. KIM : Director ‘December 14, 2006
Michael J. Kim ' '
s/ EDWARD ROGAS JR. Director December 14, 2006

Edward Rogas Jr.

/s CURT WOQZNIAK - Director ‘ December 14, 2006
Curt Wozniak
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Mr. Nicholas E. Brathwaite
Ms, Terry Carlitz '
Mr. Jeffrey Hawthorne

Mr. Michael J. Kim

Mr. Edward Rogas, Jr.

Mr. Curt Wozniak

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Mr. Jeffray Hawthorne !
Mr. Michae! W. Schradle :
Mr. Steve Song

Mr. Mark Merrill

REGISTRAR/TRANSFER AGENT
Computershare Investor Services
250 Royall Streel

Canton, MA 02021

877.282.1168

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
5970 Optical Court

San Jose, California 95138
408.226.9900

CORPORATE COUNSEL
Davis Polk & Wardwell

1600 El Camino Real

Mentc Park, California 94025
650.752.2000 '

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP

303 Almaden Boulevard
San Jose, California 85110
408.947.5500

INVESTOR RELATIONS
408.360.3561 .
investor @ photondynamics.com

STOCK LISTINGS
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Chairman of the Board of Directors of Photon Dynamics, Inc.
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Independent Business Advisor

Chiel Executive Officer and Prasident of Photon Dynamics, Inc.
Consultant

Consultant

Consultant

Chief Executive Officer and President
Chief Financial Officer
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